651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: January 18, 2018, NCPA Commission Meeting

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Bob Lingl called the meeting to order at 9:01 am at Embassy Suites, 100 Capitol Mall,
Sacramento, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance are
shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the December 14, 2017, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Bonnie Gore and seconded by Roger Frith to approve the Minutes of
the December 14, 2017, Commission meeting. The motion carried unanimously on a voice vote of
those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Lingl asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update
General Manager Randy Howard reported:

— Thanked the NCPA L&R Team for their effort in putting together another successful Strategic
Issue Conference Program. This year marks the 50" Anniversary of NCPA and staff is in the
process of planning special events throughout the year to celebrate NCPA’s 50 Years of Public
Power.

— Hometown Connections Update. Working through negotiations with the interested parties.
Currently finalizing the Bylaws language and plan to have an updated Pro Forma on the financials
by early February. Once finalized, will discuss with Commission in closed session.

— Spoke on a panel at APPA’s Joint Action Workshop. Main topic of discussion during the
Workshop was workforce development. Workforce development continues to be a concern
throughout public power.



- NCPA kicked-off the New Year by bringing on Placer County Water Agency on January 1, 2018.
NCPA staff was on hand during the transition, which went off without a hitch. Thanked NCPA
Power Management and Information Services staff for their efforts in ensuring a smooth
transition.

— The Lodi Energy Center continues to run every day and is doing well.

— Working with the CAISO on regionalization issues. Changes in the rules and procedures on
scheduling will have an impact on how the Agency schedules power in the future.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Bob Lingl reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met twice since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 16, 17 and 19 on today’s Agenda.
A quorum of the Committee was established and supported staff's recommendation.

6. Finance Committee

Committee Chair David Hagele reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting. Chair Hagele did provide an update on the results of the Lodi Energy Center refunding bonds.
With Congress passing the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in late December, it included the elimination of advance
refunding of tax-exempt bonds. On December 20, NCPA staff was able to finalize the advanced refunding
of the 2017 Lodi Energy Center, Indenture One, Series A refunding bonds. Final numbers for the project
participants included the following:

Rate: 2.27%

NPV Savings: $2.2 million through final maturity of 2025

Percentage savings of refunded bonds: 6.15%

Average annual savings: approx. $319,000 per year for the participants of Indenture One group

The next Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for February 13™.
7. Legal Committee

Assistant General Counsel Ruthann Ziegler reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting, and gave a brief update NCPA's case regarding the Central Valley Project
Improvement Act issues. Detailed updates have been provided directly to each member’s legal
counsel.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Vice Chair Bonnie Gore reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting. Vice Chair Gore thanked everyone who attended the Strategic Issues
Conference and gave a special thanks to Randy Howard and the NCPA Legislative & Regulatory
Team for their efforts in putting together a productive program. Capitol Day is scheduled on January
29 in Sacramento. NCPA will hold an issues briefing at Mayahuel Restaurant the morning of January
29, and meet with the Members legislative delegation, committee staff and regulatory
representatives later that afternoon. The NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference in Washington,
DC will be held April 15-18. Information on this event will be sent to Members next month. The next
regular scheduled Committee meeting is on February 21 at NCPA'’s Roseville office.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
January 18, 2018



9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

Gerry Cupp, Shasta Lake, announced that James Takehara was selected as the new Utility Director for
the City of Shasta Lake.

Basil Wong, Port of Oakland, announced that Jared Carpenter was selected has the new Assistant
Utility Manager.

Nico Procos, Alameda, announced that Vidhi Chawla was selected as the new Assistant General
Manager of Energy Resources Planning.

Randy Howard, NCPA, mentioned that Dave Dockham, Assistant General Manager Power Management,
has announced his plans to retire later this year.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. No
items were pulled for discussion.

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Mark Chandler to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15. The motion carried by a majority of those
members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.

San Francisco BART was absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended November 30, 2017 — approval by all members.
11. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended December 31, 2017 — approval by all members.
12. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended November 30, 2017 — accept by all members.
13. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended December 31, 2017 — accept by all members.

14. Resolution 18-01, Transmission and Distribution Services, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for oil leak maintenance on transformers; Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Transmission and Distribution Services, LLC for oil leak detection
and maintenance on transformers, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over
five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the Terms and Conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
January 18, 2018



15. Resolution 18-04, Dekomte De Temple, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for BOP/HRSG expansion joint and insulation maintenance services; Applicable to
the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Dekomte De Temple, LLC for BOP/HRSG expansion
joints and insulation services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $500,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

16. Resolution 18-02, Increase the General Manager’s Signature Authority from the Current Level
of $2,897,507 to $3,250,000 for Construction of the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repairs — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager to issue additional purchase orders to
Ford Construction, Inc., and raising the General Manager’s signature authority from the current level
of $2,897,507 to the not to exceed amount of $3,250,000 for construction of the Adit 4 Spoils Facility
Repairs at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project.

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repair Project (including engineering
design and construction) is now estimated to be $3.82M. Previous budget estimates made prior to
construction bidding were $4.15M. An insurance claim has been filed with NCPA’s property
insurance underwriters, and a meeting with the insurer is scheduled for February 6, 2018, to
hopefully finalize the settlement amount for the overall repair project.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation and presented an aerial video of the
construction progress of the Adit 4 spoils facility repairs.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Mel Grandi approving the resolution
authorizing the General Manager to issue additional purchase orders to Ford Construction, Inc., and
raising the General Manager's signature authority from the current level of $2,897,507 to the not to
exceed amount of $3,250,000 for construction of the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repairs at the NCPA
Hydroelectric Project. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

Port of Oakland, Redding and Truckee Donner abstained. San Francisco BART was absent.

17. Resolution 18-03, Delegate to the General Manager Authority to enter into one or more
Agreements and to Issue Purchase Orders, with a total not-to-exceed amount of $6,900,000,
for Replacement of Stator Windings for the Collierville Unit 1 and Unit 2 Generators at the
NCPA Hydroelectric Project — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager to
enter into one or more agreements and to issue purchase orders, with a total not-to-exceed amount
of $6,900,000, for the replacement of stator windings for the Collierville Powerhouse Unit 1 and Unit
2 generators at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project.

Fiscal Impact: At this time, total project costs for rewinds of both Collierville units are roughly
estimated to be on the order of $6,000,000. Contingency funds of 15% ($900,000) are
recommended to cover change orders and contingencies, for a total project cost not to exceed
$6,900,000. To date, approximately $5,250,000 has been collected specifically for Collierville
generator rewinds as part of an ongoing Capital Development Reserve collections. Additional funds
of $300,000 and $500,000 are proposed for collection in FY19 and FY20, respectively. The

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
January 18, 2018



collection schedule will be adjusted if actual bids for the Unit 2 rewind are found to deviate from
preliminary budget expectations. If, based on bid results or modifications in scope, project costs are
anticipated to exceed $6.9M, staff will return to the Commission to request additional signature
authority. It is expected that both rewinds will be completed over the next five years. With an
aggressive project schedule and availability of materials, Unit 2 rewind may begin as early as fall
2018.

Collierville Rewind Project estimated cost breakdown:

Unit 2 Unit 1
Material procurement $1,000,000  $1,000,000
Millwright work $1,000,000  $1,000,000
Rewind labor $1,000,000 $1,000,000
TOTAL ESTIMATED $3,000,000 $3,000,000

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation on the repairs at Collierville Unit 1 and 2
at the NCPA Hydroelectric project.

Motion: A motion was made by Pat Kolstad and seconded by Mark Chandler approving the
resolution authorizing the General Manager to enter into one or more agreements and to issue
purchase orders, with a total not-to-exceed amount of $6,900,000, for the replacement of stator
windings for the Collierville Powerhouse Unit 1 and Unit 2 generators at the NCPA Hydroelectric
Project. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART was absent.

18. Resolution 18-05, Delegate Authority to the General Manager to execute agreements and to

issue purchase orders for maintenance work related to the Lodi Energy Center (LEC) 2018
Spring Outage, for a total cost not to exceed $1,798,856 — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager to execute agreements and issue purchase orders for maintenance
work related to the Lodi Energy Center (LEC) 2018 Spring Outage, for a total cost not to exceed
$1,798,856.

Fiscal Impact:

2018 Spring Outage | Anticipated Cost
Gas Turbine $211,000
Steam Turbine $125,000
Water Treatment $200,000
Electrical Systems $83,652
HRSG / Steam $751,000
Balance of Plant $81,000
Incidentals $205,500
Contingency $141,704

TOTAL $1,798,856

The budgetary funds to complete the 2018 Spring Outage include $830,000 of pre-collected funds in
the Maintenance Reserve account (Account # 265-009-005-610-044-002). The remainder of funds
($968,856) were anticipated in the Routine O&M budget.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation on the maintenance work related to the
Lodi Energy Center 2018 spring outage.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
January 18, 2018



Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Bonnie Gore approving the resolution
authorizing the General Manager to execute agreements and issue purchase orders for maintenance
work related to the Lodi Energy Center (LEC) 2018 Spring Outage, for a total cost not to exceed
$1,798,856. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

Alameda, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner abstained. San
Francisco BART was absent.

19. Resolution 18-06, Provision of Services to East Bay Community Energy, adopt resolution by all
members approving the Revised Services Agreement with East Bay Community Energy, under which
NCPA will supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services to East Bay Community
Energy, including any non-substantive modifications to the Revised Services Agreement approved by
NCPA's General Counsel. NCPA staff also recommends that the Commission authorize NCPA's
General Manager to execute the Revised Services Agreement on behalf of NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: In consideration for NCPA'’s provision of services, EBCE shall pay NCPA an amount
equal to Six Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($640,000.00) for Services rendered during the first
one (1) year period in which NCPA is supplying Services to EBCE. For each subsequent one (1)
year period during the term of the Agreement, the amount charged to EBCE will be escalated at a
rate of two percent (2%) per year.

Tony Zimmer of NCPA gave a presentation on the East Bay Community Energy Services Agreement
and discussed the Facilities Committee recommended changes to the Agreement. A Golden Rod
Addendum Staff Report highlighting the changes to the Services Agreement was provided to the
Commission and discussed in detail.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Pat Kolstad approving the
resolution for the Revised Services Agreement with East Bay Community Energy, under which NCPA
will supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services to East Bay Community Energy,
including any non-substantive modifications to the Revised Services Agreement approved by NCPA's
General Counsel, and authorizing NCPA’s General Manager to execute the Revised Services
Agreement on behalf of NCPA. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members
present.

San Francisco BART was absent.

NEW BUSINESS

Chair Lingl recognized those Members and staff that have January birthdays.

ADJOURNMENT

The January 18, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:06 am.

Respectfully submitted,

1

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
January 18, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of January 18, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA Hati Ao

BIGGS 76_»,__ W

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI

LOMPOC

PALO ALTO

PORT OF OAKLAND /%@6‘/[ Wowg

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

T
D
R
§*

REDDING \\ "

ROSEVILLE

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID

TRANSIT DISTRICT (BART) ) )
SANTA CLARA /7’ %/%/
SHASTA LAKE

/% //%éA




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of January 18, 2018
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
R@ e rf:;ll”&k B iC;\CII‘ 9
M ko7 DoB or Joll N CPA
/\ﬁn ) 1)87/4
' S é/,/ TDALY
e 7 DPv >
(2 C/towui} HEALLSBUA g
Doredk wae«cfef pohf of Oalelond
Ann Hedcle SV P
Liz Kickley Lud;
o (Mevingong/ NTA—
Mornty Boepes WCRA
I o bhleen Hus Les Svf
farr Kp/strc/ Srantr L/acs
I 0f\"\ 2/MM£4/ /VCFA‘
DEBRA LLOYD Prco ALToO
’M(ﬂ?é@? FA‘VW bal o ALR
Noan Datatetr PrRo AT
[AUL  Bllcens G DLeY
GERALY  (CuPP Cwy F SHASA LAWE
\k o /:\)\’0 S _A\am qu\\
/ 22 f o=/ //“/AW o4
Cmgé Sawers Uilal,




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of January 18, 2018
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

AME AFFILIATION
)
(Lot LLehifls Ufad,
- Q&/—YJJ Powegoc N PA
&\V\(A\ o wilpo ¢
\/\olhl Chdwlo Aameda
)iKe Y v 22 Flumas-S;evvq
3 ols ,@LV"DL-‘%H QSM/

éfé L[‘/w' / \ a /Jﬂ/fqﬂﬂ"

\m\m\\‘\}' /?)LJL;\\ pe N CP}% ¢ st ol,r\"i &SN |




NCPA CONSENT CALENDAR

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL
Commission Meeting Date: \ h% \t?

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # ‘O to # \S

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately: b ) I ¢
# (;Zz % “‘Eﬁ -

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS:

Member Iltem Numbers Abstained Vote Absent
Alameda v
BART v
Biggs W
Gridley o
Healdsburg v
Lodi v
Lompoc 27
Palo Alto v’
Port of Oakland i\ v
Redding ) v
Roseville v’
Santa Clara v
Shasta Lake 7
Truckee Donner e
Ukiah v
Plumas-Sierra v©

ATTEST: ( mﬂ/ )% JL“
CaryA w’ﬁget&

Assistant Secretary to the Commission




“NCPA

| | \ \
50 )

ANNIVERSARY ¥

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web Www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: O

Date: February 22, 2018
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: January 31, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



P 651 Commerce Drive
// - N Roseville, CA 95678
/S Mcea

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

ANNIVERSARY

Minutes

Date: February 1, 2018

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: January 31, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

Call meeting to order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Mike
Brozo at 9:01 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference and/or on-
line presentation were Alan Hanger (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert (Gridley),
Terry Crowley (Healdsburg), and Monica Padilla (Palo Alto). Those attending in person are
listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Commitiee Representatives from BART, Port of
Oakland, Santa Clara, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was
established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

2,

Approve minutes from the January 3, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting and the January
11, 2018 Facilities Committee Special Meeting. A motion was made by Shannon McCann
and seconded by Melissa Price recommending approval of the January 3, 2018 Facilities
Committee Meeting minutes, and the January 11, 2018 Facilities Committee Special Meeting
minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Palo
Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

CT1 Alameda Outage Update — CT Staff provided an informational update regarding the CT1
Alameda Unit 1 Outage. Currently the CT1 Alameda Unit 1 is on an outage for the repair of
baffle exhaust seals that were damaged. Since the exhaust seals were not able to be replaced
without removal of the gas turbine rotor, the outage will continue through February 14, 2018.
During removal of the rotor, disassembly of the compressor showed impact damage on Stage 9
and 10. The repair work for this damage will also be included in the scope of work for this unit.
This unit is still on schedule to be back online by February 15, 2018.

Approval of NCPA Solar Project Phase 2 Agreement — Staff presented background
information and was seeking a recommendation for approval of the NCPA Solar Project 1
Phase 2 Agreement. The Agreement encompasses site selection, technical/financial



evaluation, and site development for a fleet of solar photovoltaic (PV) plants to be located within
participating member territories. The Agreement describes four sub-phases, beginning with site
selection and feasibility analysis that will lead to a critical Go/No-Go decision point early in the
process. This will enable a participant to withdraw from the project early on should their desired
site(s) be deemed unfeasible for whatever reason, while minimizing their investment in the
project. Also described is the cost allocation method; participants will be charged costs directly
related to their site(s) development plus a percentage of the project’'s general costs based on a
capacity-based GES. The agreement was reviewed during a web meeting for all potential
participants January 12. The agreement will be taken to the Commission for approval February
22, and launch date as early as February 23.

Motion: A motion was made by Melissa Price and seconded by Alan Hanger recommending
Commission approval of 1) the Second Phase Agreement for the NCPA Solar Project 1; and 2)
Authorize the NCPA General Manager to execute the Second Phase Agreement for the Solar
Project 1 on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications approved by NCPA’s
General Counsel. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg,
Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. The motion passed.

5. Nexant Cost Allocation Model Billing Determinants — Staff reviewed the Nexant Cost
Allocation Model proposed changes, and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of the billing determinants that will be used in the FY2019 Nexant Cost Allocation
Model.

The proposed changes for the model include: 1) Exclude Internal Final Schedules (IFS) that
have not changed from Day Ahead as the IFS are automatically populated each day. Only the
subset that are adjusted in real time represent actual work; 2) Exclude Unit Contingent Bilateral
Load Uplift Obligation Schedule Counts since these REC transactions are already accounted for
in contract counts; and, 3) Count the EDF Real Time Load Following deals as unique deals for
each day. Counting the EDF Real Time LF deals as monthly transactions concentrated contract
counts and skewed excessive costs towards actual monthly deals that take less work to
schedule and track due to monthly nature.

Since a quorum was not established for this item, the committee asked those in attendance if
they support recommending Commission approval of the proposed modifications presented at
this committee meeting and billing determinants that will be used in the FY2019 Nexant Cost
Allocation Model. Those in attendance that support NCPA’s recommendation are: Alameda,
Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. A staff report and resolution
will be taken to the next Commission Meeting for approval on February 22, 2018.

6. New Services Staffing Update — Staff provided an update with an analysis of the budget,
staffing, and the operational impacts associated with the expansion of Power Management
services on a fee for service basis. This analysis is being done to report on the agency’s ability
to support the continued growth of services on a fee basis, and to identify when additional
staffing, facilities, and operational modifications will be necessary to support the continued
expansion of fee-based services.

The services being provided impact staff in both the Power Management Division and the
Administrative Services Division. As a result, impact assessments were performed in both
divisions. Positions included in the analysis were in Dispatch and Scheduling, Planning and
Pre-Scheduling, and Contracts and Interconnection Affairs, for Power Management, and

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
January 31, 2018



Information Services and Settlements for the Administrative Services Division. Operational
impacts include office space, where additional staffing needs have been identified, and the
NERC/WECC compliance standards, which will most likely change from low impact to a medium
impact rating, with the additional services being provided.

This analysis report is 90% complete. Staff will bring a final report to next month’s committee
meeting. Please contact NCPA staff with any feedback, and support that your utility needs.

7. Planning and Operations Update —

- The TO18 TAC trial is underway in Washington, DC. The trial should be finishing up by the
end of the week. Litigation is leading to a better outcome than expected.

- Order 890 — Not much happening with this currently due to the TAC trial. A meeting has
been scheduled with PG&E February 26 to discuss a redline version of the planning and
tariff process. Southern California Edison (SCE) has made a filing at FERC to modify its
planning process, in an attempt to ensure its planning process is compliant with the
standards required under Order 890. All affected filed protests. NCPA has asked for
consolidation with SCE or a technical conference.

- New Services Update — PCWA scheduling services started January 1. Pioneer Community
Energy services will start tomorrow, February 1. Testing has been going on all week, and
things have been going well for integration of services. NCPA sent a services contract to
East Bay Community Energy for execution. San Jose CCA is still very interested in
obtaining services from NCPA. The city is in discussions with their board, which could delay
services until 2019. Discussions are currently in progress with South Feather Water &
Power for services beginning in 2020 when their PG&E contract expires.

- NCPA has a new 50" Anniversary logo this year. Celebrations will continue throughout the
year for this historic milestone.

- The Geothermal Plant is requesting PG&E send outage requests ahead of time for better
planning of their outages.

- The Hydroelectric Project has a current snowpack at 21% of normal, which is a bit higher
than during the very dry year of 2014-2015. The current forecast is for a drier than normal
year.

8. Schedule next meeting date — The next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for
February 28, 2018.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 11:30 am.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
January 31, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
January 31, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Caveie YoUo L A
Dave Wocdiiun AN CPA—

4 : L/ OCPH

/_'(,‘;f,« }/ﬁ-z/t: I Acrh—
Whichod! DeDory;]” N CPA
Rod, KMipwever Webn
Maha\en?ma LodA

A Lucid ac\t WNC A
6\"\6\(\0'\0% M “Cann 6\032/\/;“‘2,
NMosty See NCRA
Beb Coperncht N PA
[liche] Uhitney NP

/[/)7 Z//W/77'Z'l,—’ /V(/ﬂ‘




Northern California Power Agency
January 31, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

[
o fuluil

LOMPOC

PALO ALTO :

b

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC {-;’?77 i Z; 2 /' /% o
L LA 4 j

PORT OF OAKLAND

ROSEVILLE

SANTA CLARA

TID




Iy e

PANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

February 14, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 22, 2018

SUBJECT:

January 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\Q

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth =< E\_LMETHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc

Rapid Transit

City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

(]
a
City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC
O
|
O

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o 0O O

O

O

SR: 111:18



January 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)
February 14, 2018

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the February 22, 2018 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is
a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited January 2018 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

?spectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 111:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of January 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,030,517
5,301,264
48,015
519,447
7,000,854
23,353,868

$ 37,253,965




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2018 58%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,583,190 % 11,625,680 $ 156,603,994 75% (a)

Debt Service (Net) 3,188,179 22,317,254 38,258,150 58%
Annual Budget Cost 4,771,369 33,942,934 53,862,144 63%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 1,706,384 13,485,887 27,184,263 50%

Debt Service (Net) 411,312 2,879,183 4,935,743 58%
Annual Budget Cost 2,117,696 16,365,070 32,120,006 51%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 237,114 2,726,555 2,848,552 96% (b)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 62,973 757,235 834,641 91% (c)

Other Plant Cost 138,648 1,434,054 2,095,083 68% (c)

Debt Service (Net) 474,410 3,320,871 5,692,922 58%
Annual Budget Cost 676,031 5,612,160 8,622,646 64%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 3,422,745 19,673,748 14,877,170 132%  (d)

Other Plant Cost 2,755,281 13,866,771 19,794,554 70% (d)

Debt Service (Net) 2,181,150 15,389,470 26,416,640 58%
Annual Budget Cost 8,359,176 48,929,989 61,088,364 80%
Member Resources - Energy 4,165,302 30,554,622 53,389,034 57%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 281,604 2,089,541 3,457,156 60%
Western Resources 1,388,323 12,246,710 30,119,880 41%
Market Power Purchases 3,159,216 15,876,315 19,318,025 82% (e)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 19,152,671 122,987,699 233,822,294 53%

Net GHG Obligations - 518,780 445,917 116%  (f)
44,308,502 291,750,375 499,094,018 58%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 324,163 2,289,227 2,466,609 93% (@)
Wheeling Access Charge 7,849,181 60,227,896 96,760,295 62% (h)
Ancillary Services 250,431 2,289,779 2,639,380 87% (i)
Other Charges 1,794,167 8,629,085 1,058,438 815% )
10,217,942 73,435,987 102,924,722 1%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 93,596 948,758 1,976,008 48%
Regulatory Representation 66,634 374,151 837,639 45%
Western Representation 42,981 288,860 829,636 35%
Member Services 40,152 204,800 436,078 47%

Judicial Action 377,584 544,058 625,000 87% (k)



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2018 58%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 430,804 3,063,031 5,864,452 52%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 180,001 1,327,722 2,647,017 50%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 24,965 174,203 424,174 41%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 70,655 489,151 1,151,828 42%
Green Power Project 160 1,241 17,746 7%
Gas Purchase Program 6,108 34,305 88,131 39%
Market Purchase Project 7,013 49,292 130,141 38%
Energy Risk Management 14,749 69,511 206,836 34%
Settlements 47,887 315,121 774,377 41%
Integrated Systems Support 2,618 56,625 318,562 18%
Participant Pass Through Costs 20,003 603,264 1,525,907 40%
Support Services - 83,544 - N/A
1,425,910 8,627,637 17,853,532 48%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 55,952,354 373,813,999 619,872,272 60%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 8,885,371 73,298,746 70,367,243 104% 0]
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 8,957,014 61,499,790 161,018,772 41%
Ancillary Services Sales 547,241 3,022,045 2,731,442 111%  (m)
Western Resource Energy Sales 565,597 16,431,589 18,026,100 91% (n)
Other ISO Revenue 1,867,691 9,900,040 - N/A
Transmission Sales 9,198 64,386 110,376 58%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 881,723 7,339,411 15,712,788 47%
21,713,835 171,556,007 257,966,721 67%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 34,238,519 $ 202,257,992 § 361,905,551 56%

(a) Increase in costs due to unbudgeted outside services related to the dredging of the Beaver Creek reservoir. It is anticipated that costs
will be offset by insurance and FEMA proceeds.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 676% of budgeted MWhs at 1/31/18. Fuel costs, CA ISO
charges, and other variable costs have all increased as a result of increased generation.

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 473% of budgeted MWhs at 1/31/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(d) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 220% of budgeted MWhs at 1/31/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted contracts include Gridley PV, Bart PV, as well as deals
made after the FY18 budget including certain Powerex, Shell, and EDF deals.

(f) Purchases made several months in advance. Percent of budget used expected to level off throughout the year.

(9) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d).

(h) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d).

(i) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d) and corresponding increase in ancillary services sales.

() The large budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(k) Variance due to unbudgeted legal costs.
() Variance due to higher than anticipated 1SO energy sales for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro.

(m) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (¢), (d), and (g) and corresponding increase in ancillary services
costs.

(n) Variance due primarily to $1.26 million in unbudgeted displacement revenue.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other deposits and prepaids

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

January 31,

2018 2017

(in thousands)

21,615 $ 34,627
49,706 30,046
34 14

202 5,515

122 93
9,873 9,554
1,325 2,138
82,877 81,987
40,406 46,196
176,107 164,137
345 299
216,858 210,632
1,504,083 1,501,540
(960,789) (929,909)
543,294 571,631
185 286
543,479 571,917
234,151 241,145
24 44
1,077,389 1,105,725
42,231 51,692
13,506 9,093
55,737 60,785

1,133,126 § 1,166,510




01S°991°T § 9TIEEI’l
9Y9°LE SIL'8T
S 1Y ¥76°6T
£67°CS 8EPSS
(161°9¢) (L¥996)
987°6L £€L9L
6659 09%y
L89°TL €LTTL
8LS610°T 8L9°LT0°1
¥01v96 ¥T9°LT6
00€°8YL 786 70L
06%°LT 0€6°ST
ovsovl 1Z1°Th1
YLLLS 68549
yLY S8 #S0°001
TWe's L66Y
060°6¢€ 012 1H
8€L61 8V 1T
£66 890°T
118804 $ 1£8°1€
(spuesnoyj ur)
L10T 810¢

‘1€ Arenue(

NOLLISOd LAN ANV SHOYNOSHY 0
SMOTANI ARYIAAA ‘SALLITIEVIT TVIOL
NOILISOd LaN TVLIOL
paroLISalUN)
porLIsay
s1asse [e3des ur JusunsaAul 13N
NOILISOd L3N

SIINOSTY A0 SMOTINI IIIHIdd TV.LOL
S[BLISJOp UOISUSJ
sypa1o A101e[n3oy
SHOYNOSHY JO SMOTINI ATHIHIIA

SHILI'TIEVIT TVIOL

SAILITIIVIT INTHIND-NON TVIOL
12U “igop wie)-3uo]
Aniqer dems oyer jsaru]
sysodap 1oy10 pue soA10sa1 unjeradQ
Ayryrqer) vorsuad 1N
SHILITIGVIT INHINO-NON

SHILITIIVIT INTNO TVIOL
o[qeAed 1se191ul panIdOY
199p wiIe3-3uoj Jo uonod JuaiIn)
soasasal Sunerad
SOOUBAPE JOqUIS]A
sasuadxo pantooe pue ojqesed sjunodoy

SHILITIEVIT INTIIND

SHILITIEVIT

TILIANVNA

SNOILVIOJIO0D ¥IMOd ALVIDOSSY ANV
AONITDV HHMOd VINIOAI'TVD NYIHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 SINAWHLVLS AINIFINOD



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Seven Months Ended January 31,

2018 2017
(in thousands)
207,804 $ 205,124
133,993 78,319
341,797 283,443
146,488 123,727
45,890 31,974
80,929 56,696
18,076 17,945
12,820 8,431
11,000 10,712
315,203 249,485
26,594 33,958
(25,249) (19,787)
3,598 325
2,743 10,339
(18,908) (9,123)
(2,093) (8,374)
(10,938) (6,778)
(5,345) 9,683
34,060 27,963
28,715 § 37,646




9TI'EEl'T $  9L0°sS1 § I1E10L § LITLE - $ Op9'6Th § €t 8E1°LE 9SIhLE S6£°L8
LEL'SS 9051 : s = - - 96 PSH6E 1€8°1
905°€1 905°€1 - - - - - - - =

| ExAr47 - = - - ¥ - b6 pSP6E 1€8°1
68E°LLOT 0LS'I¥1 rer'ol LIT'LE = 0p9'6Ty €LY'T T61°9¢ T0LvEE ¥95°C8
[ [ - c - . 2 - - 2

[ {98254 6LE9S - - - 0582 & LEETL 898°TY1 LS9
6LV EPS 0£8T 08T G - SEVBYE 960°T L6ELT TLY9EL 696°5€
s8I 8L - = - L01 = = - -

Y6z crs T5LT 08T - = 8TE'YE 960°C L6E°L] Ly9tt 696'S€
(68°096) (926°T) (es¢) = foeLL) (sov'cL) (zorve) ovr'Ly) (L€285T) p61°%ES)
£80°70S'T 8L9's €99 - 9€L'L £6L'ETY 867°9€ €789 60L V6 £91°0LS
86891 902'9L - £05'8C = 860'EE = 06v 808°LY £5L°9T

SvE STt E - - oL - [4 €8 SL
LOT9LL [/AN1Y - SL9'8L 3 161°1€ - 019°€ £vs'ey 916°ST
90t°0F 616'CC - 878'6 L€81 s 8.8 [4184 9L
LL8T8 SH1'9 1586 ¥19°8 - LST'ST LLE 806 pSS'L 1L12C
- (1£0'99) 0LL6 [t = SLO'ET (zeo'T) $9T'T SLY'9 990°L1
STET or8 81 = 2 - E - - L9¥
£L8°6 - - - - o1’z Sop1 ™9 6L0°1 LESY
441 SL - Ly = - - - - =
70T 44 - 131 - - € - - -
vE ve - - - - - = > =
90L'6Y 90L'6 - £ - ? & - - -
S19°'12 $ LLYIT $ €9 § - - $ w $ 1 1 - t
psuiquo) >D=um< mvo_?_om =Ommm_Em=E.H 0:0 .OZ IR >m.‘_u=m~ AU ON Sat[108,] of-ooﬁoOhﬂ)m —ﬂgoﬁsu
Rl ele] Joquioy % 18m0d UOISSTWISURIY, PO 12 fended
PoIBIDOoSSY paseyaing u_n_u_zz

SHOYNOSHY NOISSINSNVYL % ONILYIANTD

8107 ‘1€ Arenuep

UONEWIqUIOD) T paTUIME

SFUNOSHY A0 SMOTLLNO dTIIIIA ANV SIISSY TV.LOL

SEOUNOSHY 40 SMOTALNO AFHAHIHA TV.LOL
S[ELI19JOp UOISUS
199P JO SUIPUNFaI UO 150D SSIOXFY
SEDANOSTY A0 SMOTALNO ATTILIAA

SLASSV TVLIOL

spredad pue susodap 1oyIQ
sjasse AlorenSay
S19SSV YdHLO

INV1d ORMLOA T TV.LOL
ssosFord-ui-ypom uononNsUO)

uonemaldsp pajenunooe 'ss9Y
91135 ut Jueyd oujoalg
INVId ORLOATH

SLASSY QALITILSTd TV.LOL
9[qRALR3I 153133U]
SIUSWNSIAU]
sjuafeanba yseo pue yse)
SLISSY A4.LOTILSTY

SLESSY LNTNIND TV.LOL
sswresSoud 1a1y30 pue Aously woy ang
sosuadxa predaig
sagddns pue A101uaAuf
3|qeALRIA1 JS3I]

LYo

suedpigeg
3]qeAIRI9I SIUNOYOY
SIUSUNSIAUY
sjus[eainba yses pue yse)

SLASSY LNTND

SLASsY

(paniwo 5,000)
SNOLLVIOJY0D YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNADV YAMOJ VINJOAITVD NUIHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INFNALV.LS ONINIFINOD

NOILLVINIOANI TVIDONVNIA YHHLO



EANTIN §  9L0°SH $ 1e1°01 $ LIT'LE $ - § ov9'eTy § e $ SEI'LE $ 9SIvLE $  S6€°L8 $ NOILISOd LAN ANV SAOYNOSTY 40
SMOTANI QHINHAEA ‘SALLITNEYIT TY.LOL

SIL'ST LT TIS6 (PoT'el) = [V (3€5) 208 6¥0°C 9151 NOILLISOd L3N TV.LO1l
v26'6T 88¢ TI56 yoz'el) - 09751 (8¢€5) ovET 857°9 896'6 patosatury
8EY'SS € - . < £9¢°61 g £9°¢ LS'ST 7880 patousay
(L9°98) 9€8 - = 7 (z16°8D) = (18¢°s) (95L°8T) (ree's) sjosse [eided ul JUGUNSIAUL 1N
NOILISOd LAN
€ELOL 189°L 08Z - - 128°1% 952'T 996 891y 19861 SAYNOSHY 40 SMOTINI ATTIIIIA TV.LOL
09y 09b'y - E s - - - - B S[ELIRJOP UOISUI]
€LTTL ee'e 08T - - 128°TY 95T'T 996 891y 198°61 supaio Korenday
STOUNOSTY A0 SMOTINI ATHIHIAA
8L9°LT01 891°91 6€¢€ 18£0S - 80V°TLE SSL 0L9°S€E 6€6°99€ 810°SS SALLITIEVIT TVIOL
$T9°LT6 €6L°0v1 79 05537 g 801 THE = £0€£°0€ SSOTYE £5hEr SAILITEVIT INTIIND-NON TV.LOL
$86'70L - - - - 769°0vE - £0£°0€ 69t°60€ 0Ts'vT 12U ‘1g2p WR-5uo]
0£6°S1 - 3 - - B - 0€6°S1 - Aupqey dems a7e1 159190]
12Tl vOT'9L 79 0558 = 9ILl = - 95991 £€6°81 susodap Jaylo pue saA1s31 FueradQ
68579 68579 - - - - J ] - - Aupqey) uotsusd 1oN
SHLLITEVIT INTHIND-NON
¥50°001 SLE'S LLT 1€8°1C - 000°0€ SSL L9E'S ¥88%C 59511 STLLITIEVIT INAINO TVIOL
166y - - - s 9L8'T - Lb8 6151 39 ajqeded 1sa151ut paruody
[]Eatd - - - - SSE01 = $66°C 019t 0sTY 199p wie}-5uof Jo uorniod LN
8717 - - - - SrS'El LT €1s 05T €179 sanlesal JunesedQ
8901 : LLT = - : 3 - - 16L S30ULAPE JOqUISIA
1€5°1€ § SLE'S $ - $ €8T $ - § pes'e $ 82 $ T $  S0S $ 95T $ sasuadxa paruooe pue sjqeked sjunosoy
SALLITEVIT INTIND
SAILITAVIT
_uu:_n_EOU AUEy mv.uEnm 1SS 1 ISST 11 huﬂ:uU Adzauyg AUQD ON mo_uz_bﬂm um.:uo_uo\-v.a: TBWIaYI03)
Eetle) Joquis]yl % 19M0g PO hse] [ende)
PolROoSSY paseyaing o_nm::z

SEYNOSTI NOISSINSNVUL % ONILVIENTO

8107 ‘1€ A1enuep
(paniwo s,000)
SNOILVHOJI0D YAMOd AHLVIDOSSY ANV
AONAOV ¥AMO0d VINHOIITVD NITHILION

NOILISOd LAN A0 INFWHALV.LS ONINIFWOD

NOILVIAYOANI TVIONVNIL YHHLO



uoneuIqUOY Ul pareurIy ,

SI1L8T [EZAL § TISe s (pozr'el) s - § 11T § (3€S) $ 208 § 6v0°€ § 9ISTI 3 Papua poudd ‘NOILISOd LAN
090%€ (gse) vy (89L°¢) (6v2) 8029 001 S9L L6L'EL €LO°EL Jea4 30 BuuiBeq ‘NOLLISOd LAN
(svE's) $85°1 070's (96t°6) 344 £05°6 (8€9) (€92) (8yL'01) [0249) NOLLISOd LAN NI (ESVZTIIIQ) ISVIAINI
(8g6'01) (see’D) [f22¥4] (zez) - (18yT) 8T (15 (o101 (600°€) SINVJIOLLYVd OL SONNAFY
(£60'7) (6v0) - - 69T 861°1 - (vL) (1p1'e) (L) SINNOWY FTEVIIAQDTY TINLNT

(806°81) 0€8°1 [3 6t - (1v0°L) - (1z1°1) (1og°el) 10T SHNNFATS (SHSNAIXT) ONILVYEJO NON TV.LOL
EvLT v9T - T - 3 [x431 c 068 €9 I PO
865°E 995°1 8T 132 - 394 : (6) LSy 609 awodul 1S9

(6v7'sT) - - - - (L10°6) = (200'D) (1z8'er) (60t) asuadxa 1s3103u]

SANNIATY (SHSNAIXH) ONLLVYIIO NON

¥65°9C 6E€T TET'L (85L°8) = LT8LI (990°T) €80°1 0IL9 LTET SANNIATY ONILVIIIO LAN

€0T°S1€E (o1r°1) 8516 L19°€2T - LLI'EY 696T p65°E 665°LL S0T°91 SASNAIXT ONILVYIIO TV.LOL

- - (72 - - 951 €9 3 Lt (65€) 4100 ‘saseyound (safes) Auedwiodsatu]

00011 L6z’ 880" - - L9¥T LSV 61% 16L°1 SLO'E [eJ3UT pUE AANBLSWIIPY

02821 - €€ - . 6LT°T L06 1§43 8599 09T SOUBUIUIBIN

9.0'81 181 34 - - ¥Ts's L0l 6821 SL9'S SLTT uoneiaidoq

67608 - € £1008 - 8€9 14 @ 08 691 UOISSIUSUBL],

068°Sy - 150°S 060°C 2 816°ST Wil LN LOZT'T see'g suopesadg

88v°9p1 - - IS THE - s6l‘e 992 $9€ 170t 801 Jamod paseyaing
SASNIIXE ONILY YO

L6LTYE 553 06291 658FI1T S 0019 €061 L9y 60£YT T€S81 SANNIATY ONILYEIJO TY.LOL

£66°€€1 - yib's $08°1S S 6¥1°8€ SPSl 0el'l SLYLY 9yT81 Aued-piy 1 940

v08°L0T L 44 § ovsol $  §50°€91 $ - $ $$8'TT § 8¢ § LbS'E § vE9'9 $ 982 $ swedionreg
SANNFATE ONILVIO

pauIquIo) AOUISY SIDIAIG UOISSIISURL], UOISSIWSURL], 181ua)) ATIoUy uQ ON sanioe] OUI09[0IPAH [BULRLI0dD
tel) Iaquisy 2 1oMog 1poT 10 fevde)
PoIRIDOSSY paseyaung sy

SEYNOSTA NOISSTWSNVIL 28 DNILVYEINTD

8107 ‘[€ Arenuef pIpug SYIUOI UIAIS 913 10
(pa3nwo s,000)
SNOLLVIO&I0D ¥AMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AJNADY HAMOd VINYOII'TVD NYAHLUON

NOILLISOd LAN NI SAONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAANIATE 40 INFIWILV.LS ONINIFINOD

NOLLVINYOANI TVIDNVNIA YIHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
January 31, 2018

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 236,163

PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 236,163

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2018.xIsxJan Rpt 2018



ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

February 14, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

February 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended January 31, 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

e

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra AinsworthQ_METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah []
San F’a““i;‘;;i':?’r:n’:; O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-SierraREC [J
City of Biggs (1 City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD O
City of Healdsburg [1 City of Santa Clara [] Other [

SR:112:18




Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending January 31, 2018
February 14, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $4,144,915 of which approximately $87,472 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $862,548 to Debt Service and $3,194,895 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $283,685,383 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $280,307,987.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.372% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.391%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $146,475,000. January maturities totaled $49 million and monthly receipts totaled
$30 million. During the month $47 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 1 basis point (from 1.42% to
1.43%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 3 basis points (from 1.76% to 1.79%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of January 31, 2018 are
in compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Ny

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 112:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

JANUARY 31, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report
Cash & Investment Balance

January 31, 2018
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 1,759,916 $ 96,684,019 98,443,935 34.20%
Special Deposits 1,418,241 - 1,418,241 0.49%
Construction 16,738 4,952,516 4,969,254 1.73%
Debt Service 862,548 28,401,048 29,263,596 10.17%
Special & Reserve 87,472 153,647,800 153,735,272 53.41%
$ 4,144,915 $ 283,685,383 287,830,298 100.00%
Portfolio Investments at Market Value 280,307,987

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
January 31, 2018
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 28,991,012 $ 230,163 $ 24,810,000 $ (20,940,459) $ (26,842,647) $ (6,004,047) $ 244,022
Special Deposits 1,091,581 7 - (9,882,054) - 8,793,929 3,463
Construction - 15,231 - - - - 15,231
Debt Service - 2,540 14,562,349 (7,355,997) (19,723,673) 6,417,903 (6,096,878)
Special & Reserve - 408,801 9,365,313 - (575,198) (9,207,785) (8,869)

$ 30,082,593 $ 656,742 $ 48,737,662 $ (38,178,510) § (47,141,518) $ - $ (5,843,031)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary
January 31, 2018

(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 26,842,647 §$ (24,810,000) $ (604) $ - $ - 2,032,043
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - - 612 - - 612
Debt Service 19,723,673 (14,562,349) 27,762 - - 5,189,086
Special & Reserve 575,198 (9,365,313) (11,290) - - (8,801,405)
$ 47,141,518 $ (48,737,662) $ 16,480 $ - $ - (1,579,664)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (16,480)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity (1,596,144)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

January 31, 2018
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.372% 1.391%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.350% 1.302%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.665% 1.688%
Capital Facilities 1.752% 1.754%
Hydroelectric 1.482% 1.459%
Lodi Energy Center 1.779% 1.466%
INTEREST RATES
250
KEY INTEREST RATES
PRIOR
CURRENT YEAR
Fed Fds (Ovrnight) 1.42% 0.66% | 025 " L
T-Bills (90da.) 1.43% 0.51% 0.00 i
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.44% 0.53% Aug Sep oct Nov DS san
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.79% 0.81%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.86% 0.81%
T-Notes (3yr.) 2.21% 1.48% TBILL {80D4) FED FUNDS
~tr=— TBILL (1YR) e TNOTE (3YR)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
January 31,2018
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ 4,016 $ 4510 $14,860 $ $ 23,745 $ 140,465 $ - $ 187,596 65.77%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - - - 6,010 - 6,010 2.11%
US Bank Trust Money Market 150 - - - - - 150 0.05%
Commercial Paper 18,904 - - - - - 18,904 6.63%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 52,357 - - - - - 52,357 18.36%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 2,394 - - - - - 2,394 0.84%
U.S.Treasury Bill - - 17,739 78 - - 17,817 6.25%
Certificates of Deposit - 10 - - - - 10 0.00%
Total Dollars $ 77,821 $4,520 $32,599 $0 $23,823 $146,475 $0 $ 285,238 100.00%
Total Percents 27.28% 1.58% 11.43% 0.00% 8.35% 51.35% 0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



wd gg:} 8L0Z/THZO0

0 1G00L LS00LSAS O 0000 L 0 £102/L0//0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
165°29¢ 61002 6L00/SAS 16G'29¢ 2000 L 165°29¢ €10Z/L0/L0  ZOO0 165'29€ 208n oji[ed Jo yueg uoun
629'155'CC 20002 0000/SAS 6Z9°L5S'TZ vozT'L 3 629°155'22 €102/10/20 fLer Al 629'155'CZ Ellal unsanu| Aousby (eo
aAIasay Bunelad jesauan

sve'svL'iz $ 7€6'658°9  § 8ve'L 8ve oze'sLL'Lz $ S8Z'L [(TATINT A ] abeJaAy pue jejo) puny
000'£60'S 16892 6ELED9ELE ZLLLLE'Y 05e’L 806 0202/82/.0  000°/60'S 910Z/82/.0  0SE'L 000'260'S 008n B |euoneN |esspad
000'860°G 0££9Z S6rOOSELE ZLP'SLO'S 0se’L €9 6102/82/04  000'860°G 9102/82/v0  0SE'L 000'860'G o08n By [euoneN |esepa
850'0.6'¢ 18192 PLACOSELE 0L2'PS6'E 69¢°L 662 8L0Z/L2IL L 0E9'000' viozieLzL  Sz9'L 000'296'¢ o08n By jeuoneN |esepad
000'0L5'Y £229¢ ZISSYOELE 8OV'YOS'Y 000'L s8 gL0Z/LZir0  000'0LS' S102//2Iv0 000'} 000'0LS' 208n eg UBOT BWOH [esepad
0 85004 8500.SAS 0 0000 L 0 €10Z/L0/20 0000 0 asn ueg sn
6EF'VE £200. £200/SAS 6EV'VE $00°0 L 65p'vE €10Z/L0/20 000 6EV'PE o08n oyfeQ Jo yueg uolun
1G8'6EY'S z200L TZO0LSAS 158'6EV'8 [l 3 158°6Er'8 £L0Z/10/L0  YOT'L 1G8'6EY'8 Elal] wisaau] Aouaby (o0
juno22y Buiduejeg ydos

82L29  $ 8zL29  $ S0Z'L 3 8zL29 S0T'L 8zL2s $ abeJany pue fejo) pung
82,29 Sb00L SP00/SAS 82229 voz'L ! 82.'29 €Loz/L0/L0  YOT'L 82L'29 wyseAu] AousBy [e207
109y uonony 9HO ddiN

009'65L'LL  $ 08z'195°0L $ 0611 6.8 1z'osz'lL $ ore'L oeL'voL'LL  § afie1oAy pue [eJOL pung
000202 £0v9T ZEAVOPELE  L90°L6L 00z ssv'l 2202/92/L0 000202 LL0ZIOSIO  00Z'T 000202 208n N Ueo suwioH (eiepad
000'005'e 58292 YHAVOVELE 060°09€'E 0054 662"} 120Z/€2/80  (000'00S'E€ oLoz/iez/LL 005t 000°00S'€ 208an N U0 SUWioH [BiBpad
022'019°C [eTeTA SUSHIEELE ZLL'LYS'Z 0z9'} Lz L202/921/0  ¥8L'L19'T 1102/82/80  QZL'L 000'209'2 208an Wpa1) wie |eseped
vev'zas's SGE9T 08d8VOELE 816'695°L LyL €80°L 120T/6LL0  80L'18LL 9L0zI6LIL0 0oVl 000'682'L 208N eg UBOT SWOH [esepad
601'886'7 99v9Z 9MLEVOELE bTI'006'F 06’ L 168 020T/LLIL0  €L£'066'F 1102/82/80  009'L 000°GL6'y 204n Bg UBOT BWOH |eJopad
921°806'6 1£29C LOavaele 262'2€8'6 ost'L €8 6L0Z/0E/SO  006'€86'6 S10Z/60/90  OSL'L 0000286 o08n A UBOT SWOH [B1epad
L1L'5e9'e 08292 Ord43€€LE  190°L19'E 00E'L 162 8L0T/6L/ILL  BYE'YZIE sioziveieL 062l 000'929°¢ 0080 WpaI) uued [esopa4
0000 90€0€ 90E0ESAS 000°CH 0500 ] 8L0Z/L0/#C  000'0L 8L0T/L0/L0 0500 000°04 asn Rued Sn
¥9.'688'C 00592 0TLS8EELE G12'688'T 98T'L 44 8L02/ETZ0  T9E'E88'T LL0ZIOEILL  S9T'L 000'268°C o08n e UBOT BLIOH [esepad
1pE'SIE'L 95002 9S00LSAS Lbe'sis’l 009°0 3 1pE'SLE'L 2102/v2/I80 0090 rE'S18'L asn sueg sn
r16'65L'L 05002 0G00LSAS ¥16'6GL°+ 1000 ! rL6'65L') €L0Z/08/90 1000 716'65L°L asn Aueg Sn
0es'stL #1002 ¥100/SAS 0£6'8LL 2000 ! 0£6'8LL €L02/L0/L0 2000 0e6'slL 008N oji[eQ Jo yueg uoiun
Sr9'658'7L 00002 0000/SAS S¥9'658'%L [rat L S9'658'v 1 €LOZILOIL0  ¥OT'L S9'658'PL Ellal wysaAuf Aouaby (200
00688021 10104 LOLOLSAS 006'880°L} 0580 L 006'880"2L vL0Z/I9z/LL 0S80 006°880°2L asn ¥'N Mueg sn
anjep Buikuey # Juaunsaau| dISND  enjen e PIBIA Kunen aeq @ougd sjeq ey enjep pejels uelpojsny / 8ajsni ) 1onssy

Atnb3 o3 sheg Aunjep paseyaing aseyaing jsassju|
puog
Bugesadp
8L0Z/LE/LO

| obed

poday s ainseal]
Kouaby Jamod eiuiojijen uiayuonN

AINIEY HIMDE VNSOV NESKIBIN



Apranienb ajqeyed
Apapenb siqeqed
Apapenb siqejen
Apapuenb ajqejen
Apauenb ajqejen
awnAue a|qe|ed
awnAue a|qe|e)
awAue ajqejed
swpAue ajqejied
Apauenb ajqe)ed
Apapenb ajqejjed

wd gg:L 8i0z/2LiZ0

JNTHd €0p9T# JuBWIsaAU]
JWHA 209Z# JualulsaAul
JINTHL SBE9ZH JBWISIAUY
VIAIND 89€9T# JUBWIISIAU|
VIAIND £SE9ZH JUBLUISBAU]
9344 9S€9Z3# JusWISaAU|
91Hd SSE9CH# JUBWISIAY|
81Hd PSEITH JUaWisaAuL
9244 SEEITH WIWISAAUY
VINING ZEEITH# Juaunsanu]
VIAIND OEETT# JudUISIAUY

8L0Z/LE/L0 4O SE Jewinof J28iS [JeM Y} wouy sasud piq Jo SJUBWSIER}S URIPO)SNY [a3)SM L Wolj sasud uo paseq S| anjep JadJe JuaLng

‘payjaw JoBX3 U asn S1aYjo [|e ‘poylaw ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjew o} SYIUOW g UBY} SS3| YIIM SJUSWISIAU]
*sadA} [|e usamiaq uosuedwod 1o} siseq e aplaoid 0} seak Aep §og e UO paseq Umoys st AjLnjejy o) pjaIA juajeainb3 puog,

zZoL'eov'vil § 605'v2ETLL $ zoe'L 4] S90'VE9'VLL $ ose’l 086°LLE'VLL § :STYLOL ANVHD
9gy'L60'9L $ e9s‘ove'vL. $ Jriat vzl 90zZ'I9L’9L  § Sl 922'600°9L abeJany pue |ejo) puny
89Z'629'c 19¥92 69D6LEELE  1Z9'LLS'E 09L't 065t 2Z0T/0L/90  095'vE9'E 102182180 SZLT 000°5.6' 204an Bg UBO] SWOH |esepad
000'29% 20v9z ZEAVOVELE 965'SSh 00Z'2 Ssy'L 2202/92/L0  000'/9% 110Z/0EI0 00T 000'29% 208N 1N UEOT BWoH |elepad
000'629'04 Se£9z GHOOIEELE 696'6VE0L 069't 212 1202/20/30  000'629°04 9L0Z/Z090  069'L 000'629'04 208N Upa1Q) wied [esepad
000°00€"} 89€9C EMEEDIELE  OVT'09C'L 005t [T 120Z/82/S0  000'00E't 9L0Z/0€/80 00§} 000'00€'L o08n Byl [euoneN (e1opad
000'z9L's ZEE9T SINEDYELE 968'9L0°S SZ9'L 602'L L202/52/S0 000'29L'S 9L0z/5T/S0 STI'L 000'29L's 2080 By (euoneN (essped
68r'yLL'9L $5£92Z 08d8VOELE b6L'852'OL LipL £€80'L L20zZ/6LIL0 OP9'LLL'OL 9L0Z/6LIL0  00F'L 000'0ZL'94 208N eg UBOT SWOH [esepag
£21'282' 95£92 LdINDIEELE  209'2GL'Y gov'L £80°L Lzoz/BLL0  slz'ose'y 9L02/0ZII0  OFb'L 000'582'Y 2080 IpeLD e [eseped
610'0L0'S 9pz9z TAZOOGELE 6LL'OVB'Y oer'L €99 6L0Z/9Z/LL  YOE'IVO'S S10Z/82/180  OSL'L 000'286'% o08an By [eUOeN (RJBpa]
L1e'86'S 88192 YIAOOSGELE G10'6S6'S ost'L 662 8L0g/L2L  102'600'9 vLOZIEZIZL  ST9'L 000'026's 008N By |euoneN jelspad
anjep Builuen # JuaLupsanuy dISND  anjep jaxel PISIA Aumey ajeq 2oUd ajeq B anjeA pajels uelpojsny j aajsnit Janssj
AInbg o) sheg funjep paseyoing aseyasng jsasauy
Jpuog
anlasay BunesadQ [esousn
8L02Z/LE/L0

Z 9bed

Aouaby Jamod elulojijen WayuoN

uoday s Jainseal}

AJNI9Y UADS VINEDIYD NYIHLUON £



we zeoL

8102/50/20

000°'L¥6 ¥0r9T ZEAVOPELE 120’816 002C sSSPl TC0zTiozi0 000'LY6 LLOZIOENLO 002 000'L6 204N W\ UBOT BWOH [esopad
000'00L'6 69€92 EMEEDIELE PLE'COV'6 Q0S'L zizL L2ozreziso 000'00.'6 u_.ow\om\wo 00S°L 000'002'6 204N By jeuoneN [esepad
0 65002 6G00/SAS 0 0000 | 0 €1L02/L0/20 0000 0 asn Aueg sn
9v6'0l ¥E00L YE00LSAS 9v6'0L 2000 L 9r6'0L £102/L0/20 2000 o9v6'0L 208n ojifed Jo yueg uolun
769'c2L 1200/ 1Z00/SAS 269'€TL voz'L A T69'€TL €10Z/10/20  ¥OT'L 269'€2L Elal wysanu| AousBy (eoo
aAlasay Bujuolssiwwosag 099

000005  $ 096°L6V°L  $ oSty 862 000°005°L osb'L 000°005°L  § abelaAy pue ejo] pung
000'005'} 20€92 OMIBOPELE  096°L6Y'L osh'h 862 8102/92/LL  000'00S't 9L0Z/92/c0  0SL'L 000'005°L 208N N UEOT] SBWOH [Bleped
0 £9002 €900/SAS 0 0000 3 ] €102/L0/.0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
0 GL00L SLO0LSAS 0 2000 L 0 £1L02/10//0 2000 0 2080 oji(eD Jo yueg uolun
0 Z€002 ZE00LSAS 0O 95€'0 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0  95E0 s} Elval wisaAuj Aousby (2007
aAlasay [e19adg |ewiayjoe)

ols'ivz $ esv'lvz  § yes'L i 182'1ve 2051 ooo‘cvz  $ abeseAy pue jejo) pungy
§59'65 11592 SINd9B.ZLE  L¥9'SS obs'L i 810Z/82/90  Z59'SS 8LOZ/LEND OIS 000'95 18sn Anseal] '§'n
§58's8L zL592 SIND9B.ZL6  2Z8'S8L Ze5L i 8102/8Z/90  629'S8) 8LOT/EO/L0  66F'L 000281 18sn Ainseall 'g'n
82IAI9G JgaQ V9102 099

ez ¢ veLzzL % Wws'L i s0z'121L ols’L 000'szk  $ abeIaAy pue jejoL pung
Lz 61592 SINd9BLZL6 6L LZL ovs'L g 8102/182/00  S0T'.2L 8LOZ/LELG OIS 000'8Z4 14sn Anseas) ‘SN
9JIAISS 180 V10T 099

£€89'9LS'L  § §60'9L5'L  $ 1Z5°L 8yl £20'5LS°L 68’1 000'925‘L  § abelaAy pue [ejoL pund
009'€£2 60592 ZAASBEELE B8TZ'eEZ ost'L [X-18 81L02/20/L0  9.T'€ET 410Z/82I2L - 0TVl 000'GEC 18sn eg ueoT SWoH [elapsd
165'€EZ 22592 SING96/2L6  0Z5'€€2 ovs't pids 810Z/82/190  L¥S'e€T SLOZ/LENO Ol 000'5£2 18sn Anseall ‘SN
ZeS'6V0'L 0L59¢ SWJO6LZLE  LYE'6YO'L zes'L pids 8102/82/190  952'8v0'L 8L0Z/E0/L0  66V'L 000'950°} 1asn Ainseas] 's'n
92IAI9S 13 fewlayjoas)

Lvv'ces § £90'ce8  § osv'L oElL 051188 ozr'L 000’888  $ abelaAy pue |ejo) puny
L¥p'e88 z0592 V.ZAXSBEELE €90'€88 oSl oel 8L0Z/LLIG0  0S¥'L88 210Z/90/2L  OZ¥'L 000888 asn eg Ueo" SWOH [esoped
anjep builuey # JUBWIIS3aAU| dISND  8njeA 3axJey [YEITN Aunep ajeq 2oud ajeq ayey anjeA pajeis ueIlpoJSN) f a3)snu} 1anssy

Atnbg 0} sheq funep paseyaing aseyaind Jsasauf
puog
pung uolonasuo) Z10¢ 039
8LoZ/LE/Lo

| ebed

uodoy sJainseal)

Aouaby Jamod elulojijen uisyuoN

AINICY YIMIS VINSOINYD NBIHIBON ..\

VdON /



116'999°9Z  §

we zg:0l 8102/50/20

swnhue ajqefie) -ouj 3yddy 669ZH JUBUISIAUY
Appaienb ajqejied  DINTHA YOVIZH JuBWISaAL)
Apauenb ajqejle)  VINNA 69E9T# JUaWISAAU
Apsuenb sjgejied  VINNG €EE9ZH# usunIsaAU]
Apauenb ajgejied  DINTHA ZOEJE# JudWIsaAU|

QLOZ/LE/LO 3O SE [BLINO[* J931)S [{BM 243 Wiouy seoud piqg Jo SJUSWSIE)S URIPOISNY [39)stu ] Wolj saoud uo paseq si enjep Jodel Jusund

‘poyial JoeXa Ue asn s13Yio [[e ‘poyjaw ajewixosdde ue asn Ajunjew o} SYIUOL 9 UBL} SSB| LY)IM SJUBLIIS3AU}
‘sadA} ||e usamjaq uosiedwod 10} siseq & aplaosd 0} Jeak Aep Gg¢ e Uo paseq umoys si junjey o3 pJatA Juejeanbl puog,

‘Tse'evi'oc  $ 889’1 8LoL 8€6°159'9Z S99't 8€9°269'9 $ ‘$TVLOL GNVYD
ssp'iss’t  $ SL5°L 8 vzo'l 98Ll cov'Iss’t  § €291 000'85S'L  $ abesaAy pue jejo) pung
000°2LS'L £€€9C GINEDOELE  LSE'VIV'L SZ9'L 602'L L202/52/S0  000'LLS'L 9102/52/50  STI'L 000°2LS'L 1asn Bi jeuOKEN [esepad
SSi'ov 11692 €3d96.216 00V'OF v6s'L 80€ 8L0Z/90/TL  £OY'OF 810Z/€0/L0  SSS'L 000'ty asn Anseall 's'N
IUNOJJ2Y WSA VZ10Z 099
ole’zar'e  $ wr'sey'e $ 8LVl 195 lzs'isp'e $ 6.1 000‘69p'c ¢ ebesaAy pue |ejol pung
$89'€05'C 16192 SWAVIALELE 902'8LY'T 0es’) 809 6L0Z/20/0L  6E8'E8Y'T §l0z/LZIz0 0ST'L 000°G15'C 1asn WA UBOT SWOH eJepad
929'L 16 8229 1OAVIALELE SES'E06 pse'L €8y 6L0T/0E/S0  988°0Z6 SLOZ/Z0/I%0  0SL'L 000'206 14asn N Ue0T BWoH [esepad
000'91L 8692 ori96LZL6  000'9L oLl 0 8L0Z/L0/Z0  896'SL 210282141 660°L 000'9L asn Anseas] 'sn
000°LE 6v¥9C or196/2L6  000°LE 080°L 0 8L0Z/L0/Z0  8Z8'0E 2102/82/1.0  090'L 000'LE asn finseal] 's'N
190V 9A19S9Y 9IIAISS 1090 0D
loe'sLe'Ll § €L0'9v6'9L  $ ne'L vezL s00°82€'2L  $ L08'L 8€9'68¢€°2L $ abelay pue [ejo pung
€99'200'9 66¥9¢C LDOEEGLED  O¥O'06R'S 0gET 095'L 2202/L1IS0  /9€'200'9 L102/62/LL 00T 000'0L0'9 008n "ouj 3|ddy
anjep Bulfuen # JudUSaAY)| dISND  anjeA e}y PI2IA Kuney ajeq 20Ud ajeQq ajey anjep paje}g uelpojsny f a9ysni] Janss)
Ainb3 0} sheg Aumep paseyoind oseyoind 1sau03u]
“puog

¢ 9bed

8102/1€/10

Jodsy sJainseal]

Aouaby Joamod eiuiojijen ulsyuoN

aAtasay Buluoissiwwoosag 0an

ATNIDY ¥3ADS VINEDITIVE NHIHIBON /

VdON



we zg:olb

8102/50/20

0 £0002 0000/SAS O 21€°0 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 L0 0 Ellal wisaAuj Auaby 12007
aAlosay [e19adg oIpAH

296'069  § 818'99  § 06L'L S8zl L6s'169 § s8'L 000’689 ¢ afesony pue |ejo) puns
196069 Zer9T EVEEOVELE 818'9/9 06l S8zt 1202/60/80  L6E'L6Y L10Z/82Iv0  S.8')} 000689 asn 1N UB0T SWoH |esepay
JUNo29Y djeqaYy YZ10Z 04pAH

099°22L's  $ Le2'2e9's  $ 699°1 868 age'gel's  § 608'L 000'ck2's $ abesoAy pue [ejo) pung
LPT'IE5'S £r29T 6ZG33EELE BLO'BYY'S 089'L Gle 020Z0/80  /8L'9VS'S SL0Z/8Z/80  0SL'L 000'825'S asn Ypa1) e [esepad
£65°0v} LS¥9z 9DENXEELE EVE'BEL oov'L Sls 6L0Z/L0/L0  109'ZHE 1102/82/20  SlEV 000'sEL asn eg UeoT sWoH |esepad
ozg'sy £.992 Zawee/zle 0LL'6Y esl’L zLL 8L0Z/rTIS0  895'6P L10z/62/180  6SLL 00005 asn Anseall '§N
V0LO0Z A9y 821M98 o 04pAH

yo'cos'yl  $ 1oL'l08'vk  $ ves’L yidh sli'esi'vl ¢ 2051 000°s68'VL  § abesaAy pue [ejo) pung
$29'€56'2 51692 SNd96.ZL6 9.T'€S6'C ors'L yids 810Z/82/90  0S5'€S6'C 8lLOZ/LENO  OLS') 000'226'C 1asn Ansealt ‘SN
Ti6'6v8'LL €1592 SINd9B.CLE SG88'I¥8'LL ZeS'L pAqn 810Z/82/90  $95'G€8'LL 8L0Z/€0/L0 005} 000°€Z6'LL 1asn Anseal} 'S'N
92IAI8S 199 O4pAH

00690y § L69'vH0'y  $ 2T 8z¢ Lro'980'y  $ S6e'L 600'ca0'r  $ abeloAy pue [ej0) pung
62V LhP'T 00€92 LOAd3eELE 2L0'22P'T 090'} S5€ 6L0Z/220  1L0S'0SP'Z oL0Z/Z0/c0  0ST'L 000'LE%'T asn upas) uled [e1epe4
8ZL'LES'L 68192 PLAQOSELE /81925 L osv'L 66¢ 8L0z/LeI L PbEBES'L vLoziZLweL  Sz9'L 000'625'+ asn Bi |euoleN fesepes
€15'96 £0592 Trd9sLTie 7696 [T o9zL 9L0Z//0/90  962°96 21021202k SEVL 000°26 asn Anseal) 's'n
saij1oed [eniu) oipAH

615'8€9'9L  $ gLe'Zls'or  $ 9ll’L [:1%3 615'869'9L § 9Lt 6ls'8es’sl  § oBeleAy pue jejol pung
000'0Ze'S 0ve9zZ GHAED9ELE 209'82Z'S 0se'l 169 6L0Z/0EZL  000'0ZE'S 9L0Z/08/90  0SE'L 000'0Ze’s oo08an BN teuoneN [esepad
000'Lzz'e $0€9Z OMIBOPELE GEL'E0T'E osL'L 862 810Z/9Z/LL  000°12T'€ 9L0z/62/cC  0SL'L 000°122'e 208n N Ue0T BWOH (elepad
000'€66'€ 6€££92 08VEOVELE Z9V'086'C 0560 :i48 8102/62/90  000'€66'€ oL0Z/6Z/I90  0S6°0 000'€66'¢ oo8an WA UBOT BWOH felepad
0 25002 ZS00/SAS 0 0000 3 0 £102/L0/120 0000 0 asn sjueg sn
6/8'7S LE00L LEOOLSAS 6.8'VS Z00°0 3 6.8'vS €L02/1L0/120 2000 6.8'7S Jo08n ojieD jo yueg uojun
0r9'6v0'y 8200/ 8Z00/SAS 0OV9'6v0'y Yozl L 0v9'6r0'Y €L02/10/20  ¥0T'L 0v9'sv0'y Ellal unsanu| AouaBby (2007
angep m:_htmo # Juawsaay| disno anjep j9iely PIBIA .ﬁ.—_._:.—m:‘ ajeq 3olld aeq ajey anjep pajejg uelpojsng / 99isni | Janssy

Anb3 0} sheq funjep paseyaing aseyaing Jsaisu|
spuog
0IpAH 2AIasaYy "AaQ jende)
8102/1€/10

| abed

uoday sainsealy

Aouaby 1amod ejuiojijen usdsyuoN

AINISY BIMDE ¥ ABOSE WO NHIHIEDN

s
VAdON'.
ety



Lze o'ty $

‘068'c2e'2y  $

8L0Z/LE/LO 3O SE [BUWINOP J99AS |IEM 8L ouy saod pig 10 S}

we zZg:01 8102/50/20

Apapenb ajqejie)  VIAINA 6SE9Z# WBWISaAU|
Apapenb ajqejjed  VIAING ObE9ZH uBWISAAY]
Apayienb ajgejje) JINTHA 6£E9ZH JUdWIS3AU]
Ajispenb ajqejie) JWTHA E0EIZ# JUDWIISAAY]

1S

1poSnY /99)SN1L Wol) saauUd Uc peseq si anjep Jxuel Juang

‘poyIall JoBXS U asn SIS0 (fe ‘poipeiu sjewxosdde ue asn Ajunjews 0} SYFUOW g UBY) SSB YIM SJUDWISIAU|
-sadA) || usamyaq uosuediios Joy siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep gog B uo paseq umoys st AJunjely 0} piatA Juajeainbg puog,

6sv'L £hp Zsv'eso’ly  § [4°1 4 sls'aLl’ly $ §VLOL ONVED
vov'Liz'y  § Lz'voe'y  $ 1% 4 £6€l oco'oLZy $ ez 000812y $ obesaAy pue jejol puni
162'1T6'E 25852 ZAAYILELE 9LP'BLE'E 082 Zrr'L TZOZIELILO  TET'9T6'E TIL0Z/60/Z0  SI£T 000'826'¢ asn N UeoT] SWwoH [elepad
000'76 65£9Z L6SEDYELE L1106 0g5'L €Lzl L202/82110  000'v6 9L0z/82/.0  0ES'L 00076 asn Bi jeuonen [esopagy
291'00L ¥z 6ZGIIEELE  195'86 089’4 Si6 0Z0ZirO/I80 62001 SL0Z/82/80  0SLL 000°00L asn WpaI) wied |eseped
000'96 5v92 9r196/2L6 000'96 080'L ] 81021020 69Y'S6 210282120 090'} 00096 asn Anseal) 's'n
VHSa Z10Z o1pAH
000'00s°L $ 096'L6v°'L  $ osL’L 862 000°005'L $ 0SL'L 000°005'L § abelaay pue [ejo) pund
000'00S°} £0£9Z OMIBOYELE 096'L6Y'| osL'L 862 gL0Z/9e/LL  000'00S'L 9L0z/92/20  OSL'L 000005} 208n JIN UEOT BWOH |esspad
0 #9002 ¥900/SAS O 0000 3 0 €L0Z/L0/Z0 0000 0 asn ueg SN
] 9L00L 9l00/SAS 0 2000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 0 208an oylfeq 4o siueg uolun
0 €600 £€00SAS 0 95€°0 L 0 €402/L0/L0  95€0 0 Elal wysaAu| Aouaby {2007
anjep Builien # JUDUISAAUY dISND  anjeA Jaxuen [TEN Aunjey aeq aoud ajeq ajey anjep pajels uetpoisng / 99jsnil Janss)
Atnb3 oysheq  Aunjep paseyaing aseyaing jsasoyy
Jpuog
aAl9saYy [e1oadg CJpAH
8L0Z/LE/LO

Z abed

Hoday sJainsesd |

Aousby iamod eluiosied ulaylonN

ADNITY Y3MDS VINEOITYI NYSHISON

VAN



we ge:olL 8102/50/20

Apapenb ajqejied  VIANG 8SE9Z4 UDWISIAU]

8L0Z/LE/LO 3O SE [eLUNOr 1984S [IeM 8Us W0 seoud PIq JO SJUaWS)RIS URIPOISND /28)Shi L Wol) $3oud U paseq si an[eA JDHENN JuaLnD

‘poyjaw JoBXa ue asn s19yjo {|e ‘poyjaw ajewwixosdde ue asn AjLnjew o) SYIUOW 9 LBY] SSB] UM SIUSLLSIAU|
-sadfj jle usamjaq uosuediios 1o} siseq e aplaoid o) Jeak Aep ga¢ e uo paseq umoys s Aiunjely o} plalA Jusjeainbs puog,

spo'0L9's  $ ‘056'L09°€  $ vSL'L 159 cie'609'c ¢ A7 000°2L9's  $ 'STVLOL ANVYHO
€l22ss'L  $ ser'vps’t  $ [:1:74r 4 sovl 1e8'vss'L ¢ LLET 000°LSS°L  $ abesaAy pue |ejo pung
59/ 'vbp'L S¥8ST 2aavalele 698'6EV'L oveET 'l TTOTIELLO0  OEV'Ltb'L zZLoziEwzo  S/€T 000'eby'L asn WA UeOT BWOH [esapad
000'LL 85€92 16S€99ELE  801'89 0€S'L €2 1202/82/20  000°L.L 9L02/82/L0  0£S'L 000'L2 asn By [euoneN [ejepe
805'9€ #1592 €3d96.216 8SY'9E v65°L 80€ 8lL0Z/90/ZL  L9v'9E 8LOZ/IEO/L0 PSS 000'.€ asn Ainseal) 's'N
OAIaSdY IAS jgeq "oed ‘den
zL2'50T  § §15§°250C § £5¢'1 26 zer'vso'c ¢ 9ze'L 000'990C  $ abeJaAy pue [ejo] pund
TLL'9.0') 12592 rdd96.216 S15'9L0'L €651 S/t 8L02/92//0  §TL'9L0'L 8L0Z/LE/NO 655t 000'80°L 1dasn Anseal) ‘SN
000'06% 98Y9T V.NSSSEELE  000'06Y 801} 0 810Z/L0/Z0  9L5'88y 2L0TvT/0L 680} 00006 Lasn eg ueo SWOH (eiapad
000°L6Y 69T V.NSS8EELE  000'L6Y 890'} s} 8L0Z/LOCO  18L'68Y 210222160 0S0°'L 000°L6% 18sn eg UBO0} SWOH [esapay
anep Builued # JuswsaAu| dISND  8njeA yaduel PISIA Aunyeny ejeq aougd ajeq aley anjeA paiels ueipojsny / 99)snu ) Jonssj
Ainbg ojsfeq  Aumep peseyaing aseyaing jselau|
puog
ad1M9g 198 sanilioed ded
8L0Z/LElLo

| abed

Hoday sainseas)

Aouaby Jamod ejuiojljen udyuoN

AINITY BIMIS VINB0LI VD NHIHIEIN
VdON .

Py r

/



we ge:0b 8102/S0/20

690'LbL ¥SveT 603vaLELE 9Ob'ERL 669°L 98Z'L 12022180 gb9'ovl 2102082120 STLL 000°05 1 asn JIA UBOT SWOH [2i3pad
000°'09E ' LEE92 /Z993€ElLEe  LBY'SYTY 659°L 60Z'L L2oz/seisc 000'09E'Y 9102/80/90 099'L 000'09€'t asn Hpald wie |eiepay
rLL'Y8 50062 GO0BLSAS ¥L1'v8 0010 L rLL'y8 €L0Z/10/0 0010 riL'Y8 asn IsniL jueg SN
pund ¥sa 040z L# anss} 931

£8L'20L  § §59'z0L  § I oLl zog'zoL  $ oLt €66'S0L  $ abeJaAy pue [ejo) pungy
y62'gre £259C SINXSSEELE  66T'SPE 205'L 6LL 8LOZ/MEIS0  6.T'8YE 8LOZ/LENL0  wivL 000'05E 1asn eg UeoT SWOH [e1epad
96b'€SE 80592 84XGEEELE  €9€'ESE 9/€'L €1l 8102/52/50  0£0'ESE 1102/82ZL 05l 000°sSE 1asn eg U0 SWoH [eJepad
£66 zL06. ZI0BLSAS €66 00410 i £66 €L0T/L0/Z0  00LO £66 asn shap ueg SN
pung sg 90102 Z# enss| 031

ose‘0LZ'c  $ 168692 $ £6¢°L pLL 66L°292'c  § 1981 lgl'sgz'e  § abeJany pue |30} puni
058'8EY 91692 CINXSEEELE  L58'8EY z05°L 6L1 8L0Z/LE/G0  ZE|'BEY SLOT/LEND  GiFL 000'L¥b 1asn eg UBOT SWOH [e1apad
676'1€8'C 10592 94XS8EELE  688°0£8'T 9/E'L gLl 8L02/GTIS0  912'8T8'C lLozieziey 0seL 000'7¥8°C 1asn eg Ueo SWOH |esepay
LsL L1062 LLOBLSAS LSt 0010 3 K18 €L02/40//0 0010 151 asn JsniL ued SN
pung s v0L0Z ¢# anss| 9371

90'8sv'L  $ 208°L8F'L  $ sEV'L oLl oLo'Lsv'L ¢ ZirL seL'vor’s  § abeJaAy pue |ejo) pung
pi'szL 81592 SINXSBEELE  LSY'STL 205°L 6LL 8LOZ/LEIS0  9LP'STL 8LOZ/LE/NO  Siv'L 000'62. 1asn eg UeoT] SWOH |ejepad
688'LEL 90592 94XSBEELE ZLO'LEL 9LE'L gLl 8L0Z/SZ/S0  1Z6'0EL ll0z/8zeL 0Se 000'EL 14sn ©g UEOT BWOH |eJopsS
€€ $006. Y006LSAS €EL 0040 3 £€L €L0Z/L0/1Z0 0040 £el asn isniL yueg SN
pung sq 90102 L# anssj 9371

Lev'zee’y $ zzLezy ¢ 16¢°L viL esL'1T'y  $ €'} cva'orz'y ¢ sbelany pue [ejo) pung
165'v69 02592 EWXSSEELE  809'V69 205°L 641 8LOZ/LEISO  89G'¥E9 8LOZILENO Pl 000'869 1asn eg UeoT SWOH [elapady
166'925'€ 50592 84XGBEELE  129'GeS'E 9.€°L €li 8L02/SZIS0  2re'zes'e 110Z/8ZZL 05} 000°ZvS'e Lasn eg UBOT BWOH [e1opa4
£¥8 €0062 £006/SAS €v8 0040 i £p8 €10Z/10/0 0010 £v8 asn isnuLueg SN
pung s@ voLO0Z i#anss| 031

952'ZL $ 9s2'cL $ S0Z'L 2 9822, $ 50Z'L 952'7L $ abeiaay pue [gjo pung
962'z7L 9v00/ 9PO0ZSAS 952'7L voZ'L L 95z'cL €L0Z/10/1L0  ¥OT'} 952'zL wisaaul Aousby eooy
anjep builuegy # JUSLLISAAU] diSND  8njeA joxtey PISIA Aumey ajeq asud ajeq a1y anjep pajeis UBIPOISNY / @3)SN4 ] lanssj

AInb3 0} sfeq funjep paseyaing aseyoding Isasu|
puog
300y uonony 9HO 2371
8L0Z/LE/LO

| abeg

uoday sJainseal]
Aouaby Jamod elulojijes ussyuonN

AINISY HIAVDE VINEOLITYD NHHIHON

VdIN



we s¢:0} 8102/50/20

swnAue ajqeled 8244 LEEOZH IUBLIISAAU(

8LOZ/LE/LO 4O SE Jewinop 191§ IIeM oY) WoJj saoud piq Jo SJusWale)S URIPOISND /a3)sni] woy s3oud Uo paseq si anjep JaXJel Jusung

‘poljiaillt }oeXS U 9Sh SI8Y10 [{e ‘poLswl ajewnxoldde ue asn AjLnjew o) SLIUOW g LY} SSI] UM SJUBLLIISDAUL
*sad} Jje usemiaq uosuedwos 1oy siseq & apiaoid o} Jeak Aep go¢ B Uo paseq umoys si Junjely o} plaiA Jusieainb3 puog,

ebg'lso'es  § ‘661'819°2€  $ 99v'L 189 alg‘eel'se $ 6.4 0.0'688°2¢ § 1SIVLOL ANVHO

Z56'LIT'LL $ 182'90'LL  § we'L [4X:] zoz'1sZ'LL  $ ols'y soL'e6llL  $ abelay pue ejof pund
000'000'¢ Lpeoz IrNEDYELE  OSE'SEB'T 00g'} 088 0202/08/90  000°000°'€ 9L0Z/0£/90  00€'} 000°000°€ oo8an By [euoneN [eJeped
LoL'vig'e orb9T 00ravoeLe LEB'SSS'E 0ss'L 658 0202/S0/90  ZS6'ELO'E /LOZ/0E/0  OFS'L 000'519'¢ asn eq UEO"] SWOH [esapad
£89'756'C 8vz9Z PVZOOSELE T6E'6Z6'T 0zzL £8€ 610Z/6L/120  2vL'866C SL0Z/8z/I80 S8 000'€€6'2 o04an By |eUONEN [BIOPSS
zee' Ly 1700, LYO0LSAS 2SE'Ly 2000 L z8e' Ly €L02/8L/20 2000 Zse'ly 208n 0 4o djueg uolun
a5.'265'L 1¥00L LV00LSAS 9S.'/6'} v0Z'L L 954°265'L €L0Z/L0/L0  ¥OT'L 952'/66'L wisenu| Aousby (2007
aAIesay IN 8 O 031

1£9260°L  $ Zyi‘eso’t  $ 0l¢e'} €0S 98'20Lt  $ LTy sgl'oso’t  $ abeloAy pue |ejo) pung
69v°290'} 9592 9OENXEELE ¥26'250'L 0oL SiS 6l0Z/L0/Z0  80.°780'L 1102/82/20  SIEV 000°620°L asn eg UB0T SWOH |eiopad
891'6Z €106L €L06LSAS 891'6Z 00L'0 L 89L'5Z €10Z/L0/0  00L0 891'sZ asn Isnip yueg SN
Sgvd 4Sd 90102 Z# onss| 231

ese'eLz'c  $ 880'8¢Z'  $ 9ls’L 8v8 0s8'z62Cc $ 1zee oL’z $ abeJaay pue [ejo] pung
759'5€2'T S579Z 8£30/€€1E  ¥8E'00Z'T ovs'L zo8 0Z0Z/ZV/90  9bL'SST'T 1102182110 SIEE 000°'S¥L'T asn eg U0 BUWOH [BJopa4
v0L'l€ 90062 9006.SAS ¥OL'LS 00L0 ! v0L'LE €L0Z/L0/Z0 0010 v0L'l€ asn IsniL ueg sn
AS9Y sqng s4avd 80102 L#SS] 0371

ozv'est's  $ asv'z06'e  § £69°L oscl 890'65.'8 ¢ 15871 riL've9's  § abeiaAy pue [ejol puni
1£2°Z8L'Y £9r9Z 6906.EELE  G6L'VEQ'Y 09L'L 065°L TTOT/OL/I90  90E'89L'Y 1102/82/180  SZL'T 000'00L ‘¥ gasn eg Ue0 BWoH |BiopeS
enjep Buiiuey #jusuisaAu| diISND  enjeploxen PIBIA Runjey ejeq T ajeq ojey anjep pajels ue|poISNg / a2)sniL Janss|

Ainb3g 0} sheq Aumepn paseyaing aseyaing Jsasvquf
Jpuog
pund 3Sa 0L0Z L# onss] 2931
8L0Z/LEILO )
AINIOY B0 VINEOITVI NHIKINON .‘x
uoday sJainseas) < A—UZ* /
Kousby Jemod eluloyijeD UISyHON Y 4
Z obed /



Commission Staff Report

February 14, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 22, 2018

SUBJECT:

Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth .~ % ). METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members [X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San F'a“"i;‘;;i':a%’r:r::; O  CityofPaloAlto [0  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [  City of Santa Clara [ Other

o o o o o o

SR: 117:18



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
February 14, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of 2 Solid State Inverters, Cummins
Propane Generator, and an Alfa Laval Centrifuge Oil Separator.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy, the following disposal or destruction is hereby reported:

*Method of Net Cost From

Property Description Quantity Disposal Disposal
Solid State 1 Phase 10kVa Inverter 2 S $ 0.00
Cummins Propane Generator 1 S $ 0.00
Alfa Laval Centrifuge Oil Separator 1 S $ 0.00
Total $ 0.00

“Note: Public Sale (PS); Private Sale (P), Disposal — Net Scrap Value (S)

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Gy S 107

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Declarations of Surplus

SR: 117:18



LANSNHOVLLY

HATTOUINOGD-HTUNSYAUL OL TYNIDIHO

$1dvHOS dTHOOd ¥ ZDVREAY (0) 400D (@) INTTTIORE NOLLIGNGD 5»

'sjued samod 1aujo 0} 8ies ejeAud 10j Bupayo pustuwossy ‘oygnd jeeush
Aq sigesn jou ued Ajenads - sjapow pajepdn Yum pasedsas suun pio

NOILYOIR1LSAE NOLLISOJ4SIaG

HNIM/HSYHL — 2TYA ON HITVA HIDADTU/LYHOS “TYS0dSiQ
NOLLONY S4ig QaIvas THIVE DITHN4
. ATVS (GivALg) QHLYILODEN

‘NOLLISO4SIa GRONTWNWOOTEH

_ (UADVYNVI IVHANTD)

“E,Sr\w \ SRR

QIADVNVI ‘N3J 155 ¥,

A QHACHAdY

P.u.a.@ 119SIBUIUNG Jaquly AR gddYdHud

AIFD0HI OL
NOLLYZIdOoHLINY

e

Quliies
‘DUO

AT wéSJL@M«

—pr

“Tepow peiepdn yjta pedeidex Arddng xsmod sigeidnaxsiurupn SIITAISITIOO PIO

VIVSOdSIA/SNT4UAS 04 NOWLVOI4LLSAT

‘8

o B L

—— S— e ——————— .w

= — E— S S — ]

. v

ﬁ — — e s

L, €

B xS

sAydinpy abeioAy |(£0-00L0NA-GB # 19POW) J8HaAU| BANOL 8SBUd | SIEIS PIOS | ) Z "
NOILVD201 | TVLOL LINN (SNJA % SND'T 'S PPOIN

FLIS # yaloag 20 «»»QANOD sjqedddy v 3uipnjpug) /N | ALD
Auadosg vAON ANTVA GALVINLLST NOLL4INOSAC f

INTWNJINOA ¥ STVINALVIA ‘SAITddNS
SNTAINS 40 NOLLVAVIDAA

21021718 Ed

ASNIOY B3NS ViNeQY) é

4

Li]og [l -paddens /

"2fuop aF NN pu pig siamd v 2|5 |MYSSIMMSU(



1 ANAWHOVLLY

HITIOWINOD-NTANSYIUL OL TVYNIONO

87 aViDS T3 400 (VI AOVEEAY 1D G005 I INTFTTIDX *NOILIANOD '

HADVYNVIA Ty HAN 4)

g I
TALVY A :@3A004¥d OL
. ,. .uwﬁ.wso& Mar21a)- Qp z [ m\~\ % s NOILVZINOHLNY
S)ps P|\SFq] TRUCROUN JIAs §1Ing pepeibdn usaq sey Jojesauss) (MADVNVIN ‘N 1540
‘NOLLVDMILSO NOLLISO4SIa B lilve] \\w\.\\v\mw\ A8 QIAOULLY
JANAM/HSVEL~ANIVAON~  S(0TVA FTDADAWIVEDS *IVSOdSIa D30 ‘
NOLLONY saig aI'1vas SATYS Ordnd \

XY TTVS (18Ad) GTLVILODAN
‘NOLLISOdSId  QAaNTWIWOOIN

[ (/47
2y
¥ gt

L Mdm NesPWWNG Jjoqury ‘At AIUVIIud

*$831T8 OIPAH VdON I91y30 3B 8sn xo3 aTqraeduwoco jou st 3T ‘suedoad uo suni
Tepow STY3 SY " [9pow JUSTOTFI® siow ‘popexbdn ue yyim pooeidsx usaq sey gojeiasusb suedoad [T1IH A3xeqr

s

“TVS0dSIA/SNTdNNS WO NOLLYOIAILSAS
—r— : :

| |8
- o _. === = N — et et A —_— J.m —— e ——
| R B S )
o= . F————— S . ;
| . . S 9
= B e w
‘ | s
H e 1” — e — —— — T «
| I S (S i
= | L . _ |
| , g
- ——d B ——— . . i |
| | WL S—— o S i
shydinpy | afe1oAY |(avz05-OVD9DS'S # 19PO) J0jeieuaD auedold sNINND| N | by
NOlVDOT | T avaor wiNa || (SNIA % SNDO'T ‘5.t PPOW T I“:\ il
aLs | wwefergae »+ANOD qqeddy yy Supnjouy) WD | ALD |
| Auadoad VON ANTVA AALYWLLST NOLLIIIDSHAQ _ | ]

LL0Z/vLig ea

L1=CK —J/

INTWJINOT » STVRIALVI ‘SAT1ddNS
SN'IdUNS 0 NOLLVIVIDAA

\%ﬁ -

XINIOY §3M02 VINKOIIV2 MaHLNON
RS ERT T k

Jou pip p e UOmEs OYpoy SWARY Q- TwlﬂdCOQ




PANGIWHOVLLY

HITICUINOOHAUNSYALL UL TYNIDIG

STV TdTHO 00 TV ADVHIAV 191 400D T INFTTASNE "NOLLIGNGD »» o o
(HADVNVYIN \VHANED)

atqnd jeisush Aq ejqesn jou Mg\_@u\@ ‘aiva hl\M \ s ..\(.&M ~HAIID0U O
(

s acdinha £ ; NOLLYZIHOHLNY
Haluginba Ajesds - fousbe oygnd Jsylo o) sjes sjeaud PUSWILIOTSY HAOVNVI N aD 15&¢) e
g 554,

”ZOmm"MU_mnkmwmw NOLLISOJSIG 2ABO ‘AR d3AOHdAY
MNMVHSYHL -4 VIVA ON ANTYA BIAITYIVHDS IVSO4SIU O

NOLLY SAig danvas VS OINENng . 1
‘NOLLISOJSI (RUNIINWODINH i %

T TO03RIPAYSD TTO A peoserdsa

41D esnouIamod ITITAISTIION dY3d 1Ie wotjentjitand 110 103 JUSTOTIINS J0U sem Jolerxedss TTO TebnItTasus)
TYSOJSIWSNTINAS YOI NOLLYDISILSAr
— - e ——— s e ‘ _
| | A
] W
e | | P
ISES—— ] | 2
,, m !
o | = ) I s
H - o B
. - N B i v
| ) ‘ |
. : § | - - |
T e e — e e .N
shydmpy BeIOAY | (10-L0-021188 # 1npad) sojesedes 10 oBryeD ere ey | ) b
TNowvool | ] TVIOL LINN B (SNIA % SNOT .4 PPOW [
aLs  #fosg o ++(INOD qeayddy yy 3uipnpuy) N | ALO
Liaadoad VON JNTVA QLLVWILSY NOLL4INOSEA

ININJINOA % STVIALVIA ‘SAITddNS
SOTARNS 40 NOILVUVIDAQ

&
prddurns st 0N SWYP- 1l
PHY dnn - CPUAD po dwogyy mc&@&o &_%& o ez o navul

210ZivLig %A

AINIDY HIMDE VINBOINIVE 55k sun

Vd35N



ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

February 13, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 22, 2018

SUBJECT:

Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2017

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Monty Hanks 1\\&[\ METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding I Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [0  City of Santa Clara [J Other [

SR: 114:18



Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2017
February 13, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Commission accept the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for
the period ending December 31, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

In accordance with the Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy, Section 20, Monitoring and
Reporting Requirements, approved by the Commission in May 2017, the Finance team will
provide a written report regarding the status of all fixed and variable rate debt and the Agency’s
interest rate swaps on a semi-annual basis to the Finance Committee and to the Commission.

The report, for the period ending December 31, 2017, is attached for your information and
acceptance. Listed below is a summary of the report.

Fixed Rate Debt

While no new fixed rate debt was issued, staff took advantage of a limited opportunity to do an
advance refunding of the Lodi Energy Center, Issue One, 2010 Series A bonds. The debt was
refunded as Lodi Energy Center Revenue Refunding Bonds, Issue One, 2017 Series A into a
Direct Placement with Bank of America securing a fixed rate of 2.27% through final maturity in
2025. Project participants will realize a Net Present Value (NPV) savings of over $2 million
which includes over $300,000 in average annual debt service savings.

Staff is also currently working on refunding the Hydro Project Number One Revenue Bonds,
2008 Refunding Series C. The tentative schedule is to seek the Finance Committee’s
recommendation to request Commission authorization at the February 2018 meetings with an
anticipated closing in early April.

Other highlights are included in the attached report.

Variable Rate Debt

The Agency has a total of $86.4 million of outstanding variable rate debt ($85.16 million for
Hydro 2008 Series A and $1.24 million Hydro 2008 Series B). The Agency’s variable rate debt
is structured with a Letter of Credit with the Bank of Montreal. On average, the reset rates
continue to trade at or better than the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
(SIFMA) for the Series A bonds (tax-exempt) and 1-month London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) for Series B bonds (taxable). The reset rates and index comparisons are included in
the attached report.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of December 31, 2017, NCPA had $86.3 million of outstanding swaps, all related to the
Hydroelectric Project bonds, which act as a hedge against the variable rate debt. The total
market value of the interest rate swaps was a net liability of $16.995 million (negative). This
amount has improved from the June 30, 2017 net liability of $18.312 million (negative) due to a
rise in interest rates and time value. No new swaps or defaults have occurred in the last six
months. The interest rate swaps make up approximately 27% of the outstanding Hydroelectric
Project debt portfolio. Additional details of the swap agreements are provided in the attached
report.

SR: 114:18



Debt and Interest Rate Management Report — December 31, 2017
February 13, 2018
Page 3

Counterparties
The counterparty for both interest rate swaps is Citibank, N.A. The credit ratings for Citibank,

N.A., are A+/A1/A+ by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch, respective. There have been no changes
since the last report.

Rating Changes
In October 2017, Moody’s Investor Services notified NCPA that they were upgrading both Hydro

and LEC bonds. Moody’s met with staff back in June to review the status and key metrics of
each project. Moody’s rating committee has decided to:

e Upgrade the rating on NCPA’s Hydroelectric Revenue Bonds to Aa3 from A1. The rating
outlook is stable.

¢ Upgrade the rating on NCPA'’s Indenture A (Issue One) Lodi Energy Center (LEC)
Revenue Bonds to A1 from A2. The rating outlook is stable.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total projected savings over the life of the interest rate swaps was $13.9 million at the
inception of these agreements. Total projected savings through December 31, 2017 was
$5.6 million with actual results at $9.6 million. The difference between expected savings
and actual savings is due to “basis risk”, or the difference between what NCPA pays on
the variable rate bonds and the index rate used in the swap transaction. Total basis risk
to date is positive, resulting in additional savings over those expected of $4.0 million.

Staff continues to monitor the potential for refinancing these bonds and terminating the
swaps, however, with rates still near historical lows, this is causing a large mark-to-market
payment due to Citibank, N.A. of over $16.995 million (net) making a potential refund not a
feasible option at this time.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
Callifornia Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on February 13, 2018 and was
recommended for Commission acceptance.

pectfully submitted,
RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Debt and Interest Rate Management Report as of 12-31-2017

SR: 114:18



LI0% ‘1€ JOqUIdI3(J JO SY
110doy] JyuswdSRURA I1BY ISAI9IU] pue 1qa(J

AINIIV HIMOd VINHO4ITVI NHIHLIHON

AINFOV J3178Nd V



AINIOV §IMO0J VINHOHTYD NUTHIHON

61
81
ol
Gl

gl

i
Sl

ol

[1-0I

PUSJ ], [EOLIO)STH 9N[BA e —
juedonaeJ Aq anfep Je —
uonpenye A pue Arewrung demg —
oueuLIOJYJ demg —

MITAIIAQ) sdemg a3ey] ISaI23U]

SIOIpU] snsJo A OUBUWLIOJI9 —
SULIQ I, [ed1ILI) —
MITAIAQ) 1q3(J 2IvY S[qelieA
MITAIIAQ) IQR(T 'Y PaxIi]
21U A3i1ouy Ipo] —
soni[e ] e3de) —
303[0a g o11309POIpAH -
109lo1 g [ewIoyj0or) —
109l0a g £q matAIdAQ 3G
sIYSIYSTH Loy



‘pue-1eaA |eosl) Je auop si uonenojed syl "VYdON J0 9j1oid ysu anjeA Jie4 z/ SO ay) Josjjal J,usao( .
/102 ‘1€ Jaqwiada uo uoljjiw 021 $ Jo anjen aAebau e 0} /102 ‘0E aunr uo

uoljjiw €°g1$ Jo anjeA aAebau e wolj pabueyo sdems Buipue)sino ayy uo ,NLIN 9UL
‘pajes Alybiy surewal Auediajunod ay} pue palinbai usaq

sey Auediajunod ay) Aq Buisod [eisje|joo ou ‘awes ay} paulewal bupes Apedisjuno)
‘pPa1ind20

aABY 1qap skl d|qeleA 10 d)el paxl) ‘sjuswaalbe dems anoge ay) Japun sjnejap oN
‘9|gels Jo

)oo[ino Bunes e Yym gy Wolj Ly O} spuoq y 010z sauas ‘auQ anss| ‘1ayua) Abisug
P01 S.WVdON uo Bunes sy} papeibdn saoiniag Joysanu| s, Apoo ‘2102 4890100 U|
"9|qe]s JO Yoojno Buiel e Yym Ly Wolj gey 0} spuog anuanay ouo9|80lpAH

S\VdON uo Bunel ayy papeibdn sasiniag Jojsanu| s, ApooN /102 4990100 U]

"Hodal }se| 8y} aduls paiinado sjuswaalbe

dems Buipue)sino Jo jqap s}kl a|qeLieA 10 paxly Aue 0} sabueyd |eusjew anijebau oN
'G20Z Ul Aiunjew [euy ybnoiyy

% /.2 Z JO 8jel paxi) e BuLINdas eolswWY JO Yueg YUm aseyalnd joali e ojul spuoq

V SolaS 0L0Z ‘QuUQ anss| ‘1sjuan ABiaug 1poT ayj papunjal Jels ‘/ 10z Jaquiadeq u|

SIYSI[YSTH Aoy



1203rodd A9 M3INGIAO 1940



¥C0cCiLil - %049’} 000'S8C'ZVS  0000€S'Z1$ ojey-pox1y dwexzxe] v seussgl0z
20Tl 210Z/V12 %68T T 000'G¥6'0% 000'016'CLS ojey-paxid dwex3z-xel v seuss L0z
610¢/1/1 - %000'G 000'02C'S$ 000°019'GES ejey-pexid Jdwexg-xej v seuss 600¢

| Jed
Aumey) jeuiy aegieDd  ebuey uodno) Bupueysing  °XIS NSl adA} uodno) snjejg xej sauag

SHOORNO 91GE3S +VIVILY :(A/S/N) sBupey
195Q 108lo1d Jeunapoas Buipueising Jo Alewng

,.a,% ,,.%w ) S¥19°G SrL9G yenin
O A > . .
h “ = GOEE 00000 aiL
WNOS  cose vy N a1l Bues
WIN LS 0€88'L 0c88°. ojjInesoy
01020 S¥1L80 eloIS-SBWN|d
MIN TS 00000 08519 O}V oled
NN £S 0189¢€ 0i89¢€ Jodwio]
00820} 008Z 01 Ipo
WIN TS 0v19¢€ 0r19¢ BingspjesH
09€€0 0860 foppus
WWSS  pszz0 01220 sbbig
. 98" epauie
nnog  5C889 52880} pauieNy
(%) aseys (%) eseys OCHAI
Vv Sal9G 9102 V S2U9S ClOg= 'V Seliog 600CE h.-w_oue:am Juewepy

sabejuadiad :o_uwawu‘_“_.‘_m‘m uuo‘__oi _,mcbm.ﬁomw

821A19§ }92( 109l01d [euLISY}0eD)

MOITAIIAQ) 193(T 399loag TewrIayjoon)

AINITY E3M0d VINDTVD NEIHLBON
/



¥eociiL
ceociviL
(XAUA Y]
veocivis
14174] 37
ce0divid
BLOZ/LIL

Runjey euly

S|oUM-exBIN
e
6L0c/LiL

810¢/ViL
uaun)

ueun)
ojqejed-uoN

ajeq ed

aBuey uodnon

%0CE Y 000'0CL'L$

%000'G 000'699'0/$
%0006 000'G.6'29%
2%000'S 000'0E} 'LL$

i B[qeUeA  000'GEZ'1S
(%619°€) JeA 000’091 'G8S
%009 000'SSL'ZLS
led

Buipueysino

000'021'2$
000'699'9/$
000'092'101$
000'S00'SZ1$
000'GOL'ES
000'001 'G8%
000'0L9'G61$
azIg anss|

Sjey-poxid
ejey-poxiy
Sjey-pexid
ajeypoaxiy
BjeY-SjqeLeA
ajey-s|qeLeA
9jey-paxi4

edA] uodno)

$4OORNQ dqels +5+<au4 (drs/N) sBupey

a|qexe
ywex3-xey
dwex3-xe
yduwex3-xe

e|qexe]
jduiex3-xe
jdwexy-xel

snjejs xeg

g seueg Z40Z
W Seus Z10Z
V SeUS 010Z
0 sales 00T
g seueg 00T
V SeUes 800C
V seues 7661

sauag

g SeUss TIL0T - V Saleg ZL0T = ¥ SaUas 0L0C
O Solies 8D0C ™ g s|l9s S00T W ¥ SSUaS 800T m v Saliag g6l

NN O$

N OLS

W 0Z%

NN 0E$

WIN OF$

WIN0S$

0691
ovoc
088'GE
oooci
0ce'ce
goee
0.€01
089’1
0s0')
ooL'o
0000t

{%) aseys jJusweppu3

eleiS-sewn|d
yepin

Ble|p ejuesg
BjliAes0y
OllV Oled
Jodwio
1po]
BingspfeeH
Aejpug
sbbig
epawey
Joquuop

sabBejuaniag uonedinnied y02loid 31003|90IpAH

22188 192 308foid auyosipolpiH

MOIIAIIAQ 192(] 192[0ag o1309e0IpAH

AINITY EIMO VINHUI VI NUSHLIBON
R



%¥ 0
000'seZ’LS
ajgeueA

%Z EL
000'GF0'95Z%
paxi4 (~wWi+VILY) d seues
g , ‘60 Joquie "
%591 6102 ‘60 1equieydes |ESLUO JO Yueg 2007

% Sol
%001 610760 equedes SWWIVILY) VLSS

(zu9zrL
jo se) Andx3 901 Jopiroid 901 sajleg

o -

Arewwing Aipinbi 3osfold oujas)e0ipiH

adA1 1920 3o9foid 21goa|s0IpAH JO UMOpYEaIg

(+yr+y/1v) . w g
_MOAMON  JEG'B0L'LS  000F7.SIS  6VL'SIZS CEVL  VORTAL VOTILL %O0LEZS  WOErtasn  seues
YN Suequio 8002

(+v/+v11Y) %S 0 v
_HOAMSN  000'09L'G8S  000'094'G8$  (00E°0LZ'21S)  TEA/L  vOWTILL  VOMVZ/LL  + MOAI %06L8€  SeUeg
VN Huequo -aSn 10 %¥S 800Z
Ryuedieiunod  [euohoN jeuogoN (Zigeriosy) oEa  eeq  SjeqQ  sAAMRdSy —

ueg  ueund fesul oNEAWLW  AumeN oAgdsyI  opell  VdON SFN,  Sopee

Aewwng demg 109lo14 2105390IpAH

MITAIIA() 199(T 399[01J o11309001pAH

AINIDY 5304 VINHD YD NHIHLEON
It "



%06C'S

S0z L8 0coe/Lic - o,000F 000'0v9'cES 000'021'6S$ ejey-pexi4 Jdwexg-xe] v seuss 0L0g
Jed .
Aumey feuty ajegiey - obuey uodno) Bupunmng XIS onss| adA] uodnod smejs xej saLeg
~ SHOORNQ e1qes ‘ VTV :(I/S/N) sBuney
3gaQ saniioe [eyide) Buipuelsing jo Aewiwng

0\_.,.7 %_1 041
— WA 0%
W LS
WINTS
wmes
WNFS$
s 5% gorm
W 9% 056€ e
v S3UI3S 0L0Z = %ﬂaﬁ Juswopnu3 mww.u_.m_u

saBejuadniad uonedionied saijioed [eyded

BJIAIRS 1gaQ Saijijioed [eyded

MOITAIIA() 31G9(T senIe J reyde)

ADNIDY HIMO VINHE WS NUIHLHON



VdO

Apisqns gyg Jo ssoib sjes jsausjuy ‘spuog eouswy pjng ojqexe] (,

GEOC/1L/9
610Z/1/9

Ge0c/H9
ov0Z/L/9
020c/1/9

Aumew jeuld  jreoMaN  abuey uodno)

NINICININ IR IR NI A N AN
FEFFTFPEEE S EE O PP PSPV

SIOUM-EEN
siqeyied-uoN

SjoUM-exelN
020¢2/119

198 J9)ua) ABisu3 1po Buipuejsing jo Alewwung

I I T I T g gl R g g g

W 0%

nwss

WHoLs

WSS

nwozs

(uoRanpa1 %9°g Joj peisnipe) ApIsqng Hv'd 10 18N 221es 180 g dnoip aimuapul
(uoganpay 9%g°g Joj pejsnipe) Apisqng Gv'd 40 BN 3dlAueS 1980 v dnoio ainjuepujE

921A19¢8 1g3(Q 12jus) ABisuz 1po

0LE8Ll
¥Z8Lv

80Vl

0L0z€

89519

16V9°C

G6Z0 L1

8YY6T

zITSe

208y 0

9E66°v

(%) aseys 3502
v dnoi9 "pu|

%6/9°G-%0E9Y 000'GZC0LLS  000'SCZOLLS ojey-pexi4y  sgvd olqexel
%000°S 000'G89'6$ 000°0vS'0ES ajey-paxi Jdwax3-xey
SHOORNO 3qeIs “ NVVIZeY :(JS/MW) sBuney | ¥mavo—a dnoso aimuapyj

%0/2C 000'0.6'8€$ 000'0.6'8E$ ojey-poxi4 Wwexgz-xey

i %LLEL 000'629'9/1$  000'6Z9'0/1$ ojey-poxi4  sgvd elgexel

%000'S 000'6GZ'Z1$ 000'0£E'8.$ sjey-pexi ywexy-xej
SROORNO AAqeIS ViYLV (J/SaN) sBuney | v dnoso asmuepu)

Mu:n__ ; azIg anss| adA} uodno?) snje)s xeg

00099
6199°C
16810

€L 0L
15871
00G4'GZ
15€0C
00056
8Zyo'l
£V96°1
61920
1581°C
0005 €€
(%) areuys
Juswapgpuz

mm@meEwm uonediogied 237

g seles 010¢
V seues 010C

V salrs /10c
g seues 0L0C
v seues 0L0C

sauag

1dvads
VdiMd

BLRIS-SBWnN|d

amw

yenin
ele| ejues
20dwo
Ipoi
bingspresH
Aojpuo
sbbig
esnay
¥MA0

Joquispy

MOITAIDA(Q) 1G9(J 121U ASIoUs] IpOT]

AINIIY E3MDB VINYOI VO NUSHLHON
V4



o1

SINIUY HEM0 VIRNDIITVI NUIHLUON
.«,m

M3INGINO 1930 41VvVy d3XId



I
J9deuew-09 se syoeg uewp[on) yirm dnoidnr) :AA[) peor] e

8103 ‘g Tady se A]Jea se punjot ued Inq 8103 ‘T A[N[ S[qe[R)D
) SALISG ‘Spuog SUIpunjoy dLIIO0IPAH 8005 —
ssaxdoad ur Surpunjoy
'3[qe3S JO qoopno Junel e YIM gy WO [y 01 Spuoq Y 0103 SIS
‘QU() anss| “INud) AF1ur 10T S, VJDON U0 Junies ay3 paperddn —
3[qe3s Jo yoopno Sunel B YIm [y WOoLJ
gRY 0} SPUOY SNUIAIY JLIFOI[0IPAH S, VJDN U0 Sunet ay3 paperddn —
:S90TAIOG J0ISIAU] S APOOJA ‘LT105 1903100

‘6303 Ul Ayuinjewt Teulj YySnoayl 9% Ls 6

JO 9)ed PIXI} B SULINDIS BOLIDUWIY JO YUBY YIIM ISBYDINJ JO3II(]
® 0)JUI SPUOQ Y SILIdG 0103 ‘QU() INSS] “Io3ud)) ASIouj] 1poT]
a3 Jo Surpunjad oueApe Uk op 03 Ayrunitoddo pajrwl] e Jo
o5ejuBApR NOO] JJBIS ‘PINnssI SEM 1qOp 93 PIXI} MIU OU S[IYAA

MITAIIAQ) 199(J 918Y PIxXI|]

HIM0d VINHOSITVD NBIHL ..

<n_UZ



6l

MIAINGIANO 1940 41V F19VIdVA




&1

LV 0} cey Woly [eafuoy Jo yueg au3 papeibumop s,ApooN LL/0L/S SAROAYT ,
‘|leanguoly jo yueg YUm Japiaoid D07 @y} se padejdal sem "y'N Jueqnid ¥L/0L/6 ARSI |
“VVI+VILVY “VVI+VILV . SBuney ypain
6102/6/6 6102/6/6 ajeq uopedidxzy
dq 0'6¢ dq o'6¢ 994 [enuuy
|e33Uoy jo Yueg |ealjuoiy jo yueg , 49p1noid JIpadg jo 1apa/Aipinbi
(33u) Jenuuy-jwag (3au) [enuuy-lwag Auediajunon
(3au) Jenuuy-lwag (33u) |enuuy-lwag VdON
'Sud) Juswihed
(10q17 Ajypuow (%¥s°+10q17 Ajypuow jo
uo paseq) ajes Bugeold |%pS uo paseq) Ijes buneold fAuediajunon :0)jwoa4
sfed VdON S9A1323Y VdON
%162'S @ Paxid %618°¢ @ paxid
SOAI999Y VdON sAed VdON sjuawAfed
dnoibnio dnoubpio :Aued-1a)unon demsg
Alypuop Alyjuo juswAed
ApIaap Apjoam pasud
000‘V2S°L$ 000'091°58% junowy
1qaQ 3jey d|qeleA
€800 04pAH V8002 ©ipAH

MITAIIA() 1GQR(J 1Y S[qeLie A

AINIDY IMOJ VINHBII VD zxuz._,caz,u\

VdIhyY




NORTHERN CALIFORMIA POWER AGENCY

Variable Rate Debt Overview

NCPA Variable Rate Debt Performance Versus Indices

LLIOL/ZL
LLIOM/LL
LLIOL/OL
LLI0L/BO
LLIOL/80
LVIOL/LO
LLI0L/90
LLI0L/SO
LLIOL¥O
LLIOL/ED
LLIOL/Z0
LLIOL/LO
oLI0LIZL
OLIOL/LL
9L/01L/0L
9L/01/60
91/01/80
9L/0L/L0
91L/01/90
9L/0L/S0
9L/0L/H0

« . 9L/0L/E0

! 9L/01/20
| 9L0L/L0
. SLIOLIZL
V sione
" SL/OLOL

SL/01L/60

S1/01/80

SLI0L/Z0

S1L/01/90

*
®

? G1/01/90

| S1/0L/%0
- §GL/0L/€0
| sioLzo
' GLOL/LO
vL0L/CL
vLOL/LL
vL/0L/0L
¥1/01/60

= « «SIFMA 2008B Reset Rate (Taxable) == < <1mLIBOR

2008A Reset Rate (Tax Exempt)

14



g1

MIAINGINO SAVMS 41Vd 1SJH31NI



91

sBujaes |endy @ 8 V 800Z—  sBuiaes pauue|d 9 '8 ¥ 8002—

000'000°Z$
000°000v$
000'000'9$
000°000°8$
000°000°0T$
000'000°ZT$
000000'vTS

000°000°9T$
uoljjiw 9°6$ :21ep 03 SBUIABS [ENDY

uoljjiw 9'gS :3lep 01 sduiaes 133foid |e30]
uoljliw 6'ETS :SpUOQ JO 31 49A0 SBUIAES PR1d(0Jd |e10]

LT0T ‘T€ 19quiddeq
31e( 0} IUBWIONR] sdems 123[04d 214303|304pAH
Adua8y Jamod ejulojije) uidyluon

MITAIIA() sdemg o31BY 1SoUajU]

VdO

/



L1

9e6'996'c¢  (212'966'919%) 1€5'892'98¢  000'¥€.'98%
‘ ‘ JIOA MSN . ‘ . .
(ge8'vEY) 6v1'GLT$ Y+ IV oyN Sueany  LES80LLS  000%LSL$
' 0 ) § v_.._°> ng 13 3 £ 3
L£'109'2¢  (99¢'01Z'2L9) +Y/+VY /LY ‘N HUBGRD 000'091L'G88  000'091'G8$
Yyod
Buims dq o5
- onieA WL L102/62/2} 1d8S m sApoow  Auedigunoy o\ ueung IEUCBON
uo Joedu] anjeA WLIN sbuney jueg feniu|
fuedisyunosn
ce0d/LiL Y00c/ve/LL  v00¢C/ve/LL %0162'G dodiT-asn d800¢ ssuasg Noodnw_wrvoow demg
%¥G 0 + o . souo 1000¥2C1 L1002 dem
2e0c/LiL 00C/ve/LL  ¥00Z/ve/LL HOSIT-ASN 4O %S %0618°¢ V800¢ salieg VdON S
ajeq ajeq spuog adAL
fHumep EYHEET T SjeqopelL  SOMISIIUIUBND Ked3uand pojelsossy OuieN uopoesuel]
0814196 G1Z 24
0019796 G1Z -3uoud
9T 810SjApY dems Wdd

AINIDY EIMO4 VINHBI(1VI NUSHLEON

<ﬂ—u N /

F 4
r

wyd @

MITAIIA() SdemgG 918} 3SoJaU]



81

16¢e'26% ze1'056$ ¥86°20€$ Gle'ev$ 062'885$ 0£0'65$ 051'992% ¥09'2¥$ ¥59'952$ 9£6'996'Z$
(1129) (96821 %) (o81'¥$) (685%) (¥86'29) (1089) (z19'c9) (8259) (P8¥'cy) (5e8've$)
890'€G$ 820'c96$ GoL'Z1ES £96'St$ $£2'965$ z£8'65$ 29/'692% cgl'srs 2£1'092$ L2€'109'C8
Buims dq g
%¥0°Z %20°LE %0021 %69'L %2622 %08°T %LE°0L %99°L %01 - anjep
yenin ele|) ejues dJIn9s0y  eudIg-Seuinid o}|v¥ ojed sodwoT 1poT] BanqgsplesH epawely N1 uo
joedw] [ejo |
(zor'obes) (629'16Z'9%) (L2¥'6c0'cy)  (612'/82%) (Poc's68°cs) (0o6g'06c$)  (cov'zosLy) (1z1'zeze)  (2zS'669°'L9) (212'566'919)
68€'v$ 8¥9'6.$ 818'6Z$ 9£9'c$ zZie'eps 8v6'v$ LLe‘zes 126'e$ G15'12$ 6vL'sLe$
(160'16€$) (222'12€'99) (bp2'so0'2$)  (558°062%) (919'v¥6'cS) (8c8's6€%) (s12'v82'1$)  (ge9'sezy)  (L£0'12L'LY) (99e012'219)
%¥0°Z %20 LE %0021 %69°L %2622 %0€'C %LE0L %99°L %01 enjep
yenin elgjg Blueg  I|IASSOY  EuIdig-SeWN|d o)y ofed sodwon 1po Bingspjeaqy  epawely W1N e301
1£5'89Z'98$
JES'90LLS  ZEOZLL  OOTVELL %0162°G ¥OgI-asn €800 saues Nooﬂqw_wrgom dems
s %PS 0 + ) 1L000¥Z ) L¥002
dem 081295 SI2 -y
000'09L'68$  ZE£0Z/L/L PO0ZVZILL o 0810 %bS %0618'€ V8002 Soues VAN S i e
T siosiapy dems Wdd
JeuonoN spuog adA})
Juswng ejeq fjumey ejeqopell  SIAI9IIY JudID Kedjueld pajeisossy aweN uonoesuel)

MITAIIA() sdemg a3y 3sada3U]

ADNISY HIMDd VINECITVI NEIHIHON ;

Eu_v{



61

N N N N} N N N N N
N ) O Q ¢ O L Q QL o L o Q Q
0\%.? IO sz? O NSE SNCAS RN AN sz@ ~N \_vzé o
S S - M S AP S MR RS R P P A
(000°000°0€)
(000°000°52)
(000°000°02)

(000'000'G1L)
(000'000'0L)

(000'000°s)

anjep Jie4 NLIN dems g8V 8002

MITAIIA() SdemG 918 3S2J21U]

ADNIDY HIMOS VINHOIITVI NUIHLHON



3 /o
ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

February 13, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

-y

If other, please specify

FROM: Robert Caracristi RW METHOD OF SELECTION:
Manager of Information
Services and Power N/A
Settlements
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Power Settlements
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [J
City of Healdsburg [J  City of Santa Clara [ Other

SR: 116:18



Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2019
February 13, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 18-10 adopting the modifications to the Nexant
Model as proposed by staff in order to allocate budgeted costs to members for Fiscal Year
2019.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Commission accepted and approved the Nexant Power Management Allocation
Study Phase lla Report (‘Final Report’) on January 28, 2010 as part of Resolution 10-16. This
study, supervised by the Facilities Committee, determined the methodology for allocating
various program costs related to Power Management, Settlements, Risk Management and
information system activities using a Nexant Cost Allocation Spreadsheet Model (otherwise
commonly referred to as the “Nexant Model”), which changes or modifications to is governed by
the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement, costs attributed to
Power Management and Administrative Services for the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget are
allocated to members in accordance with the Nexant Model. This model has been in place at
NCPA for the past eight budget cycles and is updated each year as part of the annual budget
process. The Nexant Model methodology was developed in part to allocate various budgeted
costs that use, among other things, defined allocation parameter percentages and determinants
intended to correspond to the amount of time and effort required by NCPA staff to provide
applicable services. Determinants prescribed by the Nexant studies for use in the Nexant Model
include metered demand, resource energy schedules related to each day ahead, hour ahead
and real time market, as well as contract deals that represent agreements for the purchase and
sale of various products including long-term and short-term energy, resource adequacy
capacity, and renewable energy credit transactions. As NCPA'’s business model, computer
application systems and members’ needs have evolved over time, staff has identified the need
to adapt or refine various determinants used as inputs into the Nexant Model. Changes as
those proposed to the model are necessary to better align the allocation of certain budgeted
costs for services consistent with cost causation principles.

Staff’s proposed changes to the Nexant Model for Fiscal Year 2019 are quite detailed and
technical in nature and a description of such changes are provided in the table below:

Table 1: Proposed adjustments to determinants used in Nexant Cost Allocation Model

':f:' Proposed Change Reason for Change

Modify the use of For background, Information Services staff deployed a software
Internal Final Schedule | enhancement at the request of dispatch staff that automatically
(IFS) Counts, as populated the NCPA database for several generating resources with

1 | determinants in the Internal Final Schedule values set equal to the resource’s awarded
Nexant Model, to hourly Day Ahead Energy Schedule. These automated hourly
include only the hourly | schedules applied to each operating day and each hour throughout
Internal Final calendar year 2017, which provided dispatch staff increased
Schedules that have efficiencies in performing real-time balancing of load and supply

SR: 116:18




Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2019

Februa
Page 3

ry 13,2018

increased or decreased
from the corresponding
hourly Day Ahead
Energy Schedule
values.

resources. For the purpose of the Nexant Model, the Nexant Studies
prescribed the use of Internal Final Schedules as determinants to
represent work performed by dispatch staff to perform real-time
balancing activity. In light of the software modification that
automatically created thousands of additional Internal Final
Schedules, which would inadvertently shift additional costs to
participants, NCPA staff recommends performing an adjustment to
include only the hourly Internal Final Schedules that changed from
the corresponding hourly Day Ahead Energy Schedule values as
inputs into the Nexant Model. This change better aligns the use of IFS
as a determinant for allocation of Nexant costs that is consistent with
cost causation principles.

Account for Contract
Deal IDs associated
with hourly pool-
balancing transactions
as daily contract counts
for use as determinants
rather than monthly
deals.

The NCPA Pool utilizes intra-day energy purchases and sales as a
means to maintain its sub-hourly, load-supply balancing requirement
pursuant to operating as a Load-Following (MSS) Metered Sub-
System Aggregator. NCPA has historically contracted with various
counter-parties for the delivery of these short-term, intra-day energy
transactions. In recent years, however, NCPA has utilized a multi-
month agreement with a single counter-party as a means to achieve
greater operating efficiency and price certainty. While these short-
term energy-balancing transactions are transacted daily under this
arrangement, the counter-party agreement is recorded in NCPA’s
deal capture system as a pair of long-term, monthly contract deals.
For the purpose of the Nexant Model, the monthly deal counts
understates the amount of work that dispatch staff performs with
respect to hourly load-supply balancing activity. To better align the
actual work effort performed by dispatch staff and the contract deals
that represent the related balancing work performed, staff
recommends accounting for these monthly deal counts as daily
counts. This recommended adjustment also serves a second
purpose: Treating these short-term transactions as daily contract
counts improves the overall Nexant model by increasing the ratio of
short-term and long-term contract counts. Maintaining a ratio of short
and long-term contract counts that is greater than (1) one is an
essential element in the underlying melding of members’ contract
hours and contract counts for allocation of scheduling costs to the
Pool and BART.

The scope of proposed changes for each of the items listed above in Table 1 is intended to be a
prospective change only and effective for Fiscal Year 2019, as well as any future year to the
extent that the current Nexant Model is used.

SR: 1

16:18




Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2019
February 13, 2018
Page 4

FISCAL IMPACT:

The recommended adjustments will result in a change to all members’ allocated share of Power
Management costs by varying amounts. Table 2 of Appendix A provides indicative changes in
allocated Nexant Power Management costs to members based on current Fiscal Year 2018
budget related to items 1 and 2 as presented at the January 31, 2018 Facilities Committee
meeting. Many of the Information Services software enhancements to the dispatch operations
and associated scheduling and settlements applications have led to improved efficiencies
throughout the Agency, which has essentially increased workload capacity. This has allowed
Power Management to expand scheduling coordinator services to new customers, generating
new revenue, to offset the members’ Nexant-related costs without adding new staff.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

Staff presented the final proposed modifications to the Nexant Model at a Facilities Committee
meeting on January 31, 2018. No formal action was taken due to the lack of a quorum,
however, the seven (7) Facilities Committee participants who were present at the meeting
voiced their unanimous support for recommended Commission approval to the modifications
described in this staff report. In addition, staff presented and reviewed the proposed
modifications and results at the Utility Director Meeting on February 8, 2018, in which no
meeting attendees had any objections.

Respectfully submitted,

L as

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

- Appendix A
- Resolution 18-10

SR: 116:18



Updates and Modifications to the Nexant Cost Allocation Model for FY2019
February 13, 2018
Page 5

Appendix A

Table 2: Indicative allocated Nexant Power Management Costs to members and participants for
FY 2019 based on the final version of updated calendar year 2017 data and using current Fiscal
Year 2018 budgeted costs for comparison purposes, as presented at the January 31 Special
Facilities Committee meeting. These results incorporate the proposed changes related to items 1
and 2 described in Table 1 of the staff report. Note: a positive / (negative) value represents an
indicative increase / (decrease) in a member’s cost.

FY 2019
MEMBER TOTALS
FY 2019 Poveer
General Power Direct Pool Sysiem Mgmt Total Pwr FY 2018 Total Pwr increase
Mgt Assignments  Allocafion Imiegrafion Mgmt Mgmt (Decrease)

Alameda $640,875 $257,212 $24,662 $922,809 $962,048 |  ($39,239)
BART $348,853 $194, 122 $51,500 $9,791 $634.275 $717,981 {$83,706)
Biggs $39,614 $21.265 $808 $61,688 $54066 |  (52378)
Gridiey $50,242 $33.636 $4.447 $97 325 $82,382 $14,943
Healgsburg $136,707 $63,373 $2,510 $202 589 $166,100 $365,489
Lodi $778,937 $334,776 $13.371 $1.127 084 $1,060,287 $57,797
Lompoc $205,451 $95,347 $3.832 $304,630 $284,045 $19.684
Palo Alip $1,006,123 $565.887 $50,370 $1,712,380 $1,644,171 $68,208
Plumas Sierra $207 853 $114 606 $10,541 $333,000 $309,687 $23,393
Port of Oakiand $245,705 $124 331 $5,164 $375,200 $359,100 $16,100
Rosevilie $413,254 $56,610 $32.636 $502,508 $563,123 (360,615)
Sarta Clara $3.034,074 | $56610 $104,435 $3,195,128 $3.232.835 |  ($37.707)
Truckee-Donner $0 $0 $0 $0
Turlock Irrigation Disirict $109,080 $8,088 $19,582 $136,760 $128,602 $8,158
Ukiah $281,621 $123,906 $8,311 $413,838 $418,778 ($5,938)

$7,507,399 $315448 $1,815998 $280,459 $10,019,304 $10,004,115 $15,188
Directio Programs - LEC $1,166,799 $153,680 $26,109 $1,346,587 $1,361.775 (315,188}

$8,764,108 $469,127  $1,815,908 $316,568 $11,365,801 $11,365,891 30

SR: 116:18



RESOLUTION 18-10

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADOPTING THE MODIFIED NEXANT COST ALLOCATION MODEL INPUT DETERMINANTS
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019

(reference Staff Report #116:18)

WHEREAS, the NCPA Commission accepted and approved the Nexant Power Management Allocation
Study Phase lla Report (‘Final Report’) on January 28, 2010 to establish cost allocation of Power Management
related activities among the members; and

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed calendar year 2017 data for input into the Nexant Cost Allocation Model
for Fiscal Year 2019, and recommends adjustments be performed to certain contract counts and resource
schedules to more accurately reflect their use as allocators as described in Staff Report #116:18 for inputs into
the Nexant Power Management Cost Allocation Model in order to allocate certain budgeted costs to members
for Fiscal Year 2019; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the modified Nexant Cost Allocation Model input determinants as described in Staff Report #116:18 as
inputs into the Nexant Power Management Cost Allocation Model in order to allocate budgeted costs to
members for Fiscal Year 2019.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date February 13, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  February 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Approval of Second Phase Agreement between NCPA and Member Participants

for NCPA Solar Project 1

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Ken Speer #6

Division: Generation Services

Department: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

X

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

o o o 0O O

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o g

SR: 110:18



Second Phase Agreement for NCPA Solar Project 1
February 22, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
NCPA staff recommends the Commission:

1. Approve the Second Phase Agreement for the NCPA Solar Project 1; and

2. Authorize the NCPA General Manager to execute the Second Phase Agreement for
the Solar Project 1 on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications
approved by NCPA'’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA, in collaboration with interested Member Participants, has identified potential sites within
Member Participants’ service territories for new solar photovoltaic generation facilities.
Individual project sizes may range from less than 1 MW and greater than 10 MW, with an
aggregate project capacity as high as 40 MW.

NCPA and Member Participants desire to enter into a Second Phase Agreement for NCPA
Solar Project 1 to allow NCPA to serve as project manager and to manage all activities required
to assess the feasibility of each potential site, and to perform all necessary due diligence and
preparation required to solicit a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) from a third party.

This Agreement is intended to authorize Member Participants to initiate, fund, and complete
activities related to this Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of Phase 2 of the project will be dependent upon the number of Member Participants,
planned capacity, and location. Some sites may not be deemed feasible and may not progress
through the entirety of Phase 2. Hence for each potential site, the not-to-exceed cost per
Member Participant is $60,000 to perform the site selection and screening (See, Phases 2A/2B
in the Second Phase Agreement). In addition, for sites deemed feasible, an additional not-to-
exceed cost of $320,000 per Member Participant would be incurred to complete due diligence,
preparation (including compliance with CEQA and to gain site control), and PPA solicitation
(See, Phases 2C/2D in the Second Phase Agreement).

Cost allocation will be based on site-specific costs and a division of general costs based on a
site’s capacity rating relative to the aggregate capacity of the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 31, 2018 and

was recommended for Commission approval as a Discussion/Action ltem.

SR: 110:18



Second Phase Agreement for NCPA Solar Project 1
February 22, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

L 1d——

NDY S HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (2)

Resolution
Draft Second Phase Agreement for NCPA Solar Project 1

SR: 110:18



RESOLUTION 18-07

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY APPROVING THE
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1

(reference Staff Report #110:18)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is working with interested Members to
develop additional Renewable Energy Supply sources to meet the future demands of Member Participants; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and Member Participants desire to build multiple Photovoltaic (PV) Solar Power
Plants throughout participating Member service territories to meet these demands; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and Member Participants desire to enter into a Second Phase Agreement for the
NCPA Solar Project 1 to allow NCPA to serve as project manager and to manage all activities required to assess
the feasibility of each potential site, and to perform all necessary due diligence and preparation required to solicit
a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) from a third party; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project’ for purposes of Section 21065 of the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the Second Phase Agreement for the NCPA Solar Project 1 and authorizes the NCPA General
Manager to execute the Second Phase Agreement for the Solar Project 1 on behalf of NCPA, including
any non-substantive modifications approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018, by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR
NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1.  Definitions. .......ccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiiniccccerrce et saees et re e 4

Section 2. PULIPOSE. ...ttt et sttt s s 9

Section 3. Authorities, Obligations, and Allocation of Project Cost....................... 9

Section 4. Billing and Payments............cccovrcvinniniiiieciiciinccceecisie s 14

Section 5.  Participation...........ccoieiiinininiiiinicc s 16

Section 6. Cooperation and Further ASSUrances. ........c...cc.cceeveerurieecereecreneeeeeencnns 17

Section7. Administration of Agreement............cccovucimirininininiininininenccneens 18

Section 8. Participant Covenants and Defaults..........c.cccccoervvieencccncrnencncninenenne. 19

Section9. Term and Termination. ..........ccccciviivicnininicininicieeeeeseenes 23

Section 10. Withdrawal of Participants...........cccecceeeerrreeennnccninenineenieeesecseneeeenns 23

Section 11. Settlement of Disputes and Arbitration. ..........cccocveevivcvcrvienvcreunenene. 24

Section 12. MiSCEIlan@OUS. .......ccovrueiruerimiueirireeiereieiieieeeerieeeseete s sesseseva s 24

EXHIBIT A: INITIATING MEMBERS.........cccovviiiictciiie e seseieenes 1

EXHIBIT B: LIST OF PARTICIPANTS AND GES......Error! Bookmark not defined.

EXHIBIT C: LIST OF POTENTIAL SITES AND ESTIMATED COSTSError! Bookmark not

defined.

EXHIBIT D: PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM...................... i
Section 1. PUIPOSE. ...ttt en ii
Section 2.  Description of Site and Project. ........ceceeveevieneciecenecieececeins il
Section 3. List of Authorizing Participants & Site-Specific GES. ................. iii
Section4.  Project Costs for Phase 2C and Phase 2D........ccccoevveuvereveecreerennenn. ii
Section 5. Authorities and Obligations. ..........cceeeevveereerereeseneerieeese s iii

i

SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



This SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1 (“this

Agreement”) is dated as of , 20__by and among the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“NCPA”), and the
signatories to this Agreement other than NCPA (“Participants”). NCPA and the
Participants are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the
“Parties”.

RECITALS

A.  NCPA has heretofore been duly established as a public agency pursuant to
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the Government Code of the State of California and,
among other things, is authorized to acquire, construct, finance, and operate buildings,
works, facilities and improvements for the generation and transmission of electric capacity
and energy for resale.

B. Each of the Participants is a signatory to the Joint Powers Agreement which
created NCPA and therefore is a Member.

C. Each of the Participants to this Agreement have executed the Amended and
Restated Facilities Agreement which establishes the framework under which Project
Agreements are created for the development, design, financing, construction, and
operation of specific NCPA Projects.

D. NCPA and each of the Participants are interested in developing additional

Renewable Energy Supply to meet the future demands of the Participants.

1
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



E. NCPA, working in collaboration with Participants, proposes new solar
photovoltaic generation facilities, located in or near Participants’ service territories, with
anticipated individual project sizes ranging from less than 1 megawatt (“MW”) and up to
16 MW, with a total project capacity of up to approximately 35 MW (“NCPA Solar Project
17).

F. The Parties desire to utilize NCPA as a project manager to oversee study,
planning, and operations of the facility, and plan to solicit services of a third party
(“Seller”) to develop, own, and operate the Project during its initial term of commercial
operations.

G.  This Agreement is intended to cover all pre-construction activities associated
with the development of the Project. The Parties desire to divide Phase 2 activities
authorized under this Agreement into four (4) sub-phases, designated as Phase 2A (Site
Recommendation), 2B (Site Screening), 2C (Preliminary Development and Planning), and
2D (Project Development and Financing). This agreement is intended to authorize NCPA
and Participants to initiate, fund, and complete activities of Phases 2A and 2B; and to
describe subsequent processes and approvals needed in order to authorize NCPA to
initiate Phase 2C and 2D activities.

H.  Each Participant is authorized by its Constitutive Documents to obtain
electric capacity and energy for its present or future requirements, through contracts with

NCPA or otherwise.

2
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



L To enable NCPA to develop additional Renewable Energy Supply and
negotiate and enter into the Renewable PPA on behalf of the Participants, pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, NCPA and the
Participants wish to enter into this Agreement to provide all means necessary for NCPA to
perform its duties under this Agreement, and to enable and obligate the Participants to
pay NCPA for all costs its incurs for undertaking the foregoing activities.

J. The Parties desire NCPA to commence work on Phase 2A, if necessary, and
Phase 2B activities on or shortly after the Effective Date of this Agreement.

K.  The Parties desire all plants developed under this Agreement to enter
commercial operations within a three-month window of each other and that all plants
reach completion not later than December 31, 2019.

L. Contingent upon negotiating mutually acceptable terms and conditions with
one or more prospective suppliers, NCPA will present the proposed Renewable PPA to
the NCPA Commission for review and approval. Contemporaneously, NCPA will seek
final approval from Participants through a Third Phase Agreement for the Project that
| would govern the rights and obligations of NCPA and Participants related to the sale and
purchase of Products.

M.  Each of the Parties intends to observe the provisions of this Agreement in
good faith and shall cooperate with all other Parties in order to achieve the full benefits of
joint action.

3
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



N.  The Parties desire to equitably allocate costs of NCPA’s provision of services
under this Agreement among the Participants, with costs of each site and each sub-process
established in Section 3.5 of this Agreement.

O.  The Participants further desire, insofar as possible, to insulate other
Members who are not Participants, from risks inherent in the services and transactions
undertaken on behalf of the Participants pursuant to this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

Section1. Definitions.

1.1  Definitions. Whenever used in this Agreement (including the Recitals
hereto), the following terms shall have the following respective meanings, provided,
capitalized terms used in this Agreement (including the Recitals hereto) that are not
defined in Section 1 of this Agreement shall have the meaning indicated in Section 1 of the
Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement:

1.1.1  “Agreement” means this Second Phase Agreement for NCPA
Solar Project 1 including all Exhibits attached hereto.

112 “Authorizing Participants” means a subset of Participants that
grant written authority to NCPA to commence Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities of this
Agreement, using a Project Development Authorization Form found in Exhibit D of this

Agreement.

4
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



1.1.3  “Authorized Project Site” means the generation facility that
NCPA will conduct Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities for, as directed by Authorizing
Participants using a Project Development Authorization Form. There may be multiple
Authorized Project Sites addressed under this Agreement.

1.1.4 "Capacity Attributes” means any and all current or future defined
characteristics consistent with the operational limitations of the Project, certificates, tags,
credits, ancillary service attributes, or accounting constructs, howsoever entitled, including
resource adequacy benefits, Flexible Capacity Benefits, and any tracking or accounting
associated with the foregoing, intended to value any aspect of the capacity of the Project to
produce Energy or ancillary services, attributed fo or associated with the Project.

1.1.5 “Constitutive Documents” means, with respect to NCPA, the
Joint Powers Agreement and any resolutions or bylaws adopted thereunder with respect
to the governance of NCPA, and with respect to each Participant, the California
Government Code and other statutory provisions applicable to such Participant, any
applicable agreements, charters, contracts or other documents concerning the formation,
operation or decision making of such Participant, including, if applicable, its City Charter,
and any codes, ordinances, bylaws, and resolutions adopted by such Participant’s
governing body.

1.1.6  “Effective Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9 of

this Agreement.

5
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



1.1.7  “Energy” means electric energy expressed in units of kWh or
MWh.

1.1.8  “Environmental Attributes" means any and all credits, benefits,
emissions reductions, offsets, and allowances, howsoever entitled, attributable to the
generation from the Project, as the case may be, and its displacement of conventional
energy generation. Environmental Attributes include: (i) any avoided emissions of
pollutants to the air, soil or water such as sulfur oxides (SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx),
carbon monoxide (CO) and other pollutants; (ii) any avoided emissions of carbon dioxide
(CO2), methane (CH4) and other greenhouse gases that have been determined by the
United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change to contribute to the actual or
potential threat of altering the Earth’s climate by trapping heat in the atmosphere; and (ii)
the reporting rights to these avoided emissions such as, but not limited to, a Renewable
Energy Certificate (“REC”).

Environmental Attributes do not include: (i) any Energy, capacity,
reliability or other power attributes from the Project, (ii) production tax credits associated
with the construction or operation of the Project, and other financial incentives in the form
of credits, reductions, or allowances associated with the Project that are applicable to a
state or federal income taxation obligation, (iii) fuel-related subsidies or “tipping fees” that
may be paid to Seller to accept certain fuels, or local subsidies received by Seller or the

owners of the site for the destruction of particular pre-existing pollutants or the promotion

6
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



of local environmental benefits, or (iv) emission reduction credits encumbered or used by
the Project for compliance with local, state, or federal operating and/or air quality permits.

1.1.9  “Flexible Capacity” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO
Tariff.

1.1.10 “Flexible Capacity Benefits” means the rights and privileges
attached to any generating resource that satisfy any entity’s Flexible Capacity requirement.

1.1.11 “Initiating Members” shall have the meaning as set forth in
Section 5.2.

1.1.12 “NCPA” has the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto.

1.1.13 “Participant” has the meaning set forth in the recitals of this
Agreement.

1.1.14 “Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement”
means the NCPA Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement, dated as of
October 1, 2014 between NCPA and the Members who are signatories to that agreement
by which NCPA provides Power Management and Administrative Services.

1.1.15 “Product” means Energy, Capacity Attributes and Environmental
Attributes delivered to the Participants pursuant to the Renewable PPA.

1.1.16 “Project” means the NCPA Solar Project 1 as defined in the

Recitals of this Agreement.

7
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



1.1.17 “Project Development Authorization Form” is Exhibit D of this
Agreement, and one form is required for each site for which NCPA will conduct Phase 2C
and Phase 2D activities.

1.1.18 “Party” or “Parties” has the meaning set forth in the preamble
hereto; provided that “Third Parties” are entities that are not Party to this Agreement.

1.1.19 “Renewable Energy Supply” refers to power supply resources
eligible for use under the Renewable Portfolio Standard Program.

1.1.20 “Renewable PPA” means the Power Purchase Agreement to be
negotiated by NCPA and Seller, under which NCPA, on behalf of the Participants,
purchases Product from newly constructed solar photovoltaic resources.

1.1.21 “RPS” or “Renewable Portfolio Standard Program” means the
State of California Renewable Portfolio Standard Program, as codified at California Public
Utilities Code Section 399.11, et seq.

1.1.22 “Seller” has the meaning set forth in the recitals of this
Agreement.

1.1.23 “Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.

1.2 Rules of Interpretation. As used in this Agreement (including the Recitals
hereto), unless in any such case the context requires otherwise: The terms “herein,”
“hereto,” “herewith” and “hereof” are references to this Agreement taken as a whole and

7oAy

not to any particular provision; the term “include,” “includes” or “including” shall mean

8
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



“including, for example and without limitation;” and references to a “Section,”
“subsection,” “clause,” “Appendix”, “Schedule”, or “Exhibit” shall mean a Section,
subsection, clause, Appendix, Schedule or Exhibit of this Agreement, as the case may be.
All references to a given agreement, instrument, tariff or other document, or law,
regulation or ordinance shall be a reference to that agreement, instrument, tariff or other
document, or law, regulation or ordinance as such now exists and as may be amended
from time to time, or its successor. A reference to a “person” includes any individual,
partnership, firm, company, corporation, joint venture, trust, association, organization or
other entity, in each case whether or not having a separate legal personality and includes
its successors and permitted assigns. A reference to a “day” shall mean a Calendar Day
unless otherwise specified. The singular shall include the plural and the masculine shall
include the feminine, and vice versa.

Section 2.  Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the rights and obligations of the
Parties, define Phase 2 activities and sub-phases, and establish a cost allocation

methodology for Phase 2 activities.

Section 3.  Authorities, Obligations, and Allocation of Project Cost.

3.1 Authorities.

9
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



3.1.1 Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, NCPA is hereby
authorized to conduct all work necessary to complete its obligations of Phase 2A and
Phase 2B.

3.1.2 NCPA shall conduct all work necessary to complete its obligations
under Phase 2C and Phase 2D upon full execution of a Project Development Authorization
Form, with a template attached hereto as Exhibit D. Such form shall apply to a single
Authorized Project Site and shall become effective when signed by NCPA and all
Authorizing Participants of the Authorized Project Site.

3.2  Obligations of NCPA. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, NCPA

shall commence work pertaining to its duties under Phase 2A and/or Phase 2B, as
described further below. Upon the effective date of a Project Development Authorization
Form, NCPA shall commence work pertaining to its duties under Phase 2C and Phase 2D,
as described further below. NCPA, on behalf of itself and Participants, shall act as lead or
responsible agency for the purposes of environmental review of the Project, shall act as
project manager for all Phase 2 activities, and is responsible for engaging necessary expert
professional services including those of NCPA staff. NCPA shall divide Phase 2 activities
into 4 sub-phases, defined below.

3.21 Phase 2A (Site Recommendation): NCPA shall assist Participants
that have provided multiple potential sites in a single service territory to identify the best

site(s) for further evaluation in subsequent Phase 2 sub-processes.

10
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



3.2.2 Phase 2B (Site Screening): NCPA shall complete a feasibility study
for each proposed site listed in Exhibit C. For Participants that have identified multiple
potential sites in a single service territory, NCPA shall conduct a Phase 2B feasibility study
only for those sites identified in Phase 2A for subsequent Phase 2 sub-phases, or as
mutually agreed to in writing by NCPA and the Participant(s) of the selected sites. NCPA
shall deliver a “Go / No Go” determination for each project site. NCPA shall advance the
due diligence investigation required for each proposed site, initiate environmental studies,
initiate financial planning, and complete a feasibility assessment for each proposed site.
Participants may also opt, at an additional cost, for a Storage Feasibility Study to
determine the technical and economic feasibility of incorporating energy storage (e.g.
batteries) at their site.

3.2.3 Phase 2C (Preliminary Development & Planning): NCPA shall
finalize project design and specifications, prepare conceptual physical and electrical layout
diagrams, provide capital, identify site preparation requirements, identify permit
requirements, and identify other risks and recommendations.

324 Phase 2D (Project Development and Project Financing): NCPA
shall complete CEQA review; gain site control; complete financing arrangements; and
negotiate a Renewable Energy Power Purchase Agreement (“Renewable PPA”) to

purchase electric capacity, energy, and environmental attributes produced by eligible

11
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



renewable resources for the benefit of the Participants’ customers, and to include an option
to purchase the project facilities from the third party at a future date.

3.3  Obligations of Participants.

3.3.1 Participants hereby agree to continue to pay or advance to NCPA
its allocated share of the costs authorized by Participants in accordance with this
Agreement in connection with its participation in the Project.

3.3.2 Upon execution of this Agreement, Participant shall identify the
individual who is authorized to initiate Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities using a Project
Development Authorization Form. Participants’ designees shall be listed in Exhibit A.

34  Obligations of the Parties. NCPA and Participants hereby agree to conduct

all necessary work, secure all necessary authorities, transmit all necessary forms, and to
work collaboratively to complete all Phase 2 activities in a timely manner, with the goal
that all facilities developed under this Agreement enter commercial operations within a
three-month window of each other and that all plants reach completion not later than
December 31, 2019.
3.5  Project Costs and Cost Allocation.

3.5.1 Project Costs. Estimated costs for each sub-process at each site are
listed in Exhibit C, including a 15% contingency. Upon execution of this Agreement,
NCPA is authorized to expend funds listed in Exhibit C to conduct Phase 2A and Phase 2B

activities for each site for Parties to this Agreement. NCPA is authorized to expend funds

12
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



for Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities, contingent upon receiving a duly authorized written
consent from Authorizing Participants under a completed Project Development
Authorization Form for each Authorized Project Site, which shall specify the not-to-exceed
costs for Phase 2C and Phase 2D. To the extent that Phase 2C and Phase 2D costs differ
between Exhibit C of this Agreement and that of Section 4 of the completed Project
Development Authorization Form, the latter will control.

3.5.2 NCPA shall assign costs to Participants using a three-step process.

”

i.  NCPA shall designate a cost as either “General” or “Site-Specific.

ii.  All General costs shall be assigned to each site, in proportion to
each site’s capacity rating relative to the total capacity of the
NCPA Solar Project 1.

iii.  General costs assigned to each site, and all site-specific costs, shall
be allocated to each Participant in proportion to Participants’ site-
specific GES.

3.6  Adjustments to Generation Entitlement Shares. The GES of each Participant

shall be revised proportionately if less than the full megawatt capacity of the Project is
subscribed. The GES of each Participant shall be revised if and when any Participant
withdraws in whole or in part. The full megawatt capacity of the Project shall be revised if
and when project specification of individual sites are added, modified, or eliminated for
consideration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participants are responsible for all
obligations and actual costs incurred up to the effective date of changes to participation

levels and site specifications.

13
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



3.7 Third Phase Agreement Funding and Participation. The Third Phase

Agreement that supersedes and replaces this Agreement, if any, shall provide for
reimbursement, retirement or refunding of (1) any preliminary expenditures including
financing costs, architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, debt issuance costs, and
(2) expenditures relating to the acquisition, construction, and land acquisition of the
project, of any expenditure of the Participants in the Second Phase of the Project, out of
final long-term financing of the Project, or other funding method, including but not
limited to cash payments. It is expected that the amount of long term bonds or other
reimbursement is not expected to exceed $4,000,000. This provision is also meant to
establish with the requirements of Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations.

Section 4.  Billing and Payments.

41  Participant Payment Obligations. Each Participant agrees to pay to NCPA

each month its respective portion of the actual costs associated with activities authorized
under this Agreement and the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement.

42  Invoices. NCPA will issue an invoice to each Participant for its share of
actual costs associated with negotiation and implementation of the Renewable PPA, and
all other costs for services provided in accordance with this Agreement and the Amended
and Restated Facilities Agreement. Such invoice may be either the All Resources Bill or
separate special invoice, as determined by NCPA. At NCPA'’s discretion, invoices may be

issued to Participants using electronic media or physical distribution.

14
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



4.3  Payment of Invoices. All invoices delivered by NCPA (including the All

Resources Bill) are due and payable thirty (30) Calendar Days after the date thereof;
provided, however, that any amount due on a day other than a Business Day may be paid
on the following Business Day.

44  Late Payments. Any amount due and not paid by a Participant in
accordance with Section 4.3 shall be considered late and bear interest computed on a daily
basis until paid at the lesser of (i) the per annum prime rate (or reference rate) of the Bank
of America NT&SA then in effect, plus two percent (2%) or (ii) the maximum rate
permitted by law.

4.5  Billing Disputes. A Participant may dispute the accuracy of any invoice

issued by NCPA under this Agreement by submitting a written dispute to NCPA, within
thirty (30) Calendar Days of the date of such invoice; nonetheless the Participant shall pay
the full amount billed when due. If a Participant does not timely question or dispute the
accuracy of any invoice in writing, the invoice shall be deemed to be correct. Upon review
of a submitted dispute, if an invoice is determined by NCPA to be incorrect, NCPA shall
issue a corrected invoice and refund any amounts that may be due to the Participant. If
NCPA and the Participant fail to agree on the accuracy of an invoice within thirty (30)
Calendar Days after the Participant has disputed it, the General Manager shall promptly
submit the dispute to the Commission for resolution. If the Commission and the

Participant fail to agree on the accuracy of a disputed invoice within sixty (60) Calendar

15
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



Days of its submission to the Commission, the dispute may then be resolved under the
mediation and arbitration procedures set forth in Section 11 of this Agreement. Provided,
however, that prior to resorting to either mediation or arbitration proceedings, the full
amount of the disputed invoice must be paid.

46 Billing/Settlement Data and Examination of Books and Records.

4.6.1 Settlement Data. NCPA shall make billing and settlement data

available to the Participants in the All Resources Bill, or other invoice, or upon request.
NCPA may also, at its sole discretion, make billing and settlement support information
available to Participants using electronic media (e.g. electronic data portal). Procedures
and formats for the provision of such electronic data submission may be established by the
Commission from time to time. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, NCPA
may, in its reasonable discretion, require the Participants to execute a non-disclosure
agreement prior to providing access to the NCPA electronic data portal.

4.6.2 Examination of Books and Records. Any Participant to this

Agreement shall have the right to examine the books and records created and maintained
by NCPA pursuant to this Agreement at any reasonable, mutually agreed upon time.
Section 5.  Participation.

5.1  Eligibility. All Members who are signatory to the Amended and Restated

Facilities Agreement are eligible to participate in this Agreement by delivering a duly

16
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



executed copy of this Agreement to NCPA, and subject to availability of the Renewable
Energy Supply as described in Section 5.2.

5.2 Priority. This Agreement has been developed in response to certain
Members’ request for NCPA to acquire Renewable Energy Supply on their behalf
(hereinafter referred to as the “Initiating Members”). The Initiating Members are listed in
Exhibit A. To the extent the amount of Renewable Energy Supply that is made available
by Seller is not sufficient to satisfy all Members’ requests for a desired amount of
Renewable Energy Supply; first priority will be given to the Initiating Members, and
secondary priority will be given to all other Members who become a Participant. If after
ﬁneeting the requests of the Initiating Members, any remaining available Renewable
Energy Supply will be allocated to all other Participants based on a first-come first-serve
basis, until the total amount of available Renewable Energy Supply is exhausted, or until
all Participants’ requests have been satisfied, whichever comes first.

5.3  Final Participation Percentages. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement,

NCPA shall include each Participant’s Final Project Participation Percentage in Exhibit B.
NCPA shall update Exhibit B to reflect changes in Participants and/or GES, in writing, and

shall provide written notice to Participants of such changes.

Section 6. Cooperation and Further Assurances.
Each of the Parties agree to provide such information, execute and deliver any

instruments and documents and to take such other actions as may be necessary or

17
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



reasonably requested by any other Party which are consistent with the provisions of this
Agreement and which do not involve the assumption of obligations other than those
provided for in this Agreement, in order to give full effect to this Agreement and to carry
out the intent of this Agreement. The Parties agree to cooperate and act in good faith in
connection with obtaining any credit support required in order to satisfy the requirements
of this Agreement.

Section7.  Administration of Agreement

71  Commission. The Commission is responsible for the administration of this
Agreement. Each Participant shall be represented by its Commissioner or their designated
alternate Commissioner (“Alternate”) pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement. Each
Commissioner shall have authority to act for the Participant represented with respect to
matters pertaining to this Agreement.

7.2 Forum. Whenever any action anticipated by this Agreement is required to be

jointly taken by the Participants, such action shall be taken at regular or special meetings

of the NCPA Commission.
7.3 Quorum.

7.3.1 General Administration. For purposes of acting upon matters that relate to

general administration of this Agreement, a quorum of the Commission shall consist of
those Commissioners, or their designated Alternates, representing a numerical majority

of the Participants.

18
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



7.3.2 Relating to a Project Site. For purposes of acting upon matters that relate to

a specific Project site, a quorum of the Participants shall consist of those Commissioners,
or their designated Alternate, representing a GES majority of the Participants with an
entitlement interest in such Project site.

7.4 Voting.

7.4.1 General Administration. For acting upon matters that relate to the general

administration of this Agreement, each Participant shall have the right to cast one (1)
vote. Actions of the Commission shall be effective only upon a majority vote of the

Participants.

Section 8.  Relating to a Project Site. For acting upon matters that relate to a specific

Project site, Participant shall have the right to cast one (1) vote. Actions of the
Commission shall be effective only upon a majority vote of the Participants with an

entitlement interest in such Project site.Participant Covenants and Defaults

8.1  Each Participant covenants and agrees: (i) to make payments to NCPA, from
its Electric System Revenues, of its obligations under this Agreement as an operating
expense of its Electric System; (ii) to fix the rates and charges for services provided by its
Electric System, so that it will at all times have sufficient Revenues to meet the obligations
of this Agreement, including the payment obligations; (iii) to make all such payments due
NCPA under this Agreement whether or not there is an interruption in, interference with,

or reduction or suspension of services provided under this Agreement, such payments not

19
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



being subject to any reduction, whether by offset or otherwise, and regardless of whether
any dispute exists; and (iv) to operate its Electric System, and the business in connection
therewith, in accordance with Good Utility Practices.

8.2  Events of Default. An Event of Default under this Agreement shall exist

upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following by a Participant (the “Defaulting
Participant”):

(i) the failure of any Participant to make any payment in full to NCPA when
due;

(ii) the failure of a Participant to perform any covenant or obligation of this
Agreement where such failure is not cured within thirty (30) Calendar Days following
receipt of a notice from NCPA demanding cure. Provided, that this subsection shall not
apply to any failure to make payments specified by subsection 8.2 (i));

(iii) if any representation or warranty of a Participant material to the services
provided hereunder shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made
and the Participant does not cure the facts underlying such incorrect representation or
warranty so that the representation or warranty becomes true and correct within thirty
(30) Calendar Days of the date of receipt of notice from NCPA demanding cure; or

(iv) if a Participant is in default or in breach of any of its covenants or
obligations under any other agreement with NCPA and such default or breach is not cured

within the time periods specified in such agreement.

20
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



8.3  Uncontrollable Forces. A Party shall not be considered to be in default in

respect of any obligation hereunder if prevented from fulfilling such obligation by reason
of Uncontrollable Forces. Provided, that in order to be relieved of an Event of Default due
to Uncontrollable Forces, a Party affected by an Uncontrollable Force shall:

(i) first provide oral notice to the General Manager using telephone
communication within two (2) Business Days of the onset of the Uncontrollable Force, and
provide subsequent written notice to the General Manager and all other Parties within ten
(10) Business Days of the onset of the Uncontrollable Force, describing its nature and
extent, the obligations which the Party is unable to fulfill, the anticipated duration of the
Uncontrollable Force, and the actions which the Party will undertake so as to remove such
disability and be able to fulfill its obligations hereunder; and

(ii) use due diligence to place itself in a position to fulfill its obligations
hereunder and if unable to fulfill any obligation by reason of an Uncontrollable Force such
Party shall exercise due diligence to remove such disability with reasonable dispatch.
Provided, that nothing in this subsection shall require a Party to settle or compromise a

labor dispute.

8.4  Cure of an Event of Default. An Event of Default shall be deemed cured only
if such default shall be remedied or cured within the time periods specified in Section 8.2

above, as may be applicable, provided, however, upon request of the Defaulting

21
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



Participant the Commission may waive the default at its sole discretion, where such
waiver shall not be unreasonably withheld.

8.5  Remedies in the Event of Uncured Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event

of Default which is not cured within the time limits specified in Section 8.2, without
limiting other rights or remedies available under this Agreement, at law or in equity, and
without constituting or resulting in a waiver, release or estoppel of any right, action or
cause of action NCPA may have against the Defaulting Participant, NCPA may take any
or all of the following actions:

(i) suspend the provision of services under this Agreement to such
Defaulting Participant; or

(ii) demand that the Defaulting Participant provide further assurances to
guarantee the correction of the default, including the collection of a surcharge or increase
in electric rates, or such other actions as may be necessary to produce necessary Revenues
to correct the default.

8.6  Effect of Suspension.

8.6.1 Generally. The suspension of this Agreement will not terminate,
waive, or otherwise discharge any ongoing or undischarged liabilities, credits or
obligations arising from this Agreement until such liabilities, credits or obligations are

satisfied in full.

22
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



8.6.2 Suspension. If performance of all or any portion of this
Agreement is suspended by NCPA with respect to a Participant in accordance with
subsection 8.5(i), such Participant shall pay any and all costs incurred by NCPA as a result
of such suspension including reasonable attorney fees, the fees and expenses of other
experts, including auditors and accountants, or other reasonable and necessary costs
associated with such suspension and any portion of the Project Costs, scheduling and
dispatch costs, and Administrative Services Costs that were not recovered from such
Participant as a result of such suspension.

Section9. Term and Termination.

This Agreement shall become effective when it has been duly executed by NCPA
and at least one Participant (the “Effective Date”). The date on which NCPA makes this
Agreement effective shall be determined by NCPA, at its sole discretion. NCPA shall
deliver a written notice to all signatories to this Agreement and to all Members that are
signatory to the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, stating the Effective Date of
this Agreement. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue
until the Agreement terminates, which shall occur when either:

9.1  All activities pursuant to this Agreement are terminated by NCPA in its
discretion; or
9.2  Upon the effective date of a Third Phase Agreement with one or more

Participants relating to a Renewable Energy PPA.

Section 10. Withdrawal of Participants.

23
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



If at any time following the execution of this Agreement, NCPA issues a written
notice of a change to Exhibit B or an increase in the financial commitment beyond that
contemplated in Exhibit C, Participants may partially withdraw (i.e., from participating in
the increase), or may withdraw wholly from the Project. Any withdrawal shall be subject
to honoring any commitments made to them or on their behalf pursuant to authorization
of this Agreement. To withdraw, such Participant shall give NCPA written notice of such
withdrawal, in part or in whole, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the notice by them
of the increase. Notwithstanding the above, a Participant may withdraw following the
completion of any sub-process. In this event the Participants may vote to consider
modifications to this Agreement and/or the applicable executed Project Development
Authorization Form for affected site(s).

Section 11. Settlement of Disputes and Arbitration.

The Parties agree to make best efforts to settle all disputes among themselves
connected with this Agreement as a matter of normal business under this Agreement. The
procedures set forth in Section 10 of the Power Management and Administrative Services
Agreement shall apply to all disputes that cannot be settled by the Participants
themselves; provided, that the provisions of Section 5.5 of this Agreement shall first apply
to all disputes involving invoices prepared by NCPA.

Section 12. Miscellaneous.

121 Indemnification and Hold Harmless. Subject to the provisions of Section

12.3, each Participant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless NCPA and its

24
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



Members, including their respective governing boards, officials, officers, agents, and
employees, from and against any and all claims, suits, losses, costs, damages, expenses
and liability of any kind or nature, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and the costs of
litigation, including experts, to the extent caused by any acts, omissions, breach of
contract, negligence (active or passive), gross negligence, recklessness, or willful
misconduct of that Participant, its governing officials, officers, employees, subcontractors
or agents, to the maximum extent permitted by law.

12.2  Several Liabilities. No Participant shall, in the first instance, be liable under

this Agreement for the obligations of any other Participant or for the obligations of NCPA
incurred on behalf of other Participants. Each Participant shall be solely responsible and
liable for performance of its obligations under this Agreement, except as otherwise
provided for herein. The obligation of each Participant under this Agreement is, in the
first instance, a several obligation and not a joint obligation with those of the other
Participants.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Participants acknowledge that any debts
or obligations incurred by NCPA under this Agreement on behalf of any of them shall be
borne solely by such Participants, and not by non-Participant Members of NCPA,
pursuant to Article IV, Section 3(b) of the Joint Powers Agreement.

12.3 No Consequential Damages. FOR ANY BREACH OF ANY PROVISION OF

THIS AGREEMENT FOR WHICH AN EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES

25
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



IS PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE LIABILITY OF THE DEFAULTING PARTY
SHALL BE LIMITED AS SET FORTH IN SUCH PROVISION, AND ALL OTHER
DAMAGES OR REMEDIES ARE HEREBY WAIVED. IF NO REMEDY OR MEASURE OF
DAMAGE IS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED, THE LIABILITY OF THE DEFAULTING PARTY
SHALL BE LIMITED TO ACTUAL DAMAGES ONLY AND ALL OTHER DAMAGES
AND REMEDIES ARE HEREBY WAIVED. IN NO EVENT SHALL NCPA OR ANY
PARTICIPANT OR THEIR RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, REPRESENTATIVES,
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OR EMPLOYEES BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOST
PROFITS, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE OR
INCIDENTAL LOSSES OR DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF
GOODWILL, LOST REVENUES, LOSS OF PROFIT OR LOSS OF CONTRACTS EVEN IF
SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND
NCPA AND EACH PARTICIPANT EACH HEREBY WAIVES SUCH CLAIMS AND
RELEASES EACH OTHER AND EACH OF SUCH PERSONS FROM ANY SUCH
LIABILITY.

The Parties acknowledge that California Civil Code section 1542 provides that: “A
general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to
exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her
must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.” The Parties waive

the provisions of section 1542, or other similar provisions of law, and intend that the

26
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



waiver and release provided by this Section of this Agreement shall be fully enforceable
despite its reference to future or unknown claims.

124 Waiver. No waiver of the performance by a Party of any obligation under
this Agreement with respect to any default or any other matter arising in connection with
this Agreement shall be effective unless given by the Commission. Any such waiver by
the Commission in any particular instance shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to
any subsequent performance, default or matter.

125 Amendments. Except where this Agreement specifically provides otherwise,

this Agreement may be amended only by written instrument executed by the Parties with
the same formality as this Agreement.

12.6  Assignment of Agreement.

12.6.1 Binding Upon Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the

benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the Parties

to this Agreement.

12.6.2 No Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any interest herein,

shall be transferred or assigned by a Party hereto except with the consent in writing of the
other Parties hereto, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided
that such transfer or assignment shall be only to another NCPA Member.

12.7 Severability. In the event that any of the terms, covenants or conditions of

this Agreement or the application of any such term, covenant or condition, shall be held

27
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



invalid as to any person or circumstance by any court having jurisdiction, all other terms,
covenants or conditions of this Agreement and their application shall not be affected
thereby, but shall remain in force and effect unless the court holds that such provisions are
not severable from all other provisions of this Agreement.

128 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted, governed by, and

construed under the laws of the State of California.

12.9 Headings. All indices, titles, subject headings, section titles and similar items
are provided for the purpose of convenience and are not intended to be inclusive,
definitive, or affect the meaning of the contents of this Agreement or the scope thereof.

12.10 Notices. Any notice, demand or request required or authorized by this
Agreement to be given to any Party shall be in writing, and shall either be personally
delivered to a Participant’s Commissioner or Alternate, and to the General Manager, or
shall be transmitted to the Participant and the General Manager at the addresses shown on
the signature pages hereof. The designation of such addresses may be changed at any
time by written notice given to the General Manager who shall thereupon give written
notice of such change to each Participant. All such notices shall be deemed delivered
when personally delivered, two (2) Business Days after deposit in the United States mail
first class postage prepaid, or on the first Business Day following delivery through

electronic communication.

28
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



12.11 Warranty of Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that it has been

duly authorized by all requisite approval and action to execute and deliver this Agreement
and that this Agreement is a binding, legal, and valid agreement enforceable in accordance
with its terms. Upon execution of this Agreement, each Participant shall deliver to NCPA
a resolution of the governing body of such Participant evidencing approval of and
authority to enter into this Agreement.

12.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, and each executed counterpart shall have the same force and effect as an
original instrument and as if all the signatories to all of the counterparts had signed the
same instrument. Any signature page of this Agreement may be detached from any
counterpart of this Agreement without impairing the legal effect of any signatures thereon,
and may be attached to another counterpart of this Agreement identical in form hereto but
having attached to it one or more signature pages.

12.13 Venue. In the event that a Party brings any action under this Agreement, the
Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of
California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of California.

12.14 Attorneys’ Fees. If a Party to this Agreement brings any action, including an

action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, each

29
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



Party shall bear its own fees and costs, including attorneys’ fees, associated with the

action.

12.15 Counsel Representation. Pursuant to the provisions of California Civil Code

Section 1717 (a), each of the Parties were represented by counsel in the negotiation and
execution of this Agreement and no one Party is the author of this Agreement or any of its
subparts. Those terms of this Agreement which dictate the responsibility for bearing any
attorney’s fees incurred in arbitration, litigation or settlement in a manner inconsistent
with the provisions of Section 12.1 were intentionally so drafted by the Parties, and any
ambiguities in this Agreement shall not be interpreted for or against a Party by reason of
that Party being the author of the provision.

12.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement is

intended by the Parties, nor shall any provision of this Agreement be deemed or construed
by the Parties, by any third person or any Third Parties, to be for the benefit of any Third
Party, nor shall any Third Party have any right to enforce any provision of this Agreement
or be entitled to damages for any breach by the Parties of any of the provisions of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NCPA and each Participant have, by the signature of its

duly authorized representative shown below, executed and delivered a counterpart of this

Agreement.
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITY OF ALAMEDA
POWER AGENCY 2000 Grand Street

30
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

By: Randy S. Howard
Title: General Manager
Date:

Approved as to form:

By: Jane Luckhardt
Title: General Counsel
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1

P.O.BoxH
Alameda, CA 94501

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

31



CITY OF HEALDSBURG
401 Grove Street
Healdsburg, CA 95448

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

CITY OF LODI
221 W. Pine Street
Lodi, CA 95240

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

32
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



CITY OF LOMPOC
100 Civic Center Plaza
Lompoc, CA 93436

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

CITY OF OAKLAND, acting by and
through its Board of Port Commissioners
530 Water Street

Oakland, CA 94607

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

33

SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



CITY OF PALO ALTO
250 Hamilton Avenue
Palo Alto, CA 94301

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

PLUMAS-SIERRA RURAL
ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
73233 Highway 70

Portola, CA 96122

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

34
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT'1



CITY OF REDDING
777 Cypress Avenue
Redding, CA 96001

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

CITY OF SANTA CLARA
1500 Warburton Avenue
Santa Clara, CA 95050

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title;
Date:

35
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



CITY OF SHASTA LAKE CITY OF UKIAH

1650 Stanton Drive 300 Seminary Avenue
Shasta Lake, CA 96019 Ukiah, CA 95482
By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Approved as to form: Approved as to form:
By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Attestation (if applicable) Attestation (if applicable)
By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
36

SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



EXHIBIT A: INITIATING MEMBERS

The following is a list of the Initiating Members who submitted a request for NCPA
to purchase Renewable Energy Supply on their behalf. Their respective Initial Project

Participation Percentage share of the Project* are:

Participant MW GES Authorized Representative
(estimated) | (estimated) | to Initiate Phases 2C and 2D
Alameda 24 6.45%
Healdsburg 1.8 4.84%
Lodi 5.0 13.44%
Lompoc 5.6 15.05%
Palo Alto 0.7 1.88%
Plumas-Sierra 4.7 12.63%
Port of Oakland 2.0 5.38%
Redding 10.0 26.88%
Shasta Lake 3.0 8.06%
Ukiah 2.0 5.38%
TOTAL 37 100.00%

*Example only. Subject to change.

A-i
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



I LDA[0¥d ¥VI0S VION YO INFNATIOV HSVHI ANODES

-d
agl Jodred
%001 enIN
& 0¢ IMM 1
e Bremimg
%001 €01 ypue] Surppay
6'¢l jseq
%001 0¢ yodiry [ puepfeQ jo 1od
¢'c joda(q Auwry
6¢ S[qreN
%001 oo oL BIIAIG-SeWIN]J
9% pInom3pag
%
: 3sINOY) [0 o)V ofeJ
001 L0 D 30D IV Of
%001 9'g €0011 [201eJ dodwoT]
€1 uemy
S0 SISPUOM JO P[IOM
S0 ISNDO]
76001 71 1S9 M A3[X1g ad
6¥ urseg A3]x1q
T Ammpua)
%001 81 IMM 3mqspreay
%001 e smooq epsuely
DIl | THS | JAS | N3¥ | 1¥0d | N1d | 1vd | WOT | AO1 | VAH | VIV ohwmu“wm uondisaq axs uonedo] AIg

S yoeg 105 7O Juedpnieg
‘JueweaIdy sny} wpun pajedurajuod LIoey yoes 105 areyg Juswapnuyg

uoneIauds) 9ANRddsar IRy} pue Juswesidy siyi o} K1ojeuss axe oym syuedpnre ayj jo 3st| e st Surmoroy Y,
dje(J 2A1035]

SO ANV SINVJIDILYVd 40 LSIT:d LIdTHXH



I ILOA[0¥d ¥VT10S VAON JO4 INHNATIOV ASVHI ANODHS
-g

"uoneIsuUSs UMO SH JO %001 seyedonred juedonred yoes sownssy “a8ueyp 03 alqns pue g10z/ZL/I JO SV,



I LDA[O¥d ¥V10S VAIN JOI INHWHHYOV HSVHI ANODES

| 3®)

-ayis 1od

SI380D) "31s 3y} Je (sarrapeq “8-9) a3ei0ys £31ous Sunerodioour jo Aiqisesy [eURUY pue [eoTuYde) SURINRP 0} Aps reuondQ - Apmyg Aiqrsesa 99eIolg
"3)1s yoea 1oy a[qedrdde Ajaumus aq Jou pue ay1s Aq Area Leux s3sod asay ], *('3s9
000°08%) [o13u0d 3y1s urepe o} sasuadxa pue (Apms [y 105 159 000°Sz$) sesuadxe (VOHD) 1V LITens) [eJUsUIUOIAUF eILIOJI[e)) SPN[IUT S}S0D ([ ISeY]
‘ays 1od Ajdde s3s00 (g 9sey pue ‘g asey ] ‘gz aseyd
*A1031119} 221195 9[3UTs 10§ paynuapI axe say1s [enuajod oydnnur ueym Ajdde A[uo s3sod vz aseyq

"papnpur

jou are 53500 GO *AousBunuod % g1 snid ‘309{oxd suorepues e se pajenyess aq 03 913M IS YOrS JI SE SALWNSS SPIS-YSNY uo paseq axe aaoqe sanJiy

- - aNS/000'ST$+ - - Apmig Ajiqiseag 28eroig reuondo
0S2°04T$ 000'69$ 000°8C$ 000°S1$ 0C adl yode) 1o (3uneord) IMM yenin
T'E 1EM[IIS
0S2°0LT$ 005°08$ 009°4T$ 06£'91$ €01 (ypue paddeD) ypue] Suippay
6'€L 1583
0S4'85T$ 000'69$ 009°£$ VN 4 (310d1e)) 310diry PUEPfEQ JO 310
000'€SZ$ 000'69$ 009°£T$ SLT'1T$ 6% N eLIBIG-SPWN|]
9% yanomypag
000°€ST$ 0S2'€9$ VN VN 20 (310dxeD) 8s1n0) 3109 OV ofed
000°€SC$ 000'69% 009°22$ VN 9'g €001 [oo1eg d0dwio]
€1 (mypue] padde)d) memy
g0 (doyooy) s19puopm Jo pPEopm
. , . p S0 IS0
0S2°04T$ 000'69% 0S£'eE$ 09£°6Z$ P T 1o
67 uiseq AS[X1d
11 Amyua))
0S£'857$ 06Z'¢9$ 00S'F€$ VN 81 (Buneory) IMM 3mgspresy
0S£'85C$ 0S7'€9$ 00S7€$ VN x4 (ypue padde)) smrooq epawey
dgc aseyq Dz aseyq qz aseyqd V¢ aseydq mmwmv“wm uondusaq ag juednrey

HSVHJ ¥4d S1SOD YOIDVIINOD AALVINLLSH ANV SALIS TVLLNALOJ 40 LSIT:D LIGIHXA

(g
67
(¢
4

(t

S9J0N]



EXHIBIT D
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

This Project Development Authorization Form is made as of

20___ (the “Phase 2C/2D Effective Date”), by and between Northern California Power
Agency (“NCPA”) and the certain signatories to the SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR
NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1 that are directing NCPA to continue work into Phase 2
activities into pre-construction, project development, and financing (“ Authorizing
Participants”). NCPA and the Authorizing Participants of this Project Development

Authorization Form are referred to herein as “Parties”.

RECITALS

A. NCPA and the Authorizing Participants are party to the Second Phase Agreement
For NCPA Solar Project 1, which has an effective date of (“Second Phase
Agreement”).

B. Pursuant to the Second Phase Agreement, NCPA is developing Renewable Energy
Supply on behalf of Participants, which consists of environmental analysis, pre-
construction studies, design, and contract negotiation for several potential solar
photovoltaic generation facilities located in or near Participants’ electric service
territories.

C. The Second Phase Agreement, as executed, authorizes NCPA to carry out certain
feasibility assessments and screening analyses (i.e. Phase 2A and Phase 2B

activities) to help inform Participants if proposed sites and projects are viable

D-i
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



and/or economical to pursue, and Participants agree to provide funding to cover all
related costs for activities conducted on their behalf.

D. The Second Phase Agreement requires supplemental action and authorities from
Participants prior to NCPA conducting any Phase 2C or Phase 2D activites.

E. This Project Development Authorization Form is intended to serve as the requisite
supplemental action and authority from Authorizing Participants to direct NCPA to
conduct Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities into pre-conscrution, project
development, and financing on behalf of the Authorizing Participants; and is
intended to serve as the Authorizing Participant(s) consent to provide funding to
cover all related Phase 2C and Phase 2D costs for activities conducted ontheir
behalf.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

Section1. Purpose.

The purpose of this Project Development Authorization Form is for the Authorizing
Participants signatory hereto to authorize NCPA to conduct Phase 2C and Phase 2D
activities, as defined in the Second Phase Agreement, on their behalf; and for Authorizing
Participant to agree to provide funding for all such activities.

Section 2. Description of Site and Project.

This Project Development Authorization Form pertains to the project at the location
described below (“ Authorized Project Site”).
Location (City):

Facility Description:
Approximate Acreage:

D-ii
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



Capacity (MW AC):

Section 3.  List of Authorizing Participants & Site-Specific GES.

The following Authorizing Participants encompass all Members interested in
further development of the Authorized Project Site and lists each Authorizing Participant’s

GES of the Authorized Project Site.

Authorizing Participant GES (%) GES (MW AQ)

Section4. Project Costs for Phase 2C and Phase 2D

The not-to-exceed cost for Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities for the Authorized
Project Siteis$__, .00 (text description of NTE cost).

Section 5.  Authorities and Obligations.

5.1  Authorization and Funding. The Authorizing Participants hereby authorize

NCPA to conduct Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities, as defined in the Second Phase
Agreement, for the Authorize Project Site identified above. The Authorizing Participants
hereby agree to provide all necessary funds to NCPA to conduct these activities, with costs
not to exceed the figures listed in Exhibit C of the Second Phase Agreement for the
Authorized Project.

5.2 Obligations of NCPA. Upon full execution of this Project Development
Authorization Form, NCPA shall commence work on all Phase 2C and Phase 2D activities,
as defined in the Second Phase Agreement, for the Authorized Project Site on behalf of the
Authorizing Participants.

D-iii
SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



5.3  Obligations of Authorizing Participants. Authorizing Participants hereby

agree to continue to pay or advance to NCPA its allocated share of the costs in accordance

with the Second Phase Agreement and this Project Development Authorization Form in

connection with its participation in the Authorized Project.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NCPA and each Participant have, by the signature of its

duly authorized representative shown below, executed and delivered a counterpart of this

Agreement.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
POWER AGENCY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

By: Randy S. Howard
Title: General Manager
Date:

Approved as to form:

By: Jane Luckhardt
Title: General Counsel
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

AUTHORIZING PARTICIPANT
ADDRESS
CITY, STATE ZIP

By:
Title:
Date:

Approved as to form:

By:
Title:
Date:

Attestation (if applicable)

By:
Title:
Date:

D-iv

SECOND PHASE AGREEMENT FOR NCPA SOLAR PROJECT 1



Commission Staff Report

February 13, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 22, 2018

SUBJECT:

Authorizing and Approving the Issuance of up to $80 Million Hydroelectric Project
Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A (tax-exempt) and $4 Million
Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018 Taxable Refunding Series B

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Monty Hanks METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO Other

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [ City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah
San Francilsqcacr))iie}%/r:\nrgﬁ Ll City of Palo Alto Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara Other

If other, please specify

SR: 113:18




Approval of Issuance of Up to $80 Million Hydro Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A (tax-exempt) and $4
Million Hydroelectric Revenue Bonds, 2018 Taxable Refunding Series B

February 13, 2018

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending the Commission approve Resolution 18-08 which is authorizing and
approving the issuance of up to $80 million of fixed rate Hydroelectric Project Number One
Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A (tax-exempt) and up to $4 million fixed rate
Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series B (taxable) and
delegates the General Manager and other NCPA officials the authority to execute related legal
documents needed to issue these bonds.

BACKGROUND:

Policy and RFP

The NCPA Finance Committee, NCPA staff and the Agency’s financial advisors carefully
monitor the bond market for potential opportunities to refinance NCPA bonds for debt service
savings. According to NCPA’s Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy, a target of 5% net
present value (NPV) savings is desired before considering a bond refunding. In October 2017,
a Request for Proposals was issued to over a dozen investment banks seeking a potential
refunding of the 2008 Hydroelectric Bonds, Series C (2008C bonds). Upon evaluation of the
various proposals, Citigroup (Citi) offered the best approach and understanding of this
transaction with Goldman Sachs being a close second. The Finance Committee directed staff
to move forward with the refunding using Citi as the lead Underwriter (UW) and Goldman Sachs
as co-manager.

Outstanding Bonds to be Refunded

The 2008C bonds were originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $128,005,000 for
the purpose of refinancing Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2002 Refunding
Series A, 2002 Refunding Series B, 2003 Refunding Series A, and 2003 Refunding Series B.
As of today, $77,130,000 of the 2008C bonds remains outstanding. The 2018 Series A&B
refunding bonds are being issued for the purpose of providing funds to redeem the 2008C
bonds on or about July 1, 2018 and pay costs of issuance (COI) of this transaction. In addition,
the 2008C bonds carry transferred proceeds related to the refunding of the prior bond series
and is subject to a proceeds-to-proceeds restriction which is limited to the par amount of the
refunded bonds ($77,130,000). The 2018 Series B Taxable bonds has to cover the remainder
of the required uses (i.e., purchase of the escrow securities, COI and U/W discount) in addition
to any transferred proceeds penalty (approximately $325,000).

Documents for Approval

To complete the bond refunding, the Commission will be required to approve Resolution 18-XX
authorizing and approving the issuance of the refunding bonds and related documents including
the following:

Preliminary Official Statement (POS);

Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (tax-exempt);
Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (taxable);
Escrow Deposit Agreement;

Bond Purchase Contract;

Continuing Disclosure Agreement; and

And other related documents

NouoprwdE

SR: 113:18



Approval of Issuance of Up to $80 Million Hydro Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A (tax-exempt) and $4
Million Hydroelectric Revenue Bonds, 2018 Taxable Refunding Series B

February 13, 2018

Page 3

Draft copies of these documents are attached to this report. Upon approval by the Commission,
pricing of the refunding bonds will occur around the first week of April with the bond closing
shortly thereafter.

FISCAL IMPACT:

With the passage of SB450, the following details of the refunding must be disclosed prior to
authorization of the bonds. The numbers reflect rates as of January 31, 2018.

Estimated Amount of Proceeds: $79,243,180
Estimated True Interest Cost: 2.064%
Estimated Cost of Issuance: $425,259

Estimated Sum of Debt Service Payments: $85,193,345

Estimated NPV savings over the current debt service is approximately $7.4 million or 9.64% of
refunded bonds through final maturity in 2024. The estimated average annual debt service
savings for a full bond year is over $1.28 million. The breakdown of cost allocation per
Participant for debt service savings (net of all fees) is shown below:

Participant Entitlement 2008C Hydro Debt Estimated NPV  Est. Annual Debt
arficipan Percentage Service Obligation ! Savings Service Savings™
Alameda 10.00% 10.98% S 816,386 S 140,977
Biggs 0.10% 0.00% $ -8 -
Gridley 1.06% 0.00% S - S -
Healdsburg 1.66% 0.63% S 47,180 S 8,147
Lodi 10.37% 11.38% S 846,614 S 146,197
Lompoc 2.30% 2.52% S 187,775 S 32,426
Palo Alto 22.92% 25.16% S 1,871,160 S 323,121
Roseville 12.00% 4.59% S 341,061 S 58,896
Santa Clara 35.86% 40.64% S 3,022,281 S 521,902
Ukiah 2.04% 2.24% S 166,555 S 28,762
Plumas-Sierra 1.69% 1.85% S 137,953 S 23,822
Total 100.00% 100.00% S 7,436,965 S 1,284,250

[111n 2002 certain 1992A bonds were defeased with variable rate debt. Two participants opted out of the

refunding by paying their respective shares of the the refunded bonds in cash. As a result,
the 2002A&B bonds had different participant shares-normalized without the opt-out participants.

Additionally, in 2008 the 2002 and 2003 bonds were refunded into the 2008C&D which caused the
participant shares to be recalculated again on the proportionate shares of the bonds refunded.

(21 Based on full bond year. Estimated savings through 7/1/2018 is approx. $311,000

SR: 113:18



Approval of Issuance of Up to $80 Million Hydro Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A (tax-exempt) and $4
Million Hydroelectric Revenue Bonds, 2018 Taxable Refunding Series B

February 13, 2018

Page 4

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on February 13, 2018 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

% y 1
RANDY

. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

Resolution 18-08;

Preliminary Official Statement (POS);

Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (tax-exempt);
Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (taxable);
Escrow Deposit Agreement;

Bond Purchase Contract;

Continuing Disclosure Agreement; and

And other related documents

NN E

SR: 113:18



RESOLUTION 18-08

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT
NUMBER ONE REVENUE BONDS, 2018 REFUNDING SERIES A AND 2018 TAXABLE
REFUNDING SERIES B; APPROVING THE SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES OF TRUST
PURSUANT TO WHICH SUCH BONDS ARE TO BE ISSUED; AUTHORIZING AND
APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE, SECURING
AND SALE OF SUCH BONDS; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS
RELATING THERETO

(reference Staff Report #113:18)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”) is a public entity duly organized and existing
pursuant to the Amended and Restated Northern California Power Agency Joint Powers Agreement, dated as
of January 1, 2008, as supplemented (the “Agreement”) and the provisions relating to the Joint Exercise of
Powers Act constituting Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, NCPA is authorized pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement and the Act (capitalized
terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given such terms in the Indenture
mentioned below) to acquire and construct, or cause to be acquired and constructed, and to operate or cause to
be operated, a project within the State of California for the generation or transmission of electric energy (including
a capacity right in such a project) and to sell the capacity and energy of such project; to enter into agreements
with respect to any matters relating to the acquisition, construction and operation of such project and the sale of
capacity and energy of such project; and to finance the acquisition, construction and operation of such project
through the issuance of bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness under the Act; and to issue bonds to
refund such bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and Calaveras County Water District have entered into the Power Purchase Contract
whereby CCWD has granted NCPA the right to the capacity and energy of the Project in exchange for, among
other things, NCPA's providing the funds necessary to construct the Project and NCPA's construction and
operation of the Project, all on the terms and conditions specified in the Power Purchase Contract; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and the cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto,
Roseville, Santa Clara, and Ukiah and the Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative (the “Project Participants”)
have entered into the Agreement for Construction, Operation and Financing of the North Fork Stanislaus River
Hydroelectric Development Project, dated as of September 1, 1982, as amended, to provide for the construction,
operation, and financing of the Project, the sale by NCPA of capacity and energy of the Project to the Project
Participants, and the security for the bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness to be issued to finance
the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Indenture of Trust (as the same may be amended and supplemented from
time to time, the “Original Indenture”), dated as of March 1, 1985, between NCPA and U.S. Bank Trust National
Association, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”), NCPA has authorized the issuance of its Hydroelectric Project
Number One Revenue Bonds to finance the Cost of Acquisition and Construction of the Project or to refund any
Outstanding Bond or Bonds; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original Indenture, as amended and supplemented (the Original Indenture,
as amended and supplemented, the “Indenture”) NCPA has issued its Hydroelectric Project Number One
Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding Series C (the “2008 Series C Bonds”); and



WHEREAS, NCPA has determined to provide for the refunding all or a portion of the outstanding 2008
Series C Bonds as determined pursuant to this Resolution (the “Refunded Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, NCPA has determined to issue its Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018
Refunding Series A (the “2018 Series A Bonds”), for the purpose, among others, of providing a portion of the
funds necessary to refund the Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 Series A Bonds are to be issued under and pursuant to the Indenture as
supplemented by the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust by and between NCPA and the Trustee
(such Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, in the form presented to this meeting with such changes,
insertions and deletions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being referred to herein as the “Twenty-Fourth
Supplemental Indenture”); and

WHEREAS, NCPA has determined to issue its Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018
Taxable Refunding Series B (the “2018 Series B Bonds” and, together with the 2018 Series A Bonds, the “2018
Series A and B Bonds”), for the purpose, among others, of providing a portion of the funds necessary to refund
the Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 Series B Bonds are to be issued under and pursuant to the Indenture as
supplemented by the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust by and between NCPA and the Trustee (such
Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, in the form presented to this meeting with such changes,
insertions and deletions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being referred to herein as the “Twenty-Fifth
Supplemental Indenture”); and

WHEREAS, the 2018 Series A Bonds and the 2018 Series B Bonds are to be payable from and secured
by a pledge and assignment of the Trust Estate on a parity with all other Bonds issued and Outstanding under
the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, Citibank Global Markets Inc., as representative (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC (the “Underwriters™) have submitted a proposal to purchase the 2018 Series A Bonds
and the 2018 Series B Bonds in the form of a Contract of Purchase (such Contract of Purchase, in the form
presented to this meeting with such changes, insertions and deletions as are made pursuant to this Resolution,
being referred to herein as the “Purchase Contract”); and

WHEREAS, the offer of the 2018 Series A Bonds and the 2018 Series B Bonds to the public is to be
made pursuant to a Preliminary Official Statement (such Preliminary Official Statement in the form presented to
this meeting with such changes, insertions and deletions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being referred
to herein as the “Preliminary Official Statement”); and

WHEREAS, NCPA will provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds by depositing funds in an escrow
fund established by an Escrow Deposit Agreement with the Trustee (such Escrow Deposit Agreement, in the
form presented to this meeting with such changes, insertions and deletions as are made pursuant to this
Resolution, being referred to herein as the “Escrow Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, there have been prepared and submitted to this meeting drafts of the following:
D the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture;

(2) the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture;

3) the Preliminary Official Statement;

(4) the Escrow Agreement;

(5) the Continuing Disclosure Agreement; and

(6) the Purchase Contract.

NCPA Resolution 18-08 -2-



WHEREAS, after having reviewed and considered the proposal of the Underwriters to purchase the 2018
Series A Bonds and the 2018 Series B Bonds on the terms and conditions contained in the Purchase Contract,
this Commission now desires to authorize the issuance and sale of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds, including
the execution of such documents and the performance of such acts as may be necessary or desirable to effect
such issuance and sale and the other actions contemplated by this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, this bond refunding would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in
the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the California
environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency,
as follows:

Section 1. The Commission hereby finds and determines that the issuance and sale of the 2018
Series A and B Bonds that refund the 2008 Series C Bonds, and approval of the other matters referred to in this
Resolution, will not result in either a direct physical change in the environment, nor a reasonably foreseeable
indirect physical change in the environment. As a consequence, such activity is not a “project” as defined by the
California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq.).

Section 2. The issuance of the 2018 Series A Bonds on the terms and conditions set forth in, and
subject to the limitations specified in, the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture is hereby authorized and
approved. The aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds shall not exceed Eighty-Four
Million Dollars ($84,000,000). The 2018 Series A Bonds will be dated, will bear interest at the per annum interest
rates, will mature on the date or dates, will be issued in the form, will have the Sinking Fund Installments (if any),
will be subject to redemption, and will have such other terms, as shall be provided in the Twenty-Fourth
Supplemental Indenture as the same is completed as provided in this Resolution.

Section 3. The Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, in substantially the form submitted to this
meeting and made a part thereof as though set forth in full herein, be and the same is hereby approved. Each
of the Chairman of this Commission (the “Chairman”), the General Manager of NCPA (the “General Manager”),
the Assistant General Manager, Finance and Administrative Services Chief Financial Officer, and the Treasurer-
Controller of NCPA (each an “Authorized Officer”), acting singly, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the
Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, in the name of and on behalf of NCPA, in the form presented to this
meeting with such changes, insertions and deletions as may be consistent with this Resolution and the
determinations made pursuant hereto and as may be approved by the Authorized Officer executing the Twenty-
Fourth Supplemental Indenture, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 4. The Authorized Officer executing the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture is hereby
authorized to determine the following: (i) the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Series A Bonds; (ii) the
maturity date or dates of the 2018 Series A Bonds (the final maturity of such 2018 Series A Bonds to be not later
than July 1, 2028); (iii) the principal amount of the 2018 Series A Bonds maturing on each maturity date; (iv) the
2018 Series A Bonds which are to be term bonds, if any, and the Sinking Fund Installments for any such term
bonds; (v) the redemption provisions for the 2018 Series A Bonds; and (vi) subject to the provisions of Section
17 hereof, which of the outstanding 2008 Series C Bonds are to be refunded as Refunded Bonds pursuant to
this Resolution.

Section 5. The proceeds of the sale of the 2018 Series A Bonds shall be applied to the refunding of
the Refunded Bonds on the terms set forth in the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture and the Escrow
Agreement.

Section 6. The issuance of the 2018 Series B Bonds on the terms and conditions set forth in, and
subject to the limitations specified in, the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture is hereby authorized and
approved. The aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds shall not exceed Eighty-Four
Million Dollars ($84,000,000). The 2018 Series B Bonds will be dated, will bear interest at the per annum interest

NCPA Resolution 18-08 -3-



rates, will mature on the date or dates, will be issued in the form, will have the Sinking Fund Installments (if any),
will be subject to redemption, and will have such other terms, as shall be provided in the Twenty-Fifth
Supplemental Indenture as the same is completed as provided in this Resolution. This Commission hereby finds
and determines, based on advice of Bond Counsel, that interest on the 2018 Series B Bonds will be subject to
federal income tax.

Section 7. The Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, in substantially the form submitted to this
meeting and made a part thereof as though set forth in full herein, be and the same is hereby approved. Each
of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Twenty-Fifth
Supplemental Indenture, in the name of and on behalf of NCPA, in the form presented to this meeting with such
changes, insertions and deletions as may be consistent with this Resolution and the determinations made
pursuant hereto and as may be approved by the Authorized Officer executing the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental
Indenture, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 8. The Authorized Officer executing the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture is hereby
authorized to determine the following: (i) the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Series B Bonds; (ii) the
maturity date or dates of the 2018 Series B Bonds (the final maturity of such 2018 Series B Bonds to be not later
than July 1, 2028); (iii) the principal amount of the 2018 Series B Bonds maturing on each maturity date; (iv) the
2018 Series B Bonds which are to be term bonds, if any, and the Sinking Fund Installments for any such term
bonds; and (v) the redemption provisions for the 2018 Series B Bonds.

Section 9. The proceeds of the sale of the 2018 Series B Bonds shall be applied to the refunding of
the Refunded Bonds, the payment of the costs of issuance of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds, and other costs
related to the refunding of the Refunded Bonds on the terms set forth in the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture
and the Escrow Agreement.

Section 10. The Purchase Contract, in substantially the form submitted to this meeting and made a
part hereof as though set forth in full herein, be and the same is hereby approved. Each of the Authorized
Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Purchase Contract, in the name of and
on behalf of NCPA, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and deletions as may
be approved by the Authorized Officer executing said Purchase Contract and as are consistent with the
determinations of the terms of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds made pursuant to this Resolution, said execution
being conclusive evidence of such approval.

Each of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to determine the purchase price to
be paid for the 2018 Series A Bonds under the Purchase Contract; provided, however, that the aggregate
underwriters’ discount (not including original issue discount) on the 2018 Series A Bonds shall be not more than
1.00% of the principal amount of the 2018 Series A Bonds. The sale of the 2018 Series A Bonds to the
Underwriters on the terms and conditions contained in the Purchase Contract, as the same may be completed
in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution, with such changes, insertions and deletions as are
authorized hereby, is hereby approved and authorized.

Each of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to determine the purchase price to
be paid for the 2018 Series B Bonds under the Purchase Contract; provided, however, that the aggregate
underwriter’s discount (not including original issue discount) on the 2018 Series B Bonds shall be not more than
1.00% of the principal amount of the 2018 Series B Bonds. The sale of the 2018 Series B Bonds to the
Underwriters on the terms and conditions contained in the Purchase Contract, as the same may be completed
in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution, with such changes, insertions and deletions as are
authorized hereby, is hereby approved and authorized.

Section 11. The Escrow Agreement, in substantially the form presented to this meeting and made a
part hereof as though set forth in full herein, be and the same is hereby approved. Each of the Authorized
Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of NCPA, the
Escrow Agreement to the Trustee in the form presented to the meeting with such changes, insertions and

NCPA Resolution 18-08 -4-



deletions as may be approved by the Authorized Officer executing the same, said execution being conclusive
evidence of such approval.

Section 12. The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form presented to this meeting and
made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, be and the same is hereby approved and the use of the
Preliminary Official Statement in connection with the offering and sale of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds by the
Underwriters is hereby authorized and approved.

Each of the Authorized Officers is hereby authorized and directed to prepare and deliver to the
Underwriters a final official statement in connection with the 2018 Series A and B Bonds (the “Official
Statement”). The Official Statement shall be in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement with the addition
of the final terms of the 2018 Series A and B Bonds to be contained in the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture
and the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture and with such other changes, insertions and deletions as may be
approved by the officer of NCPA executing the same, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.
Each of the Chairman and the General Manager of NCPA, acting singly, is hereby authorized to execute the
Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto contemplated by the Purchase Contract, in the
name and on behalf of NCPA, and thereupon to cause the Official Statement and any such amendment or
supplement to be delivered to the Underwriters with such execution being conclusive evidence of the approval
thereof. The use of the Official Statement in connection with the offering and sale of the 2018 Series A and B
Bonds by the Underwriters is hereby authorized and approved.

Each of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to determine that the Preliminary
Official Statement is deemed final for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“Rule 15c2-127).

Section 13. Each of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to acquire credit
enhancement for the 2018 Series A Bonds and/or the 2018 Series B Bonds in the form of municipal bond
insurance provided that the cost of such municipal bond insurance is estimated by an Authorized Officer to be
less than the savings achieved on the sale of the related Series of 2018 Series A and B Bonds compared to
selling such Bonds without such credit enhancement. In connection with such municipal bond insurance, each
of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, is hereby authorized to enter into agreements with respect to the
repayment of amounts paid under such municipal bond insurance and interest thereon and expenses in
connection therewith substantially in the form of the insurance agreements previously entered by NCPA in
connection with municipal bond insurance for Bonds.

Section 14. The refunding of the Refunded Bonds on the terms and conditions specified in the Twenty-
Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture and the Escrow Agreement, including
the application of moneys for such purposes as therein provided, is hereby approved and authorized.

Section 15. Pursuant to Section 12 of the Hydroelectric Project Member Agreement, NCPA is hereby
directed by the Project Participants (as conclusively evidenced by the affirmative votes for this Resolution of the
representatives of the Project Participants to the Commission) to refund the Refunded Bonds as provided in the
Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture and the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, to issue the 2018 Series
A Bonds and the 2018 Series B Bonds, to enter into, and perform its obligations under, the documents and
instruments approved or authorized by this Resolution and to take such further actions as herein authorized in
connection with the refunding of the Refunded Bonds and the issuance, security and sale of the 2018 Series A
Bonds and the 2018 Series B Bonds, and NCPA shall comply with such direction, while not stayed or nullified,
to the fullest extent authorized by law. The Project Participants recognize and agree (as conclusively evidenced
by the affirmative votes for this Resolution of the representatives of the Project Participants to the Commission)
that amounts payable under Section 5(a) of the Hydroelectric Project Member Agreement based on anticipated
monthly electric sales include all such amounts accrued during any period during which there were no such
anticipated sales and are payable under Section 5(a) of the Hydroelectric Project Member Agreement with
respect to the first month in which there are anticipated electric sales regardless of the amount of such anticipated
sales.

NCPA Resolution 18-08 -5-



Section 16. The Treasurer-Controller of NCPA and the Administrative Assistant to the Assistant
General Manager, Finance and Administrative Services Chief Financial Officer are each hereby appointed as an
Assistant Secretary for the purpose of executing any documents, making any certification on behalf of NCPA or
taking any other action necessary or convenient in carrying out the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

Section 17. Notwithstanding any other provision or grant of authority to an Authorized Officer in this
Resolution to the contrary, none of the documents approved and authorized to be executed and delivered by
this Resolution shall be executed and delivered by an Authorized Officer unless as of the date of execution and
delivery the Assistant General Manager, Finance and Administrative Services Chief Financial Officer or the
Treasurer-Controller shall certify in writing that the net present value of the savings to be realized by the bond
issuance contemplated by this Resolution is not less than five (5%) percent of the principal amount of the
Refunded Bonds; and further provided, that any approval or grant of authority in this Resolution shall, without
further action of the Commission, expire and be void as of 12:01 a.m. on July 1, 2018 unless exercised prior to
that time.

Section 18. The Chairman and the Vice Chairman of the Commission, and the Authorized Officers
acting singly, be and each of them hereby is authorized to execute and deliver any and all documents and
instruments and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or convenient in carrying out
the transactions contemplated by this Resolution or the documents and instruments approved or authorized by
this Resolution, including without limitation, entering into any continuing disclosure required by Rule 15c2-12,
credit enhancement agreements, investment agreements, financial guaranty agreements, investment
agreements, and/or financial guaranty agreements, and making any determinations or submission of any
documents or reports which are required by any rule or regulation of any governmental entity in connection with
the issuance and sale of the 2018 Series A Bonds and/or the 2018 Series B Bonds, the refunding of the Refunded
Bonds and the authorization, execution, delivery and performance by NCPA of its obligations under the
documents and instruments approved or authorized by this Resolution. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, and the Authorized Officers, are hereby authorized and directed to
enter into such amendments and supplements to documents and agreements entered into in connection with
the 2008 Series C Bonds as shall be necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of the Resolution. The
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of NCPA is hereby authorized to affix and attest the seal of NCPA to any of
the documents approved or authorized pursuant to this Resolution.

Section 19. All actions heretofore taken by any committee of the Commission, or any officer,
representative or agent of NCPA, in connection with the issuance and sale of the 2018 Series A Bonds, the 2018
Series B Bonds, the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, or the authorization, execution, delivery or performance
of NCPA's obligations under the documents and instruments approved or authorized by this Resolution and the
other actions contemplated by this Resolution are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 20. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

NCPA Resolution 18-08 -6-



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of
on roll call:

Vote Abstained

Alameda

, 2018 by the following vote

Absent

San Francisco BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL

NCPA Resolution 18-08 -7-

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



-

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date February 14, 2018
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: February 22, 2018

SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment to the Joint Operating Agreement for the
Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP) Project

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Ken Speer (LS METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Geothermal

If other, please specify

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah
San Franci;;:iﬁa% :l::iat O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other

o o o o o O

SR: 118:18



Amendment to the JOA for the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project
February 14, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA Staff is recommending Commission approval of Resolution 18-11, an Amendment to the
Joint Operating Agreement for the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project (SEGEP),
requiring NCPA to provide the entire power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations except in
outage situations, and stating that Calpine will compensate NCPA for its relative share of such
electricity costs at an agreed-upon index price.

BACKGROUND:

The Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project (SEGEP) is a cooperative project between
Lake County Sanitation District, Calpine, and NCPA, that has been in operation since
September 23, 1997. The project provides wastewater to The Geysers for the purposes of
maintaining the reservoir pressure and increasing steam reserves of the geothermal field.

Calpine and NCPA share in the operating and maintenance costs for the pipeline and pump
stations that bring approximately 6,000 gallons per minute to The Geysers. Electrical power to
operate the pumps stations can be supplied by either Calpine or NCPA. The value of the
electrical power is based on the Local Market Price. Calpine and NCPA either pays or
reimburses the other entity for their share of electrical power. The payment or reimbursement is
based on the volume of water each receive during a calendar year.

Both Calpine and NCPA also receive Bucket 0 Renewable Energy Credits (REC’s) for the
electrical power supplied to the effluent pipeline. Calpine sells their energy from the Geysers,
and the REC's available for Calpine to sell are matched up to the energy on a 1-for-1 basis.
Bucket 0 REC’s Calpine receives for the effluent pumping can only be sold as Bucket 3 REC'’s,
which are worth about $0.50/MWhr, because there is no corresponding energy sale. As a public
agency, NCPA Members are allowed to use the Bucket 0 REC’s to meet their RPS
requirements. These are valued around $15 per MWhr.

This Amendment to the SEGEP Joint Operating Agreement would require that NCPA provide
the entire power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations, except in outage situations.
Calpine would compensate NCPA for its share of the electricity costs at the Local Market Price
and further pay to NCPA one half the value of a Bucket 1 REC, or $7.50 per MWhr. Approval of
the Amendment will result in approximately $90,000 per year in payment from Calpine to NCPA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Approval of this Amendment to the SEGEP Joint Operating Agreement will result in
approximately $90,000 per year in revenue to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 118:18



Amendment to the JOA for the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project
February 14, 2018
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on February 13, 2018, and was
recommended for Commission approval as a Discussion/Action Item.

Res ectfully submitted,
RANDY S. HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
e Amendment to the SEGEP Joint Operating Agreement

SR: 118:18



RESOLUTION 18-11

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AMENDMENT TO THE SEGEP JOINT OPERATING AGREEMENT

(reference Staff Report #118:18)

WHEREAS, the Parties originally entered into a Steam Suppliers Joint Operating Agreement Southeast
Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project on July 25, 1995, which established and provided for certain terms and
conditions relating to their participation in and responsibility for the operation of that portion of the Southeast
Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project (“Project”) which commences at the Point-of-Delivery and terminates at The
Geysers Terminus; and

WHEREAS, the Parties first amended that Steam Suppliers Joint Operating Agreement Southeast
Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project on December 20, 2001 to recognize that Calpine had acquired the geothermal
interests of PG&E and Unocal at The Geysers and therefore owned a 2/3 interest in all of the Steam Suppliers
Facilities of the Project, to recognize that NCPA had entered into an agreement with Lake County Sanitation
District to fund Basin 2000 Facilities to deliver additional effluent to the Project, and to provide how the Project
Water was to be distributed among other issues; and

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Agreement on September 18, 2003 to amend and restate certain
terms and conditions relating to the Parties’ participation in the Project, re-allocate the Parties’ rights to the
Project Water, and agree that each Parties’ share of the monthly electricity costs needed to pump the Project
Water would be equal to its percentage of the Project Water actually received for that month; and

WHEREAS, Section 5.1.2 of the Agreement states that “[tlhe Party required to supply the power to
operate the three Bear Canyon Pump Stations in order to deliver the Project Water shall be established from
time to time by the Parties”, Section 6.5 of the Agreement states that “[e]ach Party’s share of the pumping power
costs shall be equal to its percentage of Project Water actually received for that month”, and Exhibit A of the
Agreement (“Exhibit A”) identified the Parties’ agreed-upon statement of the value of the electricity that NCPA
would provide to pump the Project Water, specifically that NCPA would provide all electricity to operate the three
Bear Canyon Pump Stations at a set price for the period April 01, 2003 through December 31, 2006; and

WHEREAS, the Parties agreed by letters dated December 20, 2006 to amend Exhibit A to revise certain
of the terms related to the power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations and the value of the electricity used
for that power supply; and

WHEREAS, the Parties agreed by letter dated June 26, 2008 to further amend Exhibit A to revise certain
of the terms related to the power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations and the value of the electricity used
for that power supply; and

WHEREAS, the parties agreed by letter dated June 1, 2009 (“2009 Letter Agreement”) to further amend
Exhibit A to revise certain of the terms related to the power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations and also
to extend the term of Exhibit A for an additional 36 months; and

WHEREAS, between 2012 and the present, the Parties have agreed upon their relative responsibility for
the electricity costs needed to operate the Bear Canyon Pump Stations in connection with the yearly budgeting
process for Project operations and maintenance (“O&M”) expenses, and have each year executed written
agreements approving the Project's O&M budget (which includes line items for electricity costs for the Bear
Canyon Pump Stations as well as the Calpine Share (as defined below)); and



WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to revise the terms of the Agreement to require that NCPA provide the
entire power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations except in outage situations, and that Calpine
compensate NCPA for its relative share of such electricity costs at an agreed-upon index price; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the Amendment to the Joint Operating Agreement for the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline
Project.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call: v

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 18-11 -2-



[January__, 2018] AMENDMENT TO THE
SECOND AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF THE
STEAM SUPPLIERS JOINT OPERATING AGREEMENT

SOUTHEAST GEYSERS EFFLUENT PIPELINE PROJECT (SEGEP)

THIS AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) to the Second Amendment and Restatement of
the Steam Suppliers Joint Operating Agreement Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project
(“Agreement”), is entered into and dated as of the ___ day of , 2017, by and
between NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY, a California joint powers authority
and public entity (“NCPA”), and CALPINE CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation
(“Calpine”), referred to herein individually as “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, the Parties originally entered into a Steam Suppliers Joint Operating
Agreement Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project on July 25, 1995, which established and
provided for certain terms and conditions relating to their participation in and responsibility for
the operation of that portion of the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project (“Project™)
which commences at the Point-of-Delivery and terminates at The Geysers Terminus; and

B. WHEREAS, the Parties first amended that Steam Suppliers Joint Operating
Agreement Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project on December 20, 2001 to recognize that
Calpine had acquired the geothermal interests of PG&E and Unocal at The Geysers and therefore
owned a 2/3 interest in all of the Steam Suppliers Facilities of the Project, to recognize that
NCPA had entered into an agreement with Lake County Sanitation District to fund Basin 2000
Facilities to deliver additional effluent to the Project, and to provide how the Project Water was
to be distributed among other issues; and

C. WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Agreement on September 18, 2003 to
amend and restate certain terms and conditions relating to the Parties’ participation in the
Project, re-allocate the Parties’ rights to the Project Water, and agree that each Parties’ share of
the monthly electricity costs needed to pump the Project Water would be equal to its percentage
of the Project Water actually received for that month; and

D. WHEREAS, Section 5.1.2 of the Agreement states that “[t]he Party required to
supply the power to operate the three Bear Canyon Pump Stations in order to deliver the Project
Water shall be established from time to time by the Parties”, Section 6.5 of the Agreement states
that “[e]ach Party’s share of the pumping power costs shall be equal to its percentage of Project
Water actually received for that month”, and Exhibit A of the Agreement (“Exhibit A™)

4847-9057-6472v.1 0041036-000313



identified the Parties’ agreed-upon statement of the value of the electricity that NCPA would
provide to pump the Project Water, specifically that NCPA would provide all electricity to
operate the three Bear Canyon Pump Stations at a set price for the period April 01, 2003 through
December 31, 2006; and

E. WHEREAS, the Parties agreed by letters dated December 20, 2006 to amend
Exhibit A to revise certain of the terms related to the power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump
Stations and the value of the electricity used for that power supply; and

F. WHEREAS, the Parties agreed by letter dated June 26, 2008 to further amend
Exhibit A to revise certain of the terms related to the power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump
Stations and the value of the electricity used for that power supply; and

G. WHEREAS, the parties agreed by letter dated June 1, 2009 (“2009 Letter
Agreement”) to further amend Exhibit A to revise certain of the terms related to the power
supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations and also to extend the term of Exhibit A for an
additional 36 months; and

H. WHEREAS, between 2012 and the present, the Parties have agreed upon their
relative responsibility for the electricity costs needed to operate the Bear Canyon Pump Stations
in connection with the yearly budgeting process for Project operations and maintenance
(“O&M”) expenses, and have each year executed written agreements approving the Project’s
O&M budget (which includes line items for electricity costs for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations
as well as the Calpine Share (as defined below)); and

L WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to revise the terms of the Agreement to require
that NCPA provide the entire power supply for the Bear Canyon Pump Stations except in outage
situations, and that Calpine compensate NCPA for its relative share of such electricity costs at an
agreed-upon index price. Should the index be named here?

AGREEMENT

THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual agreements contained
herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings
set forth in the Agreement.
2. Term and Termination. The term of Exhibit A as revised by this Amendment

shall begin on the date this Amendment is executed and extend for two (2) years
from that date; provided that either Party in its sole discretion may elect to revert
to the prior terms of Exhibit A (as set forth in the 2009 Letter Agreement) by
providing thirty (30) written notice to the other Party.

2
4847-9057-6472v.1 0041036-000313



3. Supply of Power to the Bear Canyon Pump Stations. Exhibit A to the Agreement
is replaced and superseded in its entirety with the following:

The supply of electricity to power the Bear Canyon Pump Stations shall be as
follows:

A. NCPA shall supply the electricity needed to operate Bear Canyon Pump
Stations #1, #2, and #3 (collectively, the “Bear Canyon Pump Stations™).

B. If NCPA is temporarily unable to provide electricity to power the Bear
Canyon Pump Stations, Calpine will provide backup power service to the Bear
Canyon Pump Stations as needed and as available.

C. On or about the 10® day of each calendar month, NCPA (as Operator) shall
provide Calpine with a calculation of the electricity costs to supply the Bear
Canyon Pump Stations during the prior month. NCPA shall calculate
Calpine’s responsibility for such costs (“Calpine’s Cost Responsibility”)
using the following formula:

Calpine’s Cost Responsibility = ((Electricity Usage x Average
Supply Cost) x Calpine Share) + (Electricity Usage x Cost Adder)

For purposes of this calculation, the following definitions apply:

“Electricity Usage” is the amount of electricity (in kWhs) that NCPA
used to supply the Bear Canyon Pump Stations during the prior calendar
month, less the amount of electricity (if any, in kWhs) that Calpine
provided as temporary backup power service to the Bear Canyon Pump
Stations during the prior calendar month.

“Average Supply Cost” is the average Locational Marginal Price
(“LMP”) for the Geysers Plant 1, Unit 2 LMP node during the prior
calendar month.

“Calpine Share” is the percentage of Project Water that Calpine received
in the prior calendar month (as expressed in decimal terms (0.00)). For
instance, if Calpine received 40% of the Project Water in a prior month,
the Calpine Share for that month would be 0.40.

“Cost Adder” is equal to $0.00750/kWh (i.e. $7.50/MWh).

4847-9057-6472v.1 0041036-000313



D. To the extent the Parties disagree as to Calpine’s Cost Responsibility for any
particular month, the Operating Committee shall attempt to resolve such
disagreement. If the Operating Committee is unable to resolve the
disagreement, the Parties shall use the dispute resolution procedures set forth
in Section 16 of the Agreement.

4. No Other Changes. Except as set forth herein, the Agreement, as previously
amended, remains in full force and effect.

5. Execution and Delivery. This Amendment may be executed in one or more
counterparts, all of which will be considered one and the same. This Amendment
may be delivered by the electronic exchange of executed signature pages (e.g., by
email), and any printed or copied version of any signature page so delivered will
have the same force and effect as an originally executed version of such signature

page.

6. Governing Law. The validity, interpretation, and effect of this Amendment are
governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
California applicable to contracts made and performed in such state and without
regard to conflicts of law doctrines except to the extent that certain matters are
preempted by federal law or are governed by the law of the jurisdiction of
organization of the respective Parties.

[signature page follows])

4847-9057-6472v.1 0041036-000313



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have
caused this Amendment to be signed by their respective officers hereunto duly authorized as of
the day and year first set forth above.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY CALPINE CORPORATION

By: By

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
5

4847-9057-6472v.1 0041036-000313



	Commission_Draft_Minutes_011818
	Item_5_Facilities_Committee_Minutes
	Item_10_Financial_Report_January_2018
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_January_2018
	Item_12_Sale_Disposal_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_Debt_Interest_Rate_Management_Report_December_31_2017
	Item_14_Updates_Modifications_Nexant_Cost_Allocation_Model_FY19
	Item_15_Second_Phase_Agreement_NCPA_Member_Participants_Solar_Project_1
	Item_16_Hydroelectric_Project_One_Rev_Bonds_2018_Refunding_Series_A_B
	Item_17_Amendment_Joint_Operating_Agreement_SEGEP_Project

